2000 ANNUAL REPORT

ABOUT THE FOUNDATION

The Rockefeller Foundation is a knowledge-based, global foundation with a
commitment to enrich and sustain the lives and livelihoods of poor and
excluded people throughout the world.

In order to maximize its resources and leverage the Foundation's strengths,
grantmaking is organized around four thematic lines of work: Creativity &
Culture, Food Security, Health Equity and Working Communities. A cross-
theme of Global Inclusion supports, promotes and supplements the work of
these themes.

In addition, the Foundation supports a number of programs that are developing
or in transition, among them the Africa Regional Program, Communication for
Social Change, Public/Private Partnerships and Global Philanthropy.

One year into the execution of a new strategic direction that is more pointedly
focused on the needs of the poor, we have reaffirmed some of our original
assumptions about development, most notably that:

= For the Foundation's strategies to be most effective, the poor and
excluded should have a voice in the process, that we should actively
find ways to unleash those voices, and that such voices should be
heeded; that

= The poor and excluded themselves should participate in researching,
planning and doing the work, and that

= Neither this foundation, nor any other, can work alone. We must seek
creative ways to leverage our limited dollars in order to attract new
funding from the private sector, international aid organizations and
national, state and provincial governments.

Even though the Rockefeller Foundation's endowment still ranks in size among
the top 20 U.S.-based foundations, we cannot begin to solve any single world
problem alone. The problems are too complex. A $15 million grant, or even a
$50 million grant, cannot begin to address a cure for AIDS or development of
new tuberculosis drugs, for example. Consequently, the Foundation
increasingly must build partnerships and encourage collaboration between the
public and private sectors. Following are more specifics on the Foundation's
themes, cross-theme and special programs, with summaries of progress to
date.
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MISSION AND VISION

Traditionally, annual reports are an opportunity to look back and describe our
achievements over the 12 months. As | sit at the desk I've now occupied for
almost three years, I'm struck once again at how daunting a task this is
because of the very nature of how foundations work. We seek long-term,
systemic, enduring change, and accomplishing that takes time--far longer than
just one year.

In the essay and photographs that follow, we take you to four countries,
looking at common threads that stretch from continent to continent. You will
see close up the effects of inequity on poor families and individuals, along with
some explanation of the Rockefeller Foundation-supported programs that are
working to alleviate those conditions, over time. Although the locales differ, the
impact of inequity is strikingly similar as we travel from Irlanda's village in
Mexico to Jackie's public-housing complex in the United States, then on to
Margaret's farm in Kenya and Hian Som's plot in Cambodia. These are the real-
life struggles of impoverished people whose lives are being bypassed--or even
adversely affected--by the globalization that holds such great promise for
those already better off.

In addition, I'd like to tell you about some of the new work begun in the past
two years that illustrates the Foundation's endeavors to find lasting solutions
to some of the world's most pressing issues. The first is our Africa Regional
Office's support of Makerere University in Uganda, where our goal is to
contribute to Uganda's distinctive governmental reform process, while
simultaneously enhancing the quality and relevance of higher education by
reinforcing the university's own transformation.

Secondly, we recently helped inaugurate the Global Alliance for TB Drug
Development to find new drugs to treat one of the world's deadliest infectious
diseases.

Drawing on our deep roots in Africa, where the Foundation began making
significant investments in 1958, we have joined with the Carnegie Corporation
of New York, the Ford Foundation and the John D. and Catherine T. MacArthur
Foundation in an initiative to support the improvement of higher-education
institutions in a number of sub-Saharan countries.

Africa's universities have a key role to play in helping to reduce poverty and in
serving as catalysts for national economic development and social well-being,
but they all have suffered in recent decades from lack of funds and the inability
to compete for the best faculty. Yet, despite very difficult circumstances, many
of them are responding in creative ways to the needs of their countries and to
the various democratic and social reforms now under way. And, we believe, the
ultimate success of those reforms depends substantially on the universities’
ability to support them.

We have elected to concentrate our efforts on Makerere, which, under
visionary leadership, is undergoing dramatic changes and wishes to be more
relevant to the needs of the Ugandan people. Once among the continent's
premier universities, Makerere has embarked on an ambitious strategic plan
that encompasses not only improvements to its own functions and finances,
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but also capacity building to aid the devolution of power from Uganda's central
government to the districts. In the last six years, enrollment at Makerere has
more than doubled and degree programs have expanded to include business
administration, nursing, biomedical technology and tourism.

By building the university's research capabilities and providing the resources to
attract top scholars, both to study and to teach, we believe those individuals,
in turn, can become resources for the Ugandan government as it moves
forward with its national decentralization agenda. The university will then be
able to train not only national leaders, but also district leaders, most of whom
lack higher education and formal training for their positions, in the areas of
health, agriculture, finance, education, planning and public administration. In
this way, we work together, in a collaborative public/private philanthropic
effort, to build a strong civil society that can move the country forward.

The Rockefeller Foundation is also working to alleviate health inequities among
poor people in developing countries. This is nothing new; we've pursued
scientific approaches to world health throughout our history, with some well-
known resulting accomplishments, including our support of research leading to
the discovery of penicillin and development of the yellow fever vaccine, for
which a Foundation staff member won a Nobel Prize. Today, we operate as a
catalyst and partner among the myriad public, private and nongovernmental
organizations engaged in health-equity work.

We know, from experience, that some of the world's most significant health
problems exist simply because people in developing nations lack access to the
kinds of treatments available in developed countries. Tuberculosis, for
example, though still around in the United States, is not considered a public
health threat because people have access to drugs that will cure it.

Such is not the case in the developing world, where TB is commonplace and
kills more than two million people annually. One third of the world's population
is currently infected with TB, and each year eight million people develop the
disease in its active form. The standard treatment is a six to eight month
regimen. However, when a patient must walk miles to the nearest public clinic,
or the clinic is open only on Wednesdays, this effectively constitutes no
treatment at all, because people simply cannot follow through for the required
time. Meanwhile, the bacillus continues to build up resistance to existing
medicines, and no new class of TB drugs has been developed in more than 30
years.

We considered what would be the ideal situation: a new TB drug that didn't
require a lengthy treatment plan. The primary obstacle to its development:
money. It costs an estimated $300 million, on average, for a pharmaceutical
company to develop and take a new drug to market--but when the only market
for that drug is poor people who can't afford it, there is no financial incentive to
induce that investment.

To remove that obstacle, we brought together the Global Alliance for TB Drug
Development. A public/private partnership, the Alliance operates independently
and is modeled after a small, virtual R&D company. Using Foundation money
for initial research costs, pharmaceutical companies have agreed to make the
new drugs, once developed, available at cost to poor people in developing
nations in return for guarantees from the ministries of health in those countries
that they will purchase a certain number of doses.
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All of this came about in a record 14 months; perhaps equally remarkable, with
our initial $15 million commitment, together with $25 million from the Gates
Foundation, the Rockefeller Foundation leveraged commitments totaling $150
million. We were able to do that because, when a foundation comes into the
game, we kindle interest, add credibility, eliminate initial risk and stick with it
for the long haul.

That is how we use our catalytic power to effect long-term, systemic change.
That is how, over time, we will help to improve food production, access to jobs,
education and health among the world's poor and excluded.

That is how we will contribute to the development of effective civil societies in
Africa, and how we will promote the development of the first new TB drug by
2010.

We do not treat symptoms; rather, we go into things for the long haul, for that
is the most effective, sustainable way to alter the root causes of the world's
complex ills.

Gordon Conway
March 26, 2001
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FINANCIAL REPORT

The Rockefeller Foundation's endowment was $3.5 billion at year-end 2000.
The portfolio returned - 0.4 percent in 2000, while investment returns for the
past five years have averaged 13.9 percent per year.

During the year 2000, the endowment provided for grantmaking and related
expenditures of $197 million.

Since inception, the Foundation's grantmaking has totaled more than $11
billion in 2000 dollars. The chart below summarizes the Foundation's spending
history for the last 12 years.

Created in 1913, the Rockefeller Foundation was endowed in several
installments that totaled about $250 million. The graph below shows that the
real value of the endowment in 2000 dollars has undergone periods of growth
and erosion.

During the 1960s and 1970s, many endowments, including the Rockefeller
Foundation's, experienced substantial declines in real value as a result of high
inflation and low investment returns. Those trends were reversed in the 1980s
and 1990s. The value in 2000 dollars of the original endowment, fully funded in
1929, was $2.5 billion, and it peaked at $4.6 billion in 1964.
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The year 2000 will be remembered by both institutional and individual
investors as the time when prices of technology stocks reached a peak and
then swiftly collapsed, when value investing returned to favor, and when the
principle of diversification once again held meaning for investors. By the end of
1999, the five-year unprecedented performance of the U.S. equity market, and
technology stocks in particular, had caused even seasoned investors to wonder
if the long-held belief in the benefits of diversification across a broad spectrum
of asset classes and securities was still valid. During 2000, diversification again
paid off as the equity market broadened significantly and the high-quality bond
sector was a top performer.
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Beginning in the second quarter of 2000, value investing significantly outpaced
growth as the NASDAQ index declined 51 percent from its March peak. The
dramatic shift from 1999 to 2000 is illustrated by a comparison of the Russell
3000 Value and Growth indices for the two years.

| | 1999 (%) | 2000 (%)
[Russell 3000 Value || 6.7|| 8.1
[Russell 3000 Growth || 33.8|  -22.4

The shift in leadership in the U.S. equity market during 2000 was broadly
based, as several sectors took over leadership from technology and
communications shares. As shown in the following chart, which compares
sector performance in 1999 with 2000, the financial, health care and utilities
sectors generated strong returns in 2000.

The U.S. fixed income markets, especially Treasury securities, provided strong
performance during 2000, and the Salomon BIG bond index returned 11.6
percent for the year. In contrast to Treasury bonds, however, yield spreads on
lower-quality fixed income securities widened to extraordinary levels during the
year in response to fears of economic weakness. High-yield bonds under
performed by a wide margin as default rates increased.
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Slowing economic growth and high oil prices negatively impacted international
equity markets. Declines in the U.S. technology sector had a particularly
severe impact on emerging markets. For the year 2000, the EAFE index of
developed market securities declined 14.2 percent, and the index of emerging
markets declined 30.6 percent. In addition, foreign currencies declined versus
the U.S. dollar, especially the euro, which fell 18 percent through October but
recovered in November and December to a 6 percent decline for the year.
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In providing oversight of the endowment, the key financial objectives of the
Foundation's board of trustees are (1) maintaining the long-term purchasing
power of the endowment, after inflation and grantmaking, and (2) maximizing
funds available for current program needs and administrative support. These
conflicting goals are balanced through policies on the spending rate and on the
asset allocation of the investment portfolio. The Foundation's long-term target
for annual spending is 5.5 percent of the market value of the endowment.

Asset allocation policy is reviewed annually by the Finance Committee, which
establishes a target allocation for each asset class. The Foundation rebalances
to policy targets as markets move, but does not make frequent tactical shifts in
asset allocation. The long-term asset allocation targets are:

’Asset Class |Percent
|U.S. Equity 135
‘International Equity |22
IBonds |22
‘Real Estate |10
‘Private Equity |10
‘Cash Reserve |1

The Foundation's investments staff develops overall strategy, recommends
investment managers and oversees their performance and adherence to
guidelines, researches new investment opportunities and determines their
feasibility for the Foundation, and monitors and controls portfolio risks. A few
fundamental principles underlie the investment program. Asset allocation is an
important focus for the trustees and the investment staff. Diversification is
essential to portfolio design, but new approaches are added only if they are
fully understood, serve a clear purpose and can be implemented in meaningful
quantities.

In selecting outside managers, we seek firms that, in addition to strong track
records, have the people, management structure and disciplined processes to
generate superior future results. While quantitative tools are essential for
organizing data and for portfolio analysis, we believe that fundamental
research and judgment always will be necessary in a world of rapidly changing
capital markets. We recognize that investment expenses have a substantial
impact on long-term results, and we consider cost control an important
component of effective portfolio oversight.

The U.S. equity portfolio currently has approximately 30 percent invested in an
S&P 500 index fund, and the remainder is allocated among nine active
managers. This asset class is benchmarked against the Russell 3000 index and
is designed to roughly approximate index allocations to small-, medium- and
large-capitalization stocks.

The U.S. bond portfolio is managed by five advisers. In addition to U.S.
Treasury and agency securities, the portfolio includes mortgages, corporate
bonds, asset-backed securities, high-yield bonds and international bonds with
managers who have expertise in these areas.
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The Foundation's international equity portfolio has a small index fund
component, which is maintained for purposes of portfolio rebalancing, plus six
active managers. Currency risk is hedged at a 50 percent level by specialist
managers, who manage only currency positions and do not select the
underlying equity securities. Emerging markets can represent up to 20 percent
of the total international equities portfolio, and the Foundation has two
managers who specialize in these markets.

In addition to marketable securities, the Foundation makes investments in
private equity and real estate through funds run by experienced teams in these
sectors. The inefficiency of private markets offers long-term institutional
investors, who can tolerate illiquidity, the opportunity to benefit from value
added by experienced principals in selecting, structuring and managing
investments. Our strategy is to build relationships with top-tier firms with
whom we can invest in a series of funds over time and to structure
partnerships that align our interests with those of our partners.
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INFORMATION FOR APPLICANTS
Contacting The Foundation About Grants

The Rockefeller Foundation works to enrich and sustain the lives and
livelihoods of the poor and excluded throughout the world.

The Foundation has identified four themes, or subject areas of work—
Creativity & Culture, Food Security, Health Equity, and Working Communities.
A cross-theme of Global Inclusion supports, promotes and supplements the
work of the four themes. In addition, the Foundation funds a humber of
programs that are new or exploratory in nature. Foundation programming is
managed from the Foundation's New York City headquarters, and from regional
offices in Bangkok, Thailand; Nairobi, Kenya; Harare, Zimbabwe; Mexico City;
and San Francisco.

The Foundation is a proactive grantmaker—that is, the officers and staff seek
out opportunities that will advance the Foundation's long-term goals, rather
than reacting to unsolicited proposals. Foundation officers receive more than
12,000 proposals each year, 75 percent of which cannot be considered because
their purposes fall outside the Foundation's program guidelines.

Organizations interested in Foundation grantmaking should send a letter of
inquiry addressed to the director of the subject area of interest, Rockefeller
Foundation, 420 Fifth Avenue, New York, N.Y. 10018, or, inquiries can be sent
online as follows: Creativity & Culture—creativity@rockfound.org, Food
Security—food@rockfound.org, Health Equity—health@rockfound.org, Working
Communities—work@rockfound.org, or Global Inclusion—
aglobal@rockfound.org. An inquiry should briefly describe the project and its
purpose (no attachments, please).

It is important to note that, as a matter of policy, the Foundation does not give
or lend money for personal aid to individuals, support attempts to influence
legislation, or, except in rare cases, provide general institutional support, fund
endowments or contribute to building and operating funds.

PROGRAM OBJECTIVES
Theme: Creativity & Culture

Resilient and Creative Communities: Preserving and renewing cultural
heritages to enhance the well-being of societies and equip the poor and
excluded to relate to, and gain benefits from, the new global community.

Grantmaking is done through Recovering and Reinventing Cultures
Through Museums, a competitive program supporting exhibitions that
broaden the definition of American art and chart the cultural
contributions of non-Western populations. Support is also given to
ongoing research initiatives on the cultural indicators of social health.
The Foundation's Partnerships Affirming Community Transformation
(PACT) initiative annually accepts applications for its competitive
program. PACT supports community partnerships that use the arts and
humanities to bridge difference and effect social change.
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Explorations are under way to preserve and strengthen threatened traditional
art forms in developing countries; to help communities recover and interpret
cultural materials, such as literary or religious texts and oral histories; and to
examine the role that memory, history and imagination play in helping
communities withstand and adapt to the stresses of poverty, exclusion and
violence. These program explorations are not open to direct application.

Knowledge and Freedom in the Public Sphere: Artists and humanists,
through social critique, play a key role in creating democratic, inclusive civil
societies. Translating religious ideas into the language of public discourse and
brokering conversations between religious communities can help defuse
tensions that deeply touch people's lives.

Grantmaking is done through initiatives that fortify civil society through
cultural institutions in Africa and the Muslim world, and mobilize the
assets of religions to build resilient communities. Support for
scholarship and research networks is provided through a competitive
program of Resident Humanities Fellowships hosted by humanities
centers in North and South America. Additional ways of bringing
humanities perspectives to bear on the Foundation's new program
themes are under exploration.

Creativity and Innovation in a Global Age: The voices and visions of artists
and humanists can help us envision reality and clarify our understanding of
ourselves and others. Such expression can be enhanced by experimentation
with new technologies.

Grantmaking supports the creation of new work in the performing arts
(dance, music and theater) through application to the Multi-Arts
Production (MAP) fund. Support for independent media artists in the
United States and Mexico working in documentary, video, dramatic
narrative film and experimental digital design is provided through
Film/Video/Multimedia fellowships awarded by nomination—not by
direct application—and administered by National Video Resources.

Explorations are under way to create environments that encourage new media
collaborations between the artistic and technological communities, and to
engage humanists and social scientists to probe the meaning of the cultural
expression and the new forms of social organization enabled by the Internet.
These particular explorations are not open to direct application.

For inquiries or applications, contact: creativity@rockfound.org;
fax: (212) 852-8438.

Theme: Food Security

Enabling Farmer Participation: Improvements in the food security of poor
farm families must be based on effective and sustainable methods for engaging
them directly in the articulation of their needs, and in the analysis, design and
implementation of agricultural innovations.

Grantmaking focuses on farmer participation in setting priorities for and

in conducting plant breeding, developing seed production and
distribution systems, and improving agronomic practices.
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Applying Science and Technology: Key constraints to the food security of
the rural poor in bypassed areas can be addressed effectively through
coordinated partnerships of local scientists and farmers with cutting-edge
biotechnologists, plant breeders, agroecologists and policy scientists.

Grantmaking focuses on accelerating the discovery, development and
application of new genetic and agroecological strategies for enhancing
yield stability, producing more resilient crops, improving human
nutrition and preventing environmental degradation.

Strengthening Policies and Institutions: Appropriate training and
institution building can strengthen local organizations to access and move the
key policy, institutional and technological levers that lead to increased incomes
and improved food security.

Grantmaking aims to foster national development of policies that
support resilient and profitable smallholder agriculture, and strengthen
institutions that integrate the scientific and participatory approaches to
innovation development.

The work of the Food Security theme is global in scope, but will have special
emphasis on sub-Saharan Africa and South and Southeast Asia. Training of
national scientists from these regions can be included in research grants, and
postdoctoral fellowships may be awarded to candidates nominated by grantee
institutions.

For inquiries or applications, contact: food@rockfound.org;
fax: (212) 852-8442.

Theme: Health Equity

Harnessing the New Sciences: Advocacy, capacity building and support for
specific product-development initiatives can effectively harness the new
sciences to counter market failures on essential health products.

Grantmaking supports the acceleration of product development for
neglected diseases afflicting the poor, including vaccines for children's
diseases and for AIDS, and medicines for malaria and tuberculosis.

Support continues for reproductive-health technology-development projects
already under way.

Resourcing Public Health: The generation, sharing and use of knowledge-
based resources through partnership and cooperation can strengthen the
capacity of local health systems to improve the health of the poor and to
redress inequities.

Grantmaking supports activities that increase access to knowledge,
develop human resources and promote excellence in research through
partnership, cooperation and participation.

Strengthening Global Leadership: Redressing the disproportionate burden
of emerging health threats upon the poor is contingent upon a robust new
framework for health equity that is based upon new knowledge and on giving
voice to the poor and excluded through dynamic leadership by individuals and
institutions.
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Grantmaking focuses on strengthening health-equity analysis,
identifying best practices and tools for equitable health-sector reform,
and promoting greater institutional responsiveness and accountability to
the concerns of the poor in the context of new and emerging health
problems.

The work of the Health Equity theme is global in focus, but has special
emphasis on sub-Saharan Africa and South and Southeast Asia. Health Equity
does not support fellowships or scholarships for higher education.

For inquiries contact: health@rockfound.org;
fax: (212) 852-8279.

Theme: Working Communities

Setting a More Equitable Public Agenda: Research, policy analysis and
advocacy can promote a deliberate, informed and participatory public agenda
to achieve more equitable outcomes.

Working Communities funds research on (1) the consequences of economic,
technological and demographic trends on the structure of work, and their
impact on the least skilled, through a request for proposal process sponsored
with the Russell Sage Foundation, and (2) the structural components of racial
and ethnic exclusion and their implications for democracy. Policy analysis and
advocacy grantmaking is limited to long-standing grantees of the Foundation
and projects that are invited to apply as part of Foundation initiatives to
increase employment opportunities in specified states and cities.

Building Competent Organizations: Communities need strong, competent
organizations to sustain and improve programs that provide lasting social
benefits.

Grantmaking is made through national initiatives, such as the National
Community Development Initiative, which supports community-
development corporations, or by invitation to participate in city-specific
initiatives to increase the scale and impact of reform in poor school
districts, or directly to work-force development providers that serve
very poor communities.

Testing Innovations: Practical, proven and cost-beneficial models, designed
and implemented with the active participation of community residents, are
needed to reduce educational inequities, increase employment opportunities
and promote racial/ethnic inclusion.

Grantmaking supports well-designed and rigorously evaluated models to
improve: (1) employment access and advancement opportunities, (2)
the quality of education for poor and limited English-speaking children,
and (3) innovative solutions that increase voice and participation of the
poor and excluded as an antidote to racial and ethnic exclusion. Projects
are funded by invitation only.

For inquiries, contact: work@rockfound.org;
fax: (212) 852-8273.
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Cross-theme: Global Inclusion

Global Inclusion (Gl) makes connections among the four themes, regional
offices and special programs. This cross-theme tackles issues which connect
the themes and their constituencies, and identifies ways to strengthen the
linkages between them.

Gl also concentrates on the linkages between global organizations and local
communities, and on the individuals who experience directly such problems as
water shortages or violent conflict.

Gl's grantmaking is based on three related strategies to promote social
change:

e Promoting and making widely available the best information, products
and processes—scientific, technological and political—from all parts of
the world to advance inclusion;

e Working to assure that the institutions, processes and events that set
the rules of globalization are increasingly transparent, participatory and
aimed at promoting public good as well as private wealth;

e Making the necessary links between the shared values, aspirations and
worldviews of the powerless and the powerful, worldwide.

This cross-theme seeks to frame issues and focus public will and resources on
critical world issues. Grantmaking is designed to encourage a more open and
productive atmosphere in current global debates and to enhance the
participation and voice of developing-country actors in policymaking.

Gl makes grants according to the following lines of work:

Global dialogues on plant biotechnology
Intellectual-property rights

Trade and development

Cooperative engagement

Peace and security

Women at work

Leadership for the Environment and Development (LEAD)
Water

. Environmental governance

10. Science as a public good

11. Sustainable development theory

©CONIGOAWN R

Global Inclusion will review a short letter of inquiry describing the project for
which funding is sought. Funds are limited and will be primarily directed by
Foundation staff. Large institutional grants will not be considered. Global
Inclusion does not support educational fellowships.

For inquiries contact: global@rockfound.org;
fax: (212) 852-8461.

Regional and Special Programs
AFRICA REGIONAL PROGRAM

Goal: To contribute to the renewal of the African continent by building the
required human and institutional capacity by providing critical information that
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will promote effective policies and programs to improve the lives and
livelihoods of the poor.

Grantmaking supports work in three areas.

Human Capacity Building: Africa has a dual challenge: providing access to
universal primary education of a high quality to a young and growing
population, and upgrading its higher education system so that its skilled sons
and daughters can utilize sophisticated technology, and so that its scientists
are among the inventors.

Grantmaking supports activities aimed at closing the gender gap in
school access and achievement, and at reducing the waste of the school
systems in countries where universal primary education is becoming a
reality. We also support activities aimed at improving understanding of
the challenges facing higher education in Africa and at helping
universities become more relevant to the development of the continent.

Information For Development: Democratization and increased
accountability of elected leaders is enhancing the local demand for information
to support evidence-based decision making and evaluate development
programs.

Grantmaking supports research that informs policy development,
program design and resource allocation by providing local-level,
multifaceted information on food, health, work and other human
conditions that is needed to understand and address the root causes of
poverty.

Partnerships for Africa's Renewal: Success of our efforts in food, health,
culture and work requires more than education and capacity strengthening. It
is particularly important to address the broader contextual and developmental
issues that shape the contribution of the capacity that is being built.

Grantmaking in this area of work is purely exploratory and does not
accommodate unsolicited proposals.

COMMUNICATION FOR SOCIAL CHANGE

Goal: To enhance the effectiveness of development initiatives focusing on the
poor and excluded by fostering innovative communication approaches that
engage, empower and engender positive social change.

CFSC supports projects in three areas:

e Researching, testing and applying new indicators and evaluation tools to
measure the effectiveness of communication projects and programs.
Grantmaking will focus on developing new methods for joint funding,
and on analysis and dissemination of communication research that
affects the work of the Foundation and its grantees.

e Testing and conducting trials of communication-for-social-change
methodology on key social issues impacting the poor and excluded,
especially in partnership with Rockefeller Foundation grantees.
Grantmaking will focus on researching and testing the effectiveness of
communication for social change in addressing critical issues faced by
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poor communities, and on developing evaluation measures and
methodologies that are less intimidating and more participatory.

e Creating new training models and means-of-knowledge transfer about
how to apply communication-for-social-change methodology,
particularly for Rockefeller Foundation grantees.

Grantmaking will focus on mobilizing resources to develop and
strengthen the capacity of communication professionals in poor nations,
including the encouragement of free and democratic media.

For inquiries contact: csc@rockfound.org;
fax: (212) 852-8441.

The Foundation also has special programs focusing on Public/Private
Partnerships and Global Philanthropy.
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THE PROGRAMS: CREATIVITY & CULTURE

Goal: To give full expression to the creative impulses of individuals and
communities in order to enhance the well-being of societies and better equip
them to interact in a globalized world.

Cultures are both resilient and fragile. The arts and humanities are the
repository of tradition and memory, which help people to withstand the
stresses of poverty, migration, violence and discrimination.

Globalization, propelled by new technologies, provides both opportunities and
threats to creativity. Folk traditions can re-emerge and strengthen community
morale, while new technologies and modes of communication create "imagined
communities” that unite people across geographic boundaries through shared
experiences. At the same time, globalization can lead to the homogenization of
cultures and can undermine cultural diversity.

As it has for some 80 years, the Rockefeller Foundation bases its support for
the arts and humanities on the belief that societies benefit from the free
expression of creative individuals. Refocusing its strategy to address today's
challenges of globalization, the Foundation aims to enhance the creativity of
individuals and communities through the preservation and renewal of the
cultural heritage of the poor and excluded, the engagement of artists and
humanists in the creation of democratic and inclusive societies, and the
support of diverse creative expression and experiments with the new digital
technologies.

The Foundation supports the recovery and reinvention of cultures through such
vehicles as museum exhibitions, preservation of traditional art forms, cultural
heritage and folklife projects, and community-arts projects, as well as efforts
to promote cultural policy and understand the cultural components of well-
being. It promotes social critique and the free flow of ideas through humanities
research, efforts to strengthen pluralism and institutions of public culture in
Africa, Latin America and within Muslim communities, and the mobilization of
religious assets in building civil society. In addition, the Foundation supports
media and performing artists through fellowships, festivals and the
creation/presentation of new work; it facilitates the interaction of the arts and
new technologies; and it probes the meaning and impact of those technologies.

Although most of the Foundation's Creativity & Culture work is concentrated in
the United States, initiatives in other countries include strengthening a network
of African publishers and recovering and publishing literature by African women
writers, resident fellowship programs for humanities scholars in Central and
South America, explorations with museums in southern Africa and Mexico,
reconstruction of traditional Cambodian court and folk dances at the Royal
University of Fine Arts in Phnom Penh, and support for efforts to commemorate
social trauma as democratization and social reconstruction proceed. Examples
are humanities research focused on violence, democracy and authoritarianism
at the cultural nongovernmental organization SUR in Peru and an international
coalition of "historic sites of conscience" that include the Lower East Side
Tenement Museum in New York, the Slave House in Senegal and the Project to
Remember in Argentina.
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THE PROGRAMS: FOOD SECURITY

Goal: To improve the food security of the rural poor through the generation of
agricultural policies, institutions and innovations that will provide sustainable
livelihoods in areas of sub-Saharan Africa, Asia and Latin America bypassed by
the Green Revolution.

One of the great scientific success stories of the latter half of the 20th century,
the Green Revolution helped many in Asia, Latin America and Africa achieve
food security. The Foundation has engaged directly in agricultural work since
1934, when it embarked on a rural reconstruction program in China; its
association with the Green Revolution commenced in 1943, with the inception
of a program designed to increase food production in Mexico. In 1970, a
Foundation staff member, Norman Borlaug, won the Nobel Peace Prize for his
pivotal role in modernizing agriculture in the developing world.

In much of Asia and portions of Latin America, the introduction of improved
crop varieties that respond well to fertilizer and irrigation has boosted food
production and farming incomes considerably. However, large numbers of rural
poor people remain in poverty; most of them farm where rainfall is low and
variable, and where soils are poor in nutrients. More than 800 million people
are chronically undernourished. Food for the urban poor depends upon jobs,
income and low prices, while food for most of the world's 600 million rural poor
depends upon their own labor and the productivity of their often limited or
fragile land resources.

To help those farm families move out of poverty, Foundation grantees are
generating agricultural innovations, including more dependable and sustainable
farming practices, as well as new crop varieties developed for the specific
environmental and socioeconomic conditions under which the poor farm. Our
grantees are engaging farmers themselves as participants in scientific
investigations and in the development of new technologies to meet their needs.

The ability of local organizations to access and move key institutional, policy
and technological levers is critical to the success of this process. To foster
development of local, national and international policies that will increase the
productivity, stability and sustainability of smallholder agriculture, the
Foundation seeks to empower and invigorate institutions which provide goods
and services to poor farmers. In Africa, for example, the Foundation provides
funding to build the capacity of African institutions and strengthen their
commitment to serving smallholder farmers. The Agricultural Productivity and
Food Security Task Force in Zimbabwe, the Maize Productivity Task Force in
Malawi and the Sustainable Community Oriented Development Programme in
Kenya are among the initiatives that are helping to achieve Foundation
objectives.
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THE PROGRAMS: HEALTH EQUITY

Goal: To advance global health equity by pursuing the reduction of avoidable
and unfair differences in the health status of populations.

Although longevity gains in the last 40 years exceeded those of all of the past
4,000 years, humankind's extraordinary progress in health has not been
equally distributed among or within countries. Genetic predisposition, crowded
living conditions, environmental exposures, food insecurity and inadequate
access to health care all contribute to disparities in health achievement.

Health-adjusted life expectancy in Japan exceeds 75 years, while in Sierra
Leone it is about 25 years. People in the North can expect to live with HIV for
20 years or more, while in eastern and southern Africa, AIDS has precipitated
a 20-year free fall in life expectancy. Within rich and poor countries alike poor
women suffer markedly increased risks of death and disease compared to rich
women.

Health-product market failures, crumbling health systems in the wake of
health-care reform and a myriad looming health threats have combined to
generate inequities in health that the Foundation is working to address by
harnessing the new sciences, resourcing public health and strengthening global
leadership.

The Rockefeller Foundation has pursued scientific approaches to world health
throughout its history--from eradicating hookworm to modernizing medicine
and public health. The Foundation's accomplishments are many, including
support for research leading to the discovery of penicillin and of the yellow
fever vaccine, for which a staff member won a Nobel Prize.

The Foundation's new Health Equity strategy seeks to counter health-product
market failures with advocacy, capacity building and support for specific
product initiatives. Much of this work is being done through public/private
partnerships patterned after the Foundation created the International AIDS
Vaccine Initiative. This year, for example, a new alliance for accelerating
tuberculosis drug development was born.

The Foundation aims to revitalize public health systems to address the health
priorities of poor and marginalized people and redress disparities, particularly
in sub-Saharan Africa, and South and Southeast Asia. In the Mekong Delta
area of Southeast Asia, for example, a new program is working to strengthen
the capacity of health systems to identify and redress disparities in the
infectious diseases by improving the collection and use of surveillance
information. Recognizing the need for local ownership, policymaker buy-in and
scientific validity, the concept of a "gauge" to monitor inequities in health and
health care has emerged.

In Nairobi, Kenya, an urban slum equity gauge is calling policy attention to
deplorable living conditions and unacceptably high child-mortality rates.

Finally, the Foundation has acknowledged the need to address looming health
threats. This type of work includes a multicountry tobacco control effort under
way in Southeast Asia.

© 2003 The Rockefeller Foundation



THE PROGRAMS: WORKING COMMUNITIES

Goal: To transform poor urban neighborhoods into working communities--safe,
healthy and effective neighborhoods--by increasing the amount and quality of
employment, improving the quality of all urban schools, and increasing the
influence and voice of the poor and excluded in political decisions that affect
their lives.

Quality education, good jobs, and increased participation of the poor and
excluded are the building blocks of successful working communities in urban
neighborhoods and metropolitan regions. Such communities depend on and, in
turn, foster the increased involvement of all residents, which, ultimately,
creates and sustains a more equitable and just society.

In its quest to achieve greater social justice, the Foundation faces some
daunting challenges in its home country:

= Despite sustained U.S. economic growth and the lowest unemployment
rates in three decades, one in every eight persons remains in poverty,
which belies the notion that economic growth alone ultimately will
reduce poverty.

= Income inequality in the United States is the highest among all
industrialized nations, due, in part, to the decline in real wages of low-
skilled workers.

= Racial and ethnic minorities are poor in disproportionate numbers. While
one in 10 white persons is poor, one of every four Latinos and African-
Americans lives in poverty.

= Poverty is primarily an urban phenomenon; three fourths of the poor
live in metropolitan areas, and central U.S. cities are home to half of
the nation's poor.

= Poverty among racial minorities is heavily concentrated in poor urban
neighborhoods. One in 20 whites lives in a poor neighborhood,
compared with one fourth of African-Americans and one fifth of Latinos.

= Poverty in U.S. neighborhoods increasingly involves the foreign-born,
with the rate among some of the most recent newcomers approaching
50 percent.

The Foundation supports three areas of activities to improve these conditions:
public policies with explicit goals to eliminate or reduce inequities and
disparities in education, employment and civic participation, especially among
racial and ethnic groups; competent public and private organizations to
implement and sustain such policies and the programs; and detailed practical
knowledge and research about which programs work, which do not, and with
what costs and benefits.

The Rockefeller Foundation's Working Communities strategy supports
programs designed to:

= Increase neighborhood employment rates so that most households
make a living from paid work and to ensure that work pays;

» Enhance the participation of the poor and excluded in designing and
implementing sustainable solutions;

= Improve public schools in poor neighborhoods; and

= Strengthen democratic processes.
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By forging partnerships with business and community providers, the
Foundation believes it can make a difference in the employment of the urban
poor and excluded. One such arrangement with a private developer, the Mills
Corporation, involved the training and hiring of more than 850 people to work
at a new mall in Nashville, Tennessee.

The Foundation is drawing to a close several long-term educational initiatives
and will host, in the spring of 2001, a national symposium on lessons learned
from philanthropic efforts in school reforms. It will also continue to address
school improvement with support for teacher quality improvements, a new
project, "Re-Visioning School Districts," which will examine the conditions and
elements necessary for district-wide reform, and new research to increase
public knowledge about alternative educational reforms, including school
vouchers, charter schools and dual language instruction, among others. To
increase the participation of racial and ethnic minorities in shaping solutions to
inequality and exclusion, the Foundation supports collaboration among
scholars, activists and community leaders that combine research and
community interests; innovative legal practices that encourage community
participation in addressing the problems of racial justice; and ideas that
expand upon traditional racial-equity approaches, look at the structures of
opportunity for everyone, and promote broad, deliberate and informed
discourse to set remedies.

In conjunction with its Creativity & Culture work and with the help of its Mexico
regional office, the Foundation also has begun to explore the transnational
character of urban communities.

One of the core processes in the emergence of a new urban paradigm,
transnational communities are reshaping the lives and livelihoods of the poor
and excluded through the routine cross-border flow of people, money and
ideas. Although the public debate has focused on how well new immigrants are
adapting to U.S. communities, few observers or policymakers have focused on
how U.S. institutions and communities are changing as a result of the large
numbers of immigrants. Governments and civic organizations in the countries
of origin also have not paid serious attention to the effects of these routine
cross-border movements on families, households and communities at home.

In the context of globalization, the Foundation is reviewing research, policies
and the activities of civil society to learn more about how the everyday realities
of the poor and excluded are becoming transnational and how poverty in U.S.
communities is intermixed with and reinforced or overcome through
connections abroad. The review also involves a search for innovative strategies
that work across borders to improve the lives and livelihoods of the
transnational poor and excluded.
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THE PROGRAMS: GLOBAL INCLUSION

Goal: To help broaden the benefits and reduce the negative impacts of
globalization on vulnerable communities, families and individuals around the
world.

The cross-theme of Global Inclusion supports, promotes and supplements all
four of the Foundation's thematic lines of work.

Globalization refers to the rapid and massive movement of capital, goods,
people, ideas, institutions and images across the globe. Although this process
has been occurring for centuries, its speed and scale have accelerated over the
last 50 years.

To be "included" in the benefits of globalization and protected from the worst
of its negative consequences, individuals, households and communities would
have:

= Influence over the rules and systems that govern political, economic
and cultural life;

= Participation in the prosperity that global economic change offers;

= Access to global information;

= Protection from such physical harm as violence, environmental pollution
or disease epidemics; and

= The expectation that global systems promote peace and stability.

Under its Global Inclusion theme, the Foundation is pursuing both ongoing and
new initiatives in an effort to have an impact on fast-moving, complex global
policy processes. Current lines of work are:

= Global biotechnology dialogues

= Intellectual-property rights

= Trade and development

» Cooperative engagement

= Peace and security

*  Women at work

= Leadership for the Environment and Development (LEAD)
=  Water

= Environmental governance

= Science as a public good

= Sustainable development theory

Global Inclusion seeks to make connections among the Foundation's four
themes. Working with Foundation staff, it uses the opportunities provided by
these connections to invest in activities and people who can shape rules, norms
and practices to promote the well-being of the poor and excluded globally.
Global Inclusion tackles issues which connect the themes and their
constituencies, and identifies ways to strengthen the linkages between them.
Growing global interdependence and porous boundaries underscore that
economic and social integration must be shaped to include such broadly
defined aspirations as safety, dignity, freedom and economic security for all
peoples. Specifically, the word "inclusion™ refers to our efforts to include in
global problem solving the Foundation’'s main constituency: the poor and
excluded.
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Global Inclusion grantmaking and other activities are based on three related
strategies to promote social change:

* Promoting and making widely available the best information, products
and processes--scientific, technological and political--from all parts of
the world to advance inclusion;

= Working to assure that the institutions, processes and events that set
the rules of globalization are increasingly transparent, participatory and
aimed at promoting public good as well as private wealth;

= Making the necessary links between the shared values, aspirations and
worldviews of the powerless and the powerful, worldwide.

Global Inclusion grantmaking supports activities in all three of these areas.
However, all Gl activities are based on the belief that, in both a moral and a
practical sense, if globalization does not work for everyone, even the least
among us, ultimately it will not work for our common future.
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THE PROGRAMS: ASSETS & CAPACITIES
Bellagio

Since its opening in 1959, the Bellagio Study and Conference Center,
located on Lake Como in northern Italy, has hosted more than 3,300
resident scholars, artists, writers, scientists and policymakers, and
accommodated 20,000 workshop and team participants. Each year,
about 140 residents and 50 workshops and teams are hosted--each
selected as part of a competitive application process.

Persons invited to Bellagio are considered for short-term workshops,
team residencies or individual longer-term stays for the purpose of
study, writing or artistic creation.

Individual, collaborative and parallel residencies

The Center offers one-month stays for 15 residents at a time. Individuals
in any discipline or field and coming from any country who expect their
work to result in publication, exhibition, performance or other concrete
product are welcome to apply for a period of work uninterrupted by the
usual professional and personal demands.

Workshops and teams

The Foundation seeks applicants of achievement and promise who are
addressing significant issues, tackling substantial scholarly problems or
attempting to go beyond artistic boundaries. Emphasis is given to
diversity in geography (developing-country applicants are especially
encouraged to apply). Workshops and teams range in size from three to
25 participants.

Communication for Social Change

Goal: To enhance the effectiveness of development initiatives focusing on the
poor and excluded by fostering innovative communication approaches that
engage, empower and engender positive social change.

Virtually all of the Foundation's work relies heavily upon the ability to
"get the word out," to reach the affected stakeholders, and to position an
issue or issues in the public consciousness. Foundation grantees must
have effective communication strategies and skills in order to inform
policy, advocate for change, or persuade users and consumers that their
technologies are workable. We must also help grantees begin to identify
how the voices of the poor and excluded can be better engaged, and how
research, technology and programs can better incorporate their opinions
and values.

Communication for social change is a technique for engaging
communities in their own problem solving and decision making, then
using such decisions to communicate essential information to all those
impacted by the issue. It is defined simply as a "process of public and
private dialogue wherein people define who they are, what they want,
how to get what they need." Social change is defined as change in
people's lives as they themselves define such change. This work seeks
particularly to improve the lives of the politically and economically
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marginalized, and is informed by principles of tolerance, self-
determination, equity, social justice and active participation for all.

This special program finds ways to help poor people increase their
abilities to use communication approaches and technology to improve
their lives. For example, in rural Zimbabwe we are working with youth
groups as they develop mechanisms to talk about AIDS and the dangers
of the disease among their peers. Through drama, song, public-opinion
polling, community dialogue circles and teen workshops, they are
learning that behavioral change cannot be sustained absent effective
communication among adolescents, and between youth and their
parents. And, that information dissemination alone--or the distribution of
pamphlets, posters and ads--is not effective communication. By testing
community-developed approaches and evaluating their success using an
integrated social-science model of social change, we are hopeful that the
Foundation and our grantees can learn techniques for sustaining positive
behavioral change which will allow youth to avoid risky sexual activities
that can lead to HIV infection.

Global Philanthropy

For several years, the Foundation has funded small projects designed to
encourage philanthropy on a global basis. It is part of the Foundation's
ongoing effort to mobilize new resources in order to adequately tackle
the world's most critical problems, as well as to develop partnerships
with other potential funders.

Foundation grantmaking in this area seeks to learn about new trends in
giving, to offer training in philanthropy to those who have newly acquired
wealth, to help sustain the philanthropic sector in the United States, and
to encourage growth of the philanthropic sector in other parts of the
world. This work incorporates two ongoing projects: The Philanthropy
Workshop, a training experience in strategic giving, and The Next
Generation Leadership program for young, promising leaders. We are
also encouraging new philanthropic ideas while continuing to explore new
partnerships and collaborations with existing as well as newer
foundations.

In the year 2000, we began development of an unique philanthropic
investment concept that we hope will inspire new ways of giving
worldwide. It is a concept based on using information technology to build
networks of effective philanthropists and leaders. This project will create
a new philanthropy vehicle through which we hope to create a strong,
global giving community that "invests" in and supports a serious
collection of philanthropic portfolios ranging from health care to
education to environmental issues.

Public/Private Partnerships

Several years ago, the Foundation undertook an effort known as the
Program Venture Experiment (ProVenEx). ProVenEx seeks to catalyze
private sector investments in areas that will benefit the poor and
excluded. To accomplish this goal, ProVenEx makes investments in early-
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stage and growing companies with business strategies or technologies
that will further the Foundation's philanthropic priorities, for example,
new medical technologies/drugs against infectious diseases such as HIV,
tuberculosis and malaria, and strategies to expand employment
opportunities for inner-city residents. To date, ProVenEx has committed
$2.5 million to two companies: a small biotech company developing a
microbicide to help protect women against sexually transmitted diseases,
and a social venture enterprise which seeks to expand training and job
opportunities for disadvantaged people.
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THE PROGRAMS: REGIONAL OFFICES

Over the course of its history, the Rockefeller Foundation has worked in many
parts of the world. Our earliest work in hookworm, malaria and yellow fever
was rapidly extended into Latin America and Asia. John D. Rockefeller himself,
perhaps spurred by the Christian missionary movement of the 19th century,
was especially interested in the modernization of China, where the Foundation
operated its largest-ever program at the Peking Union Medical College. During
the 1930s and 1940s, we worked extensively throughout Europe.

In the past two decades, we have concentrated our overseas work in eastern
and southern Africa, the most economically deprived world region. Much of our
early work involved posting technical officers overseas. Due to budgetary
constraints and changing contexts, we withdrew our large field staff in the
1970s. Since then, we have operated with fewer than 10 overseas officers
servicing specific programs.

For the future, we find it difficult to conceive of a global foundation based
exclusively in New York City. The concept of a "global foundation" implies
global awareness, an open mind-set, consciousness of globally shared (and
differing) values, and an institutional capacity to harness global knowledge and
learn from diverse societies. It also implies the intention to apply knowledge on
the ground among specific people and in specific places. Foundation programs
thus will adopt a global-planning framework, but will decentralize the
implementation of the programs, wherever feasible, in response to local
contexts, people and institutions.

Recognizing that the Foundation cannot hope to work everywhere, staff
planning proposes that we seek means of enhancing our "field presence" in
selected key regions. The means include residential staff, international
networks, advisory inputs of local leaders and other modalities.

Our current regional bases vary greatly in their functions. Bellagio is the site of
an international conference and study center under the direct management of
the Foundation. The most developed multi-thematic engagement is in Africa,
while offices in Asia, Latin America and on the U.S. West Coast service single
programs. Several of our geographic bases will be developed into more ample
regional offices, with full-time, resident professional staff. These regional
offices will support, promote and supplement global thematic programs.

Bellagio

The Bellagio Study and Conference Center is a Foundation-operated charitable
activity. Our proposed year 2000 budget continues Bellagio as a Foundation-
administered project. The Bellagio Committee will explore greater diversity and
quality among selected artists and scholars for the future. It also encourages
the Foundation to pursue more focused and sustained program interactions
based at the facility.

Nairobi and Harare

In year 2000, these two Africa offices will have seven full-time program officers
— five in Nairobi and two in Harare. These officers will conduct ongoing
programs in Food Security, Health Equity, Population, African Higher Education
and Creativity & Culture. As such, the Africa offices will take the lead in the
female education program, the strengthening of Makerere University and the
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collaboration with the Carnegie Corporation of New York and the Ford and
MacArthur foundations in the Partnership to Strengthen African Universities.

Bangkok, Mexico City and San Francisco

The Foundation's offices in Bangkok (Food Security), Mexico City (Food
Security) and San Francisco (Working Communities) execute single-theme
program objectives. These offices are in different stages of development and
implementation. San Francisco just recently opened. Mexico City is just
completing its grantmaking activities and Bangkok is in transition with
adjustments to program priorities currently under way.
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The Foundation makes grants according
tofour program themes and one cross-theme,
which are areas of grantmaking. Each theme and
cross-theme has a program strategy that is explained
in detail in the strategy section of this Report.
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PR . e
CREATIVITY & CULTURE

Resilient and Creative Communities

| RECOVERY, REINVENTION OF CULTURES |

Recovering and Remventing Cuitures Through Museums

Atlatl, Phoenix, Anzona $50,000 toward the costs of the exhibition, “Who Stole
the Tee Pee?"

Bard College, Annandale-on-the-Hudson, New York $25,000 toward the costs of an
extubition of the works of Isaac Julien at the Center for Curatonal Studies Museum

Brandywine Workshop, Philadelphia, Pennsylvamia $25,000 toward the costs of the
exhibition, “Hidden Images Cuban Contemporary Graphic Art."

Carnegie Institute, Pitsburgh, Fennsylvania $35,000 toward the costs of the
extubition, “Popular CultureS (nstallabions by Michael Parekowhai, Ravinder Reddy
and Yinka Shonibare,” at The Andy Warhol Museurn

Cornell University, Ithaca, New York $50,000 toward the costs of the exhibition,
“Coming Up On the Season: Migrant Farm Workers in the Northeast

Comnell University, Jthaca, New York $25,000 toward the costs of the exfutshion,
“Blackness in Cotor Visual Expressions of the Black Arts Movernent,” at the Herbert
F. Jehnson Museurn of Art

Dartmouth College, Hanover, New Hampshire $100,000 toward the costs of the
traveling exhibihion, “Jose Clemente Orozco in the Urited States, 1927-1934." at the
Hood Museurn of Art

The Drawing Center, New York, New York: $50,000 towatd the costs of an exhibition
of the works of Braziian artist, Ana Mana Maiching

Foundation-admunistered project: $17,997 toward the costs of a meeting to plan
a conference on Museums in the Global Public Sphere

Fundacién Ars/TEOR/ETica, San José, Costa Rica $37,000 toward the costs of the
first regional symposium on contemporary arhishic practices (in Central Amenca

Jewish Museum, New York, New York $50,000 toward the costs of the exhibition,
“Morocco Jews and Art in a Mushim Wold °

Mattress Factory, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvarua $50,000 toward the costs of the
extubition, “Visual Sound,” an exiubition by nine artrsts who work with seund
as a pnmary component of their installation work

Mexican Fine Arts Center Museum, Chicago, llinois $100,000 toward the cost
of the extubition, “Mexicanidad "

Mexican Museum, San Francisco, Califorma $50,000 toward the costs of the
extubition, "Covarrutwas The Miguel and Rosa Covarrubias Collection ”

Museurn Associates, Los Angeles, Califorrna $100,000 toward the costs of
exhibition, “The Road to Aztian Art from a Mythue Homeland,” at the Los Angeles
County Museurn of Art

Museumn of American Folk Art, New York, New York $50,000 toward the costs of
the project, “The Quiet in the Land Everyday Life, Contemparary Art and Projecto
Axé,"” n Salvador, Brazil

Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego, La Jolla, Califorria $100,000 toward
the costs of the extubrtion, “UltraBaroque Aspects of Post-Latin Amencan Art ™

Photo Archive Group, E| Segundo, Calformia $48,335 toward the costs of the
Danang Phase of “The Amenican War Project,” an extubibion and book of Vietnam
War-era photographs by Vietnarmese photographers

Robert Abbe Museum of Stone Age Antiquities, Bar Harbor, Maine $100,000
toward {he costs of the exhibition, “The Four Mollys Women of the Dawn *

Santa Monica Museurn of Art, Santa Momica, Califormia, $25,000 toward the costs
of the extubition, “East of the River Chicano Art Collectors Anonymaous "

School of Plastic Arts, San Juan, Puerto Rico $50,000 toward the costs of the
*Pepdn Osono i Puerto Rico Project ™

Seattle Art Museum, Seattle, Washington. $100,000 toward the costs of the
exhbition, "Treasures of a Lost Calization Ancient Chinese Art From Sichuan *

Smathsoman Institution, Washington, D C $50,000 toward the costs of Phase 1l
Lo eatoitkaexhibifion, “A More Perfect Union,” on Japanese-

fmm pt CalifogriafLosAngRles, Los Angeles, Calfornia $200,000 toward the
ECstSigh :gﬁm n, ‘Chedddf Rice Spint and Sustenance in Asia” at the Fowler
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University:of Colorade at Boulder, Boulder, Colorado $35,000 toward the costs of
the exhibibion, “Vietnamese Lacquer Painting— A New Age "

Worcester Art Museum, Worcester, Massachusetts $75,000 toward the costs of
the exhibition, *Antioch The Lost Ancient Criy ™

Cultural Recovery Projects

Antonia Pantoja, New York, New York $75,000 toward the costs of an oral hustory/
dacumentation progect centered on her life and work in the Puerto Recan community

Dance Theater Workshop, New York, New Yorkk $100,000 toward the costs of
extending the program actiwities of the Suitcase Fund, an international network of
choreographers, into the Mekong River region of Southeast Asia

Foundation for the Study of independent Social Ideas, New York, New York
$86,500 toward the costs of publishing a special ssug of Dissent magazine entitled,
“The New Killing Fields *

Legacy Project, New York, New York $33,573 toward “The Legacy Project,”
an exploration of arbishic responses to large-scale, man-made trauma

Lower East Side Tenement Museum, New York, New York. $250,000 to support the
development of the Internahional Coalition of Histonc Site Museums of Conscience

Preserving Traditional Art Forms

Aid to Artisans, Fariungton, Connecticut $75,000 toward the costs of a project
enbitled, “Crafts in the Land of Rice Culture *

Alaska Native Heritage Center, Anchorage, Alaska $150,000 toward the costs of
“Kayak Surnimer,” an exhitytion and preservation project documenting the use of
tradibonal watercraft in Alaska

Asfa Society, New York, New York $50,000 toward the costs of a tour of "Uttar-
Priyadarshi {The Final Beatitude)” by the Chorus Repertory Theater, a performance
group from Mampur

Asian Cultural Council, New York, New York $100,000 toward the costs of a Forum
on Arts & Culture in the Mekong Region held in Bangkok, Thaland

Asian Cultural Council, New York, New York $150,000 to prowide continued
support for the Cambodian Arts Mentorship Program

Center for Traditional Music and Dance, New York, New York- $100,000 toward
the costs of the "Commumnity Cultural Inibatives” and “Mew York The Global City "

Conservancy for Tibetan Art and Culture, Washington, D C  $50,000 toward
the costs of Tibetan-Amencan parbrcipation n “Tibetan Culture Beyond the Land
of Snows,” a centerpiece of the Year 2000 Smithsonian Folklife Festival

Mongol-American Cultural Association, New Brunswick, New Jersey $25,000
toward the costs of humanies programs related o the Festival of Mongoha 2000

New England Foundatwon for the Arts, Boston, Massachusatts. $46,000 toward the
costs of implementation support for a senes of Cambodian artist community residencies

Unton of Community Museums of Oaxaca, A.C., Qaxaca, Mexco $66,000
toward the costs of a training center for indigenous groups to establish their own
community museums

|_UNDERSTANDING CULTURAL COMPONENTS OF WELL-BEING |

Partperships Affirming Communmily Transformation (PACT)

Altemate Roots, Atlanta, Georgia $65,000 toward the costs of an audience-
development program for underserved, rural and/or new presenters, and commurnity
groups throughout the southeastern United States

AMDSART, Johnstown, Pennsyivania. $140,000 toward the costs of creating pubiic
art preces and a wisitors” center at abandoned mine sites in Vintondate, Pennsylvania

Appalshop, Whitesburg, Kertucky $50,000 toward the costs of the second phase
of the Central Appalachian FestivalfArtist and Community Gathering

Arab Community Center for Economic and Social Services, Dearbormn, Michugan
$105,000 toward the costs of the project “Living the Present, Chenshing the Past:
Voices from Arab Detroit *

Elders Share the Arts, Brooklyn, New York $47,865 toward the costs of a media
project on the Inves of new immigrants in the borough of Gueens, New York

Foundation-adnunistered project: $95,000 for admmistrative costs related to the
Foundation's Partnerstups Affirming Commumty Transformation {PACT} program

Intermedia Arts, Minneapols, Minnesota $150,000 toward the costs of planning
and creating public art projects in the Midtown Greenway area of Minneapohs

Philadelphia Folklore Project, Phuladelplia, Pennsylvania $90,000 toward the
costs of building youth folk-art ensembles in Philadelpfua, using Chinese and Khmer
classical dance tradtions

Praject Row Houses, Houston, Texas- $50,000 toward the costs of two rounds of
arbists’ residencies and mstallations in renovated shotgun-style houses in the third
ward neighbothood of Houston
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Social and Public Ast Resource Center, Venice, Calfornia $1 33.1735 toward -t
the costs of completing designs for the next four sections of the Great Wall of
Los Angeles mural

Taos Day School, Taos, New Mexico $19,000 for use by (ts Service Learmning
Inihatve project toward the casts of the “Corral Reconstruction Project,” an initiative
designed to connect students, community members and tnbal members i a process
that will document and reconstruct the hustoncal corral system on the Taos Pueblo

Trustees of the Corcoran Gallery of Art, Washington, D C  $60,000 toward the costs
of the CANVAS project, to build community amang at-nsk youth in Washington, D C

University of Maine, Orono, Maine $146,400 toward the costs of a project to revive
the language and culture of the Natve Amencan Passarmadquoddy communibes of Maine

Village of Arts and Humanities, Phuladelphia, Pennsylvania $150,000 toward the
costs of three community park-building projects in Narth Philadelphia

Wing Luke Memorial Foundation, Seattle, Washington $50,000 toward the costs of
a cultural project and exhibition on the topic of Astan-Pacific Amencan women in the
garment manufacturing work force in Seattle.

Youth Radio, Berkeley, Calfornia $150,000 toward the costs of developing a nabonal
netwark of communy-based youth broadcasting partnars

Cuitural Indicators/Cuitural Policy

Canada Council for the Arts, Ottawa, Ontarna $100,000 toward the costs of the
World Summit on the Arts and Culture, an intemational conference of arts councils
and arts-funding bodies held in Ottawa, Ontano, December 2000

Center for Arts and Culture, Washington, D C  $200,000 toward the costs of
ongoing activities

Columbia College Chicago, Chicago, llinois $50,000 toward the costs of a research
study of the infarmal arts in Amenca at the Chicago Center for Arts Policy

Fordham University, New York, New York $240,000 toward the costs of a Nahonal
Social Survey Project to develop, collect, analyze and report a set of indicators of
creativity and cutture

National Coalition Against Censorship, New York, New York $30,000, toward
the costs of a feasibility study of a new policy initiative focusing on artistic and
intellectual freedom. . N

Princeton University, Pnnceton, New Jersey $286,670 for use by its Center for Arts
and Cultural Policy Studies toward the costs of a study to advance knowledge on the
debate surrounding cuitural conflict in the conternperary United States

RAND, Santa Momica, Calformia $259,621 toward the costs of the ncluston of the
media arts in the “Integrative Assessment of the Arts” study

Social Science Research Council, New York, New York $765,028 toward the costs
of a fellowship program on the Expenence of Art m Society

Urban Institute, Washington, D C : $753,984, toward the costs of the Arts and
Culture Indicators (n Community Bulding Project 11l

Creativity, Knowledge and Freedom in the Public Sphere

[ GLOBAL CIVIL SOCIETY AND CULTURE |

African Books Collective, Ltd., Oxford, United Kingdom $68,503, toward the costs
of promaction, research and dissemination activibies

African Publishers’ Network, Harare, Zimbabwe $418,000 toward the costs of their
strategic plan for 1999-2002

African Scnpt Development Fund, Harare, Zimbabwe: $200,000 toward the costs
of Year |1l of the Fund's work

AlUrdun Al-Jadid Research Center, Amman, Jordan $161,480 toward the costs
of the third phase of the Social History of Jordan project

Caribbean Publishers Network, Kingstan, Jamaica $25,000 toward the costs of
a conference at the Bellagio Study and Conference Center (n November 2000

Council on Foreign Relations, New York, New York $39,500 toward the costs of
*Ethruc Conflict, Partition and Post-Conflict Reconstruchen,” a study that assesses the
rote of partibion In solving ethnic conflict and formulates strateges for post-conflict
reconstruction and stabilization

Eastern Michigan University, Ypsilanti, Michigan $24.550 toward the costs of a
conference to ba held at the University of Tehran entitled, “Religion, Gender Rofes,
Demacratization and Market Transibon Pilot Surveys of Changing Worldviews of
Islamic Publics—Methodological and Substantve Issues ”

Economic and Social History Foundation of Turkey, Istanbul, Turkey- $150,100
toward the costs of the Local History Imbatives and museurn prajects

Feminist Press, New York, New York $548,000 toward the costs of the senes
“Women Wnting Afnca "

International African Institute, London, United Kingdorm $76,000 toward the costs
of the Bellagio Publishing Network newsletter and Weh site

International African Insbtute, London, United Kingdom  $8,000 toward the costs
of travel, accommaodation and subsistence for four international participants to attend
a seminar on Afnican cultural publishmg m Mapube, Mozambigue

International Assaciation for the Study of Persian-Speaking Societies, Stony Brook,
New York $150,000 toward the expansion of their regional councils into several
Persian-speaking regions including Iran

Jerusalem International Book Fair, Jerusalem, Israel $31,170 toward the costs
of bringing authors and publishers from Mushm countnes to the 20th bienmal
Jerusalemn International Book Fair

PEN Amencan Center, New York, New York $51,100 for a pilot program to
strengthen the ability of PEN centers in the Global South to build civil societies locally,
and give stronger leaderstup to the global organization as a whole

PEN American Center, New York, New York $297,482 toward the costs of
strengthening International PEN and 11 PEN centers in Afnica, Central Amenca and
Southeast Asia

Research and Technology Exchange Group, Pans, France $21,722, toward the
casts of the technical secretanat of the Afncan Media Partners Network in year 2000

Royal Institute for Inter-Faith Studies, Amman, Jordan $50,000 toward the costs
of a conference on Islam and science, to take place m Amman, June 2001.

Smithsonian Institution, Wastungton, D C  $59,282 fora series of meetings between
'S and lraman museurn officials on strengthening museum practices in Iran

Transifrica Forum, Washington, D C  $40,151 toward the costs of a senes of cultural
exchanges betwean Cuba and the United States entitled, “Afro Amenca in Cuba *

Unwersity of Oklahoma, Normman, Oklahorma $14,978 tow
conferences on the status of Jerusalem

Harvard University, Cambndge, Massachusetts. $264,000 toward the costs of the
Pluralism Project World Rehgions in Amenca

Interreligious Coordinating Council in Israel, Jerusalem, Israel $100,000 toward
the ongoing costs of the Council’s Education Center

Islamic-Chnistian National Dialogue Committee, Hazmieh, Lebanon $38,000
toward the costs of interreligious actmbies aimed at ading the peace process in
Lebanon and the entire Micddle Eastem region

Mediation Network for Northern Ireland, Belfast, Northern Ireland  $43,390 toward
the ongoing costs of the Churches Programme

World Conference on Religion and Peace, New York, New York $1,350,000 toward
the costs of s religion and civil society program

[ HUMANITIES RESIDENCY FELLOWSHIPS AND RESEARCH |

This program is a competitive program making grants to universities, community
groups and other nonprofits.

American Council of Learned Societies, New York, New York $399.850 toward
the costs of the Burkhardt Fellowstups program

Central University of Venezuela, Caracas $250,000 toward the costs of a program
of Rockefeller Foundation Resident Fellowships i the Humanities at the Centro de
Investigaciones Past-Doctorales to study the dimensions of glabalization, culture and
social transformation in Latin Amenica

City College, City University of New York, New York, New York $76,000 for use by
the Dominican Studies Institute toward the costs of a two-part transnational confer-
ence entitled, “Up from the Margins Diversity as Challenge of the Democratic MNation "

Emory University, Atlanta, Georgia $504,500 toward the costs of a collaborative
program between the Center for the Study of Public Scholarshup and representatives
of South Africa's university, arts and museum commumities

Federal University of Minas Gerais, Belo Honzonte, Brazil $124,000 toward the
costs of a series of confarences entitled, “Margins {Margens/Margenes},” to be held
n Brazil and Argentina

Foundation-administered project: $80,000 for administrative costs of the Resident
Fellowships in the Humanities
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Graduate School and University Center, City Univensty of New York, New York, New
York $50,000 for use by ds Center for Gay and Leshian Studies toward the costs of
its International Resource Metwork project

Harvard Unwersity, Cambridge, Massachusetts $245 000 toward the ¢asts of a senes
of conferances entitled, ‘New Amencas " aimed at developing new understandings of
Amencan socigty within 2 global context

Howard Umversity, Washington, D C $22 960 toward the costs of 3 seminar senes
gxarmining slavery v a comparative context

La Morada Corporation for the Development of Wormen, Sanbago, Chile $66,000
toward the costs of "Wamen s Memory a Knowledge Excluded From History,' 2 senes
of workshops conferences and seminars

Uibrary of Congress, Washington D C $256,000 ta support three sympogia on
“Islarmic Societies and Globalization ™

National Humarnbes Center, Research Tnangle Park North Carolina $500 000
toward the costs of an arnual award for bumanistic actuevement in nformation
technology

Mew York Umiversity, New York New York $240 D00 toward the costs of the
Hemisphenc Institute’s annual encuentros seminars for scholars, arbists and students
to be held m Latin Ametica

Social Science Research Council, New York New York $132 800 for use by the Latin
America Program toward the ¢osts of a project on collective memory (0 South Amenca

Stanford Unrversity, Stanford, Calforma $295,000 toward the costs of a program
of Rockefeller Foundation Resident Fellowships i the Humarbes at the Stanford
HMurnanstes Center to study the black performing arts

st Studhes:(nstitete, Lima, Peru $250,000 toward the costs of a
hot frockefellerFolindaliy
ntanamsm m Conternporary Peruwian Culture
"L.

Unrversaty of Caldormia, Davis, Daws, Calfornia $79 092 to relml?urse expenses
incurred i connection with a program of Res dent Fellowships in the Humanibies at
the Indigenous Research Center of the Amencas

Unwversity of Califomla, Riverside, Riversile, Calformia $330 000 toward the costs
of a program of Rockeleller Foundation Resident Fellowships n thet-mmamtles at the
Center for Ideas and Soorety entitied ' Global Migraten  Soceal Change and Cuktural
Transmisson

Uneversity of California, Santa Barbara, Santa Barbarg, Calfomia $288 475 towand
the coste of a program of Rockefeller Foundation Residant Fellowshlst 1 the Humnanites
at the Carter for Chicano Studies entiied “The Dynamics of Chicanafo Literacy

Uneversaly of Chicago, Chicago, |nois $60,000 toward the costs of the conference,
“The Fulure of the Quesr Past A Transnabional Conference ™

University of Hawan at Manoa, Honolulu, Hawan  $250 000 toward the costs of a
program of Rockefeller Foundation Resident Fellowships in the Hurmaribies at the
Office for Wornen's Research entided “Gender and Globalization in Asia and the Pacific

Universily of lowa, lowa City lowa $165,000 to expand the work of an imibal seres
of Hurmanrhes Residency Fellowships at the Intemational Forum for Ll S Studies by
aoffening addihonal fellowships to Latin Amencan scholars

Unwersity of Motre Dame, Notre Dame Indiana $350,000 toward the costs of

a program of Rockefeller Foundahon Resident Felfowships in the Humanrties at the
Joan B Kroc Institute for Intemational Peace Studies entitled, * Rellénn, Canflict
and Peacebuilding

Universily of Oregon, Eugene Oregon $31,650 for use at the Center for the
Study of Wamen in Sacialy to support a conference (n connection wath a program
of Rockefeller Foundation Resident Fellowstups (n the Humanibies ﬂl'nat 15 bamng
hosted by the Center

Unnversaty of Texas at Aushin, Austin Texas $295 000 toward the!costs of a pogram
of Rockefeller Foundation Resident Fellowships in the Hurmnanibies At the Institute of
Latin Amencan Studies and the Center for Mexican Amencan Studis entitlsd, Raca,
Rights and Resources i the Amencas ’

University of Washington, Sealtie Washmgton $45 013 for use by the Simpson
Center for the Humanities foward the costs of a meeting of the Congsorturn of
Humanitks Centers and Institutes enbitied, “Thinlang Rights, Engaging Communities *
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Rhizome Communications, New YSrk, Ni!:w York $75,000 toward the costs of the

Virgima Foundabon for the Humambes and Public Policy, Charlottesville, Vigimia 1
$100,025 toward the costs of a conference entitled, “Community, Identlty and Belief
w Postwar Circumstances ”

| COLLABORATIVE PROGRAMMING IN INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, GLOBAL NORMS |

Mexico-North Research Network, El Paso, Texas $66,000 toward the costs of
facitating cornmunity participation in the planning of a project directed toward
understanding and conserving the cultural, ingwstic and biological diversity of

the Sierra Tarahurmara region of northern Mexico

Smithsomian Instrution, Washington, D € $250,000 toward the pilat phase of
“Srruthsorian WorldMusicNet corn,” a project to prornote musical and cultural
hentage around the world through the use of digital technologies

Society for Internabional Development, Rome, Italy $107,570 toward the costs of
a project entitled, *Power, Culture, Identity Women and the Politics of Place "

Creativity and Innovation in a Global Age

[ CREATIVE ENVIRONMENTS IN THE DIGITAL AGE |

Acadenma Europaea, London, Umited Kingdom $44,951 toward the costs of a
Collaboration and Ownership in the Digital Economy (CODE) conference to be held
at Queens’ College, Apnl 2001, Cambndge \

Alfred University, Alfred, New York $85,000 toward the costs of establishing an
“Expenments in Science-Technology-Art Residences (E STAR)Y” program at the
tnstitute for Electromc Arts

Amencan Library Assotiation, Washington, D € $100,000 toward the costs of
a forum, “Digital Technology, Information: Policy and the Future of Libranes *

Art & Science Collaborations, Inc., Staten Island, New York $85,000 toward
the costs of the ArtSc12001 Symposium and the "Artists & Scientists for Humanity
4 Think-Tanks” project

Art and Science Laboratory, Santa Fe, New Mexco $100,000 toward the costs of
an Aesthetic Research Program to explore the dialogue between the conternporary
arts and sciences

Computer Professionals for Socal Responsibility, Palo Alte, Galrfornia $20.000\

toward the costs of “Shaping the Network Society,” a symposium addressing the
future of the public sphere In cyberspace

Cyber-Site New Media Research Center, Inc., Overland Park, Kansas $80,000 toward
the costs of the New Media information Gateway Database, designed to facihitate the
disseminahon of knowdedge and information on new media and digrtal technologies

Downtown Community Television Center, Inc., New York, New York $75,000
toward the costs of programming for the “Cyberstudio for the Arts,” a state-of-the-art
studio that has the abilty to broadcast simuttaneously on the Interet and cable TV

Independent Curators Internatronal, New York, New York $50,000 toward the
costs of "Telematic Connections The Virtual Embrace,” a traveling extibihion of recent
network and Internet-based art projects

[nshitute for Advanced Study, Pnnceton, New Jersey $85,000 toward the costs
of a residency program to study the social, political and econcrmic impheations of
developments in new media and information technology

International Film Seminars, Inc., New York, New York $40,180 toward the costs
of a Digital Flaherty seminar to explore artists concerns about aesthetics, content
and practice in digital technologies

Leonardo, San Francisco, Calfornia $64,308 toward the costs of two publishing
prajects, "A-Lie Art" and “Generative Systerns "

Location One, Mew York, New York $187,500 toward the costs of a virtual lab to bnng
together artists and prograrnmers for the exchange of ideas, projects and prachces

New York Foundation for the Arts, New York, New York $25,000 toward the
costs of the planning process for *Crossover,” Web Lab's New Meda workshop
for ndependent ilmmakers and wdeographets

Mew York Foundation for the Arts, New York, New York $100,000 toward the
costs of Web Lab's “Crossover”, a new-media workshop for independent filrn and
video makers

New York Unmversity, New York, New York $20,000 toward the costs of the
workshop, "Tactile Media The Impact of New Media on Cultural Actwvism and
Political Engagement ”

Perforramg Acts Journal, Hew York, New York $63,000 toward the costs of nine
tssues of PAJ A Joumnal of Performance and Art focusing on electronic and digital
media and performance

Performing Arts Labs, London, United Kingdom $20,000 toward the caosts of Lit
Lab Il, a residential laboratory for 10 arhists to explore creative possibilities between
new and traditional literary forms

archival and technological development of the Rhizome ArtBase, an online resource
for the preservation of Internet art

Social Science Research Council, New York, New York $99,941 toward the costs of
a program to generate social-science research on culture, creatwity and information
technology

Unwersity of Paris, Pans, France $75,000 toward the costs of the research and
development of a DVD-ROM on the works of artist Nam June Paik

University of Southern California, Los Angeles, Califorma $100,000 toward the
costs of “Labynnth  Level Four,™ a research initiative on interactive narrative at the
Annenberg Center

| FILMVIDEG FELLOWSHIPS AND INCUBATORS |

Kelly Anderson and Tami Gold, New York, New York $35,000 toward the costs of
“Every Mother's Son,” a docurnentary about New York mothers whose sons have
been killed by palice

The Art Instiute of Chicago, Chicago, Mincis $36,129 toward the costs of the Video
Data Bank project of the Schoal of the Art Institute of Chicago to distrbute “Frames of
Reference Reflechons on Media,” an exhibition of works ongmally funded through the
Rockefeller FilmAideo/Muthmedia Fellowships program

Peter Bratt, San Francisco, Califorma $35,000 toward the costs of a narrative film
that retells the passion of Jesus Christ focusing on four wornen all named Mary

Miguel Calderén, Condesa, Mexico $20,000 toward the costs of “La Discipula

del Velocimetre (The Speedometer's Disciple},” an expenmental docurnentary on
an upper-class Mexican woman with psychic powers who drives race cars on the
professional circwt

EarthWays Foundation, Mahbu, Calformia $42 827 Jdward the costs i a fil
documenting the World Festival of Sacred Music

Abu Labtf A Palestinian Road Dhary,” an expenmentd
filmmaker’s childhood

Foundation-admnistered project: $277,506, for a fe

National Video Resources o manage the Film/ideog m
and its communications intiative
Marlon Fuentes, Orange, California $35,000 towa omat —1 L

Geographic,” an expenmental documentary about Flllpino-Amencan |dent|ty

Charlene Gilbert, Buffalo, New York $35,000 toward the costs of “The Hennetta
Lacks Film Project,” a documentary film that explores an overlooked chapter in
Amencan medical history in the context of bioethics and the current debates
surrounding the patent of genes and human biology

Eduardo Herrera-Fermnéndez, Coyoacan, Mexico $20,000 toward the costs of
“El Borrego Cimimarrén de Isla Tiburén (The Wiid Sheep of Tiburon Isiand),”
a documentary about strategies used to conserve a species of Mexican sheep

Intemational Media Resource Exchange, New York, New York $37,300 toward
the costs of a translation service for Latin Amencan filrmmakers

$Sharon Lockhart, Los Angeles, Calfornta $35,000 toward the costs of *No-No
Ikebana,” a film inspired by the work of avant-garde Ikebana artist, Toshie Yokos

Lato Lopez and Esteban Zul, Los Angeles, Calforma $35,000 toward the costs of
“The Virtual Varo," a Web site that promotes open discussion about racism, sexism,
ant-immugrant hystena and police brutality in the Latino community

Museum of Modern Art, New York, New York $30,000 toward the costs of the Web
site component of the “Videc Rewind” project, an overview of video's development as
an art form

Natwonal Council of La Raza, Washington, D¢ $50,000 toward the costs of the
second annual conference on “Latine Media  Challenges for the New Millennium ™

National Video Resources, Inc., New York, New York $201,611 toward the costs
of the “Video Metwork on Race,” a coalition of nonprofit orgamizations nationwide
that will use independent widess in their programeming efforts to combat racism and
promote tolerance

Emiko Omon, San Francisco, California $35,000 toward the costs of “Mooch,” a
narrative film about a middle-aged Japanese-Amencan man and his father who has
Alzheimer's disease

Sam Pollard, New York, New York $35,000 toward the costs of "Native Strangers
Race i Amenca in the Mew Millennturm,” a si-part television senes on the personal
hustones of Latino, Asian, Afncan-Amencan, European-Amernican, Native Amencan
and mixed-race peoples

Carlos Salces, Mexico City, Mexico $20,000 toward the costs of “Tnlogia (Triogy),"
a senes of three short films about death
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Bllen Spiro, Leander, Texas $35,000 toward the costs of “The Technomadic Circus ™
a documentary about 2 communty circus group who des gn sustamable (ving systems

Caspar Stracke, Maw York New York $35 000 loward the costs of “Out of Joint "
awideo essay on sc ent iic attempts o manipulate t me

Chns Sullvean, Chicago, linois $35,000 toward the costs of “Consuming Spints,’
a feature-length amimation about three people in a small industral town who work
at a local newspaper,

Isaac Webb, Mew Orleans, Louistana $35,000 toward the costs of * Blackbottorn,'
a feature-length filim about a blue-collar Afncan Amencan community

David Williams, Richmond Virginia $35 Q00 toward the costs of two feature films
shot in digital wideo that examine family relabonships in an interracial comrmun ity

| MULTI ARTS PRODUCTION FUND |

Amernican Repertory Theatre, Cambindge, Massachusetts $25,000 to support the
production of “Drawn to Death A Three Panel Opera * a mulbmedia theater work by
artist Art Spiegelman and composer Phillip Johnston

Arena Stage, Washington DC  $20,000 1o support the creation and development
of “Alleys and Pathways The Southwest D C Project,” an oral history-based perform-
ance work by playwnght Rebecca Rice

Arts at St Ann's, Brooklyn, New York 325,000 to support the ereation of "Sang
Cycle for Puppets,” a puppet theater work by arhist Jarie Geiser and composer
Vic Chestnutt

Asia Society, New York, New York $25,000 to support the productien of “Floating
Box A Story in Chinatown “ an opera by composer Jason Hwang, ibrettist Cathenne
Filloux, and dwector Jean Randich

Bang on a Can, New York New York $20 000 to support the creabon and performance
of a work for new music chamber ensemble by jazz composer Caal Taylor

Bales College, Lewiston Maina $25,000 for use by its Bates Dance Feshval to
support the creatton and development of ' The Caravan Project,” a tap and wideo
performance work by tap artist Herbin Van Cayseele, video artist Jean de Boysson,
and musician Kenny Muhammad

Borderlands Theater, Tucson, Anzona 525,000 to support the creabion and
produchion of "Electrdad ® a Chicano adaptation of Sophocles™* Electra” setin

the Anzona desert by playwnght Luis Alfaro and director Barclay Goldsmith

Chuldrew's Theatre Company, Minneapolis, Minnesota $20,000 to suppart the
creation and producton of ‘The Beggar's Strke, ' a mulhmed a theater work by
playwnight Carlyle Brown

Cornarstone Theater Company, Los Angeles Califorma $20,000 {o support the
creation and production of the * City-Wide Bndge Project,” a mulbieultural, mulbilingual
theater production by playwnght Alison Carey, director Bill Rausch, and composer
Michael Abeis

Danspace Project, New York New York $25,000 to support the creation and
production of *Asunder,” a dance theater work by choreographer Yin Mie, composer
John Zam designer X0 Bing, and poet Mark Strand

Elevator Repair Sennce, New York Mew York $20,000 to support the craation and
praduction of " Experts,” a theater work by theater artists John Colling Steve Bodow
and Susie Sokol

Foundation-administered project $64 000 for costs incurred i connection with
the 2000 MAP Fund

Foundry Theatre, New York, New York $15,000 to support the redzarch and
develapment of "Fifth Exotie, ' a multimedia theater work by director Melame Joseph
and performer Ching Valdes-Aran

Frontera@Hyda Park Theatre, Austin Texas $20,000 to support the praducteon of
“can flama,” a theater work by playwnight Sharon Bndglarth, director Laune Carlos,
and composer Loutdes Perez

Gamalan Sekar Jaya, El Cernto, Calfornia $20 000 1o support the creation and
production of a large-scale work combimng Balinese dance drama, gamelan music
and puppetry by theater artist ! Wayan Dibia, composer | Dewa Putu Berata and
shadow lighting deskaner Larry Reed.

George Coates Performance Works, San Francisco Cahfornia $20,000 to support

the ereation and production of * Batter Bad News ' a multimedia live and onling
perfermance piece

Great Small Works, New York, Mew York $20,000 to support the creation and
production of * The Sabie Cabaret Project,” a multimedia theater work by director
John Bell designers Stephen Kaphn and Mark Sussman, and piamist lMargaret Leng Tan

Higher Grounsd Projects, New York, New York $20 000 to support the commussioning
and producton of “Get Out of the House ™ a mmang participatory dance party/concert by
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choreographer Sarah Skaggs and billboard arbists Marc Pierson and Tony Cokes

House Foundation for the Arts, New York, New York $20,000 to support the creation
and development of “American Archeology #3,” a site-specific multidisciplinary work
by artist Meredith Mank

Intersection for the Arts, San Francisco, Califorma $20,000 to support the creation
and production of "Mission Indians,” a theater work by playwnght Greg Sams

Jazz Institute of Chicago, Chicago, llinois $20,000 to support the creation and
production of “Conjectures,” an hour-long music work by composerfperformers Trichy
Sankaran, Rudresh Mahanthappa and Vijay lyer

Jump Start Performance Company, San Antonig, Texas $20,000 to support the
creation and production of “To My Chagnn,” a solo performance work by writer/
performer Peggy Shaw and composer Vivian Stoll

The Katchen, New York, New York $25,000 to support the creation and production
of “Conference of the Birds,” a multimedia performance work by media artist Shinn
Neshat and composer Sussan Deytum

Kitka Women’s Vocal Ensemble, Oakland, Cahformia $2G,000 to support the
creation and production of “The New Folksongs Commissioning Project,” three new
works of music for female vocal ensemble by composers Dawid Lang, Chen Yi and
Janet Kutulas

Kronos Quartet, San Francisco, Calforma $20,000 to support the creation and
praduction of “Aegean Crossings,” a work for sinng quartet and Turkish percussion
by cormposer/perommer Burhan Ocal

Lower Manhattan Cultural Council, New York, New York $25,000 to support the
development of “Spectropia,” an evening-length interactive media performance by
arbist Tom Dove

Ma-¥| Theatre Ensemble, Mew York, New York $15,000 to support the creation and
production of *Middle Finger," a theater work by playwright Han Ong, composer
Fabian Otispo, and director Loy Arcenas

Montclair State University, Upper Montclair, New Jersey $25,000 to support the
creation and production of “Mather Courage and Her Children,” a mulirmedia theater
work told from an Afncan-Amencan female’s perspective by director Dermetnia Royals,
choreographer Anita Gonzalez, and playwnght Robbie McCauley

Museum of Contemporary Art, Chicago, llincis $15,000 to support the research
and development of “Iceland,” a solo performance work by theater artist Roger
Guenever Smith

Music-Theatre Group, New York, New York $25,000 to support the creation of
“Fangs,” a chamber opera by composer Diedre Murray and water Cornelius Eady

Mew York Foundaton for the Arts, New Yark, New York $25,000 to support the
creation and production of “Hamet Tubman A Joumney to the South,” an evening-length
surte of music by composer/performers Brandon Ross, J T Lewis and Melvin Gibbs

Painted Brde Art Center, Philadelphia, Pennsybama  $20,000 to support the creation
and prod uction of “Dogon PM," a multimedia performance work by wnterdirector
Homer Jackson, composer Douglas Ewart, composer Mogauwane Mahloele, media
arbist Lloyd Lawrence, and choreographer Sabela Gnmes

Performance Space 122, New York, New York $20,000 to support the ¢creation and
praduction of “Bird Brain,” a dance project by choreographer Jennifer Monson and
composer James Lo

Performing Artservices, New York, New York $20,000 to support the creation and
produchion of “Celeshal Excursions,” an opera by composer Robert Ashlay

Public Theater, New York, New York $25,000 to support the creation and production
of "The Book of the Dead (Second Avenue),” a mulimedia theater work by composer/
director John Moran

Seattle Chuldren’s Theatre, Seattle, Washington $20,000 to support the creation
and produchion of “Mask of the Urncorn Warnor,” a theater work by playwrght ¥ York
and director Linda Hartzell

Spiderwoman Theater, New York, New York $20,000 to support the creabion of
“Persistence of Memory,” a multimedia theater piece by theater artists Munel Miguel,
Lisa Mayo and Gloria Miguel .

Stephen Petronio Dance Company, New York, New York $25,000 to support the
creation and production of “Strange Attractors Part I1,” a multimedia dance work by
choreographer Stephen Petronio, composer James Lavelle, and artist Anish Kapoor

StretyRingside, Mew York, New York $25,000 to support the creation and productian
of “Action Herces,” a mulhdisciplinary work by choreographer Elizabeth Streb, wnter
Lara Flanders, and designer Stop Mercier

Symphony Space, New York, New York $15,000 to support the creation and
production of a dance/music/theater piece by composer/performar Laune Anderson
and choreographer David Neumann

Trisha Brown Dance Company, Mew York, New York $20,000 to support the
creation of “Luct Mie Traditric),” a dance opera by choreographer Trisha Brown

University of Massachusetts at Amherst, Amherst, Massachusetts $25,000 to
support the production of the "2050 Project,” a theater work by wnter/performers
Steven Sapp and Mildred Ruiz at the New WORLD Theater

Walker Art Center, Minneapolis, Minnesota $30,000 to support the creation and
developrment of “The End of Cinernatics,” a multimedra opera by theater artist
John Jesurun and composer Mikel Rouse

The Working Theatre Company, New York, New York $25,000 to support the
creation and production of “Abundance,” a multimedia theater prece by theater artist
Marty Pottenger

World Music Institute, New York, New York $20,000 to support the creation and
production of "From Rajasthan to Andalusia,” a dance and music work by choreogra-
phers/performers Antomo El Pipa, Amaud Azzouz, Bachu Khan and Sayetn Sapen
Yerba Buena Center for the Arts, San Francisco, Calforma $25,000 to support

the creation and production of two evening-length works for cello by performer Joan
Jeanrenaud, composer Hamza el Din, and wideo artist Secungho Cho

Zacche S F, San Francisco, Calfornta $25,000 to support the creation and production
of “Picture Baywiew,” an nterdisciplinary site-specific wark by choreographer Joanna
Haigood, compaoser Lauren Wainger, and video artist Mary Ellen Strom

EXPLORATIONS

Amencan Composers Forum, Saint Paul, Minnesota $450,000 toward the costs
of "Continental Harmony," @ nabonal commissioning program designed to serve
underserved and rural communities

Bang on a Can, New York, New York $50,000 toward the costs of the Bangon a
Can Marathon 2000 at the Brooklyn Academy of Music's Next Wave Festival

Brooklyn Academy of Music, New York, New York $300,000 tewandsbke
the Next Wave Festival

Center for Arts and Culture, Washington, D C  $100,000 towald the To
ONRoINg activities

performances at SummerStage 2000

Creative Capital Foundation, New York, New York $200,000, towa
ongoing actrihies

Creative Time, Mew York, New York $45,000 toward the costs of “Creative Time
the Anchorage 2000,” a summmer-long, muitidisciplinary festival explonng the cross-
ferblization of new media, art, music and film

ts of its

Cultural Odyssey, San Francisco, Califorma $30,000 toward the costs of presenting
emerging artists at the 2001 Cultural Odyssey Perfarmance Festival

Foundatron-admimistered project: $15,000, for activities of Grantrmakers in Film and
Electronic Media

Grantmakers in the Arts, Seattle, Washington $15,000 toward the costs of its
2000-2001 activibes

Lincoln Center for the Performung Arts, New York, New York $75,000 toward the
costs of the fifth season of the Lincoln Center Festival

Mational Association of Artists' Orgamzations, Washington, D C $75,000 toward
the costs of the 12th Nabional Conference on Defying Artistic Isolation, Leadership
Developrnent and Operational Systemns

Mational Associatwon of Latino Arts and Culture, San Antonio, Texas $50,000,
toward the costs of planning and convening the third nathonal conference on Lating
arts and culture, “Muchas Culturas/Un Pueblo "

New Haven International Festival of Arts & Ideas, New Haven, Connacticut
$40,000 toward the costs of programming that supports the cultural hentage and
aristic achievements of Africa, Southeast Asia, Latin Amenca and within Mushm
communibes in the 2000 International Feshval of Arts & Ideas

New York Foundation for the Arts, New York, New York $25,000 teward the costs
of “Ambassadors for the Arts Reunion,” a planning campaign on behalf of the
National Endowment for the Arts' 35th Anniversary

New York Foundation for the Arts, New York, New York $75,000 toward the costs
of the project, “A Cultural Plan for New York City "

Tnsha Brown Dance Company, New York, New York $80,000 toward the casts of
actvities and performances marking the 30th anniversary of the company

Umiversity of Massachusetts at Amherst, Amherst, Massachusetts $100,000
toward the costs of the New WORLD Theater's “Intersection 11" 3 three day event
focusing on international, interdisciphnary and intercultural work in the theater

Urban Institute, Washington, D C $100,000 toward the costs of the new media
component of the “Study on Support Mechanisms for Artists n the United States *
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Applying Science and Technology

| ASIAN RICE BIOTECHNOLOGY NETWORK |

Agricultural Genetics Institute, Hanon, Vietnarm  $100,000 for research to utihze
molecular marker-axded breeding to develop new elite and hybnd nce vaneaties with
enhanced resistance to bactenal and fungat diseases as well as insect pests for
Vietnamese nce farmers

Center for the Application of Molecular Biology to International Agriculture,
Canberra, Australia $50,000 to develop and disseminate new technologies for
genetic analysis and its apphcabion o nce breeding

Central Research Institute for Food Crops, Bogor, Indonesia $50,000 to conduct
field trials of nce cultvars improved through marker-aided selechion of appropnate
bactenal leaf blrght ressstance genes for Java and Bah, Indonesia

China National Rice Research Institute, Hangzhou, China $5,300 toward the costs
of traiming (n nonradioactive protocols for nuclerc acid labeling and detection for two
soientists from North Korea

China National Rice Research institute, Hangzhou, China $50,000 for use by its
Research Library for the purchase of journals and penodicals

Chinese Academy of Sclences,‘lgleumg, China $40,000 for use by its Inshitute of
Genelics to help maintain the capacity to conduct research and provide tramning in
nce biotechnology with a focus on resistance 1o diseases and improved nutnticn

Chinese Academy of Sciences, Beijing, China $3,000 toward the costs of training
In nce bitechnology at the Academy's Institute of Genetics for four scienbists from
North Korea

Chinese Academy of Sciences, Beying, China, $30,930 to enable two scientists from
North Korea to recerve traiming in nce tiotechnology in the laboratory of Zhu Lihuang
at the Academy's Insbitute of Genetics

Chinese Academy of Sciences, Baying, Ching $30,930 to enable two scientists from
North Korea to recerve training in rice biotechnofogy in the laboratory of Zhu Zhen at
the Academy’s Institute of Genetics

Chinese Academy of Sciences, Bajing, China $60,000 for use by its Institute of
Genetics for research on insect resistance and iImproved starch quality in transgenic nce

Department of Agriculture, Thailand, Bangkok, Thailand $150,000 for use by its
Bictechnology Research and Development Center for research on the molecular
charactenzation of major nice diseases in Thailand such as bactenai blight and blast
and the development of disease-resistant nce through molecular-assisted breeding

John Dillé, Rock Hill, South Carolina $10,000 toward the cost of publishing the
Rice Biotechnology Quarierly

Foundation-administered project: $40,000 toward the costs of producing a book
documenting the National Rice Brotechnology Network in India

Foundation-administered project: $43,800 for adnmimstrative support of the
Rockefeller Foundation biotechnolegy program in India

Fudan University, Shanghai, China $20,000 for use by its Baoshan
Agrobiotechnological Center for research to :mprove nce vield potential through
tetraptoidizahon and dihaplordization

G. B. Pant University of Agnculture and Technology, Pantanagar, India. $25,050
for research on the enhancement of resistance to blast in nce

Haryana Agricuttural University, Hisar, Incha $90,000 for molecular marker and
transformation research leading to the development of drought and salimity tolerant
vaneties of basmati nee for use by Indian farmers

Huazhong Agricultural University, Wuhan, Hubei, China $45,390 toward the costs
of training in nce biotechnotogy far four scientists from North Korea

Huazhong Agricultural University, Wuhan, Huber, China $100,000 toward the costs
of research and fraiming on charactenzing the biological mechamsms of heterosis and
molecular breeding of hybrd nce.

International Centre for Genetic Engineering and Bwtechnology, New Delh),
Inda $2,100 for research on marker-assisted selection of gall midge resistance
in cultvated nce

[International Rice Resbarch Institute, Makati City, Phulippines $85,000 for
P with the Directorate of Rice Research, Hyderabad, India, on

International Rice Research Institute, Makat City, Phippines $26,173 for
research, m collaboration with the University of Dhaka, on transformation of nce
far enhanced salt tolerance

International Rice Research Institute, Makab City, Phiiippines  $500,000 to support
research advancing the apphcation of biotechnology to rice breeding and the transfes
of the results to natwnal nce-breeding programs in Asia

International Rice Research Institute, Makati City, Philippines $20,000 for
research, in collaboration with the Central Rice Research Institute, Cultack, India,
on the use of marker-assisted breeding for bactenal blight and blast resistance in rice
vaneties adapted for eastern India

International Rice Research Institute, Makab City, Philippines  $50,000 toward the
costs of the Fourth Intemationat Rice Genetics Symposium held at the Inshiute in
October 2000

Kasetsart University, Bangkok, Thailand $117,105 o prowde n-country M Sc
ard Ph D tramng in nce molecular-rarker technology and simultaneously conduct
research leading to improved nce vaneties for Thai farmers

Kasetsart University, Bangkok, Thaland $72,000 for research on the production
of nce ragged stunt disease yesistance in Thai nce.,

National Crop Experiment Station, Suwon, South Korea $11,450 to provide
addihonal funds for a study of marker-assisted discovery and transfer of wild
quantitative trait oo (QTLsY nto elite nce cultvars using advanced backeross QTL
analysis, 10 be undertaken by Biotechnology Career Fellow Ahn Sang-Nag, under

the direction of Susan R McCouch, Department of Plant Breeding, Cornell University,
Ithaca, New York

Osmania University, Hyderabad, India $18,546 to introduce new genes for
resistance to insects such as yellow stem borer and brown plant hopper via genetic
transformahon of nce

Peking University, Beying, China  $40,000 toward the costs of a study on nce
trypsin inhibitor genes and their application to the development of fungal resistance
In transgenic plants

Philippime Rice Research Institute, Maligaya, Munoz, Nueva Ecija, Philippines
$25,000 to enable scientists from developing countnes to participate 0 the Asian
Agneultural Congress to be held in Marifa, Philippines, Apr 24-27, 2001

Philippine Rice Research Institute, Maligaga Mufioz, Nueva Ecija, Phibppines,
$273.000 for research in nice biotechnclogy leading to improved rice vanetal
development for Philippine farmers

Rural Development Administration, Suweon, South Korea $66,700 for use by
its Matonal Insbitute of Agncultural Science & Technology for research on the
development of map-based cloning and transformatron for rice improvement

Swiss Federal Institute of Technology, Zunch, Switzerland $45,000 far research,
in ¢collaboration with the Cuu Long Delta Rice Research Institute, Omon, Cantho,
Vietnam, on genetic transformation to develop Vietnamese nice vaneties ennched
with vitamin A and higher iron content

Tamil Nadu Agricultural University, Combatore, India $110,100 for use by s
Center for Plant Molecular Biology to support nce breeding for southern India through
the use of marker-assisted selection

Tamil Nadu Agricultural University, Coimbatore, India $205,000 to conduet research
using motecular markers and plant transformation to develop insect-resistant and
drought-tolerant nce vaneties for use by farmers in southern India

University of Agncultural Sclences, Bangalore, India $55,000 for research on
molecular marker-assisted mntrogression of magor and multiple genes far enhanced
blast resistance in rce

University of Hyderabad, Hyderabad, India: $40,000 for a study of genetic
improvernent of nce for water-hmited environments, to be undertaken by
Biotechnology Career Fellow Arjula R Reddy at the Department of Biologeal
Sciences, Purdue Unwversity, West Lafayette, Indiana

Uniwversity of Ottawa, Ottawa, Canada $50,000 to develop and test transgenic rice
hnes with enhanced toferance to environmental stresses such as drought and saline
soil conditions

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe $35,000 toward the costs of a study,
“Strengthening Rural Food Secunty Through Improved Smallholder Sovabean/Maize
Praduction Technologres,™ to be undertaken by Food Securnty Career Development
Fellow Sheunesu Mpepereki

West Africa Rice Development Association, Bouake, Ivory Coast $55,000 for
research, in collaborabion with Cornell University and the Inshitute of Agncultural
Research for Development, Carmeroon, on the development of molecular markers
for resistance to nice yellow mottle virus
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West Africa Rice Development Association, Bouake, Ivory Coast: $205,850 to
strengthen rice biotechnology research, including the use of anther culture to produce
interspecific hybrids between Asian and African rice

Zhejiang Agricultural University, Hangzhou, China: $80,000 for breeding, safety
evaluation and insect-resistance management for rice modified to express an
insecticidal protein from the bacterium Bacillus thuringiensis.

INTEGRATED NUTRIENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT |

Africa University, Mutare, Zimbabwe: $56,000 to train soil and plant analytical
laboratory technologists i southern Africa in procedures for data quality control
and equipment maintenance, in order to improve the quality and relevance of data
provided to scientists working on soil fertility problems of poor farmers.

Brazilian Agricultural Research Enterprise, Brasilia, Brazil: $102,984 for use by
Embrapa Milho e Sorgo toward the costs of conducting two training workshops on the
theme, Improving Phosphorous Acquisition Efficiency in Marginal Soils, in Sahelian
West Africa and southern Africa.

Brazlllan Agricultural Research Enterprise, Brasilia, Brazil: $3,968 toward the costs
of publication of the proceedings of a workshop entitled, Improving Phosphorus
Acguisition Efficiency in Marginal Solls.

Cornell University, Ithaca, New York: $85,000 for use by its Albert R. Mann Library
toward the continued education on and marketing of the Essential Electronic
Agricultural Library in Africa.

Foundation-administered project: $75,000 for an external review of Rockefeller
Foundation-funded programs at the Department of Research and Specialist Services,
Ministry of Lands and Agriculture, Zimbabwe.

Foundation-administered project: $80,000 to support the work of a team of
consultants who will systematize, analyze and assess the cutrent Food Security
soil fertility and integrated nutrient-management prograim in sub-Saharan Aftica,
providing recommendations for program integration and future directions.

Foundation-administered projoct: $17,772 toward the costs of a meeting to develop
a strategy for improving African soil fertiity to be held in Bellagro, Haly, in June 2001.

Inter-American Development Bank, Washington, Dfa ,000.4
Technical Administrative Secretariat of its Regional /¥ Agnic -
in Latin America and the Caribbean during its con : phasﬁﬁ‘-a:::z/ Ty —*1

International Center for Information on Cover Cr “Femucigalpa, Honduras? =1
$95,000 to support the development and mainirance of a database.tostorefg !
manage information related to green-manure céMerEReD systems{!_!ﬁﬂc;ﬁ%% {

International Centre for Research in Agroforesty, Najrobi, Kenya j‘ﬁ:ﬁﬁ :
supoort research and development to promote witer adoption of agromresty -
technalogies such as improved fallow for soil-fertility management by smaliholder
farmers in southern Afnca

International Centre for Research in Agroforestry, Nairobi, Kenya: $665,400 to
develop the technigues and capacity for remote sensing of sail quality in Africa and
its application in better targeting of integrated nutrient-management techinologres.

International Institute of Rural Reconstruction, Silang, Phiippines: $15,000 toward
the costs of a warkshop on managing the process of scaling up sustainable agriculture
initiatives, held in Sitang, Philippines, March/April 2000.

International Institute of Tropical Agriculture, Ibadan, Nigeria: $50,000 for support
of the International Symposium on Balanced Nutrnient Management Systems, held
Oct. 9-12, 2000, in Cotonou, Republic of Benin,

International Institute of Tropical Agriculture, Miamu, Florida: $150,000 for research
on technical constraints to widespread adoption of the legume Mucuna pruriens as a
conpanion crop in green-manure cover-crop systems used by smallholder farmers in
the tropics.

International Maize and Wheat Improvement Center, Mexico City, Mexico: $20,000
to support the development and maintenance of a database for storage and manage-
ment of information related to preen-manure cover-crop systems in the tropics.

international Maize and Wheat Impravement Center, Mexico City, Mexico:
$1,276,200 to support a regional network of scientists in southern Africa developing
technologtes, policies and institutional instruments for more widespread use of
improved soil-fertility management options by poor farmers in southern Africa.
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Kenya Agricultural Research Institute, Marobi, Kenya $15,000 toward the costs
of the 18th Canferance of the Soil Science Society of East Africa held in Novernber
2000 in Mombasa, Kenya

Kenya Agricultural Research Institute, Nairobr, Kenya $17,000 for use by the
Naticnal Dryland Farmmng Research Center, Katurnani, to support publicabion of
reports on Phase | of the Collaboration on AgnculturalfResource Modeling ard
Apphcations in Semi-And Kenya, and developrent of Phase || of the project.

Kenya Agricuttural Research Institute, Naroby, Kenya $37,032 for use by the Embu
Regional Research Centre to support the continuation of the long-term soif orgamc
matter-modeling project at Machang'a and Mutuobare agrcultural research stations

Kenyatta University, Naroby, Kenya $65,000 to prowide studeﬁtshlps and related
expenses for research on the enhancement of soil productivity by use of low-input
technologies on the smalthokder farms of the central tuighlands of Kenya

Ministry of Agriculture and Irrigation, Malawa, Lilongwe, Malawi: $187,621 to
support research at the Clutedze Agncultural Research Station of Malawi on
development and disserunabion of integrated sail-fertiity management technologies
for improving food secunty on smallholder farms in Malaws

Ministry of Agriculture and Irrigation, Malawi, Lilongwe, Malawi $35,000 for
use by its Department of Agncultural Research and Tectitwcal Sennces toward the
costs of conduching and analyzing nationwide agronomic tnals on improved organic
technologes for maize praduction by smallholder farmers of Malawt

Ministry of Lands and Agriculture, Zimbabwe, Causeway, Zimbabwe $59,000 for
use by the Agronomy Research Institute of the Department of Research and Specialist
Sernices, to continue development of integrated soll-fertinty management strategies
for smallholder farmers in Zimbabwe

Ministry of Lands and Agriculture, Zimbabwe, Causeway, Zimbabwe $12,375 for
use by the Department of Research and Specialist Services, toward the costs of a
consultative process for the development of a strategic plan on integrated nutnent-
management research for the smallhoder farming sector in Zimbabwe

Ministry of Lands and Agriculture, Zimbabwe, Causeway, Zimbabwe- $100,000
for use by its Chernistry and Soils Research Institute to support the development of
appropnate processing, preservation and utilization technologies for soybeans and
other Jagumes in order to improve food and nutntional secunty withun poor rural
households in Zimbabwe

Ministry of Lands and Agriculture, Zimbabwe, Causeway, Zmbabwe $19,580 for
use by s Agronomy Research Institute to support microeconomics research on soil-
fertility management technologies being tested on farmers’ fields

Ministry of Lands and Agricutture, Zimbabwe: $35,000 for a policy dialogue,
administered through the Agncultural Production and Food Secunty Task Force, on
enhancing sinallholder farmer food secunty through improved cropping systermns

National Agricultural Research Organization, Entebbe, Uganda $118,000 for
the establishment of a Geographical Information Systemn facility and national sails-
reference database

Sustalnable Community Oriented Development Programme, Sega. Kenya
$676,850 to continue implementation of farmer-participatory tnal programs for
{farm input supply to promote crop biadiversity, and to develop appropnate integrated
nutrient-rmanagement practices for increased agncultural development

Tropical Soil Biology and Fertility Programme, Mairobi, Kenya $32,034 for
collaboratve research with the Department of Agncultural Economics and Extension,
Unwversity of Zimbabwe, on the economics of using arimal manure for soil-fertiity
managernent by poor farrners in resettled communal lands of Zimbabwe

Tropical Soil Biology and Fertility Programme, Nairobi, Kenya $82,800 to develop
and disseminate improved technologes for managing animal manure for improved
soll ferblity and crop yields on smallholder farmers’ fietds in Zimbabwe ang Malaw)

Troprcal Soil Biology and Fertility Programme, Nairobi, Kenya $15,000 toward the
costs of the Ninth Afncan Association of Biological Nitrogen Fixabon Congress held in
Nairobi, Kenya, September 2000

Tropical Soil Biclogy and Fertility Programme, Nairoby, Kenya $9,000 for support of
the All Afncan Biological Nitrogen Fixahon Congress held in Nairobr, September 2000
Tropical Sail Biology and Fertility Programme, Nawwob, Kenya $400,000 to support

research on soll biology and ecclogy as a component of ntegrated soils management
in Afncan farming systems

Tropical Soil Biclogy and Fertility Programme, Nairohi, Kenya $21,605 for support
¢ resource-management technologies held in Nairob,
Keny. ember 2000

University of Beme, Beme, Switzerland $106,856 for use by the Natural Resources
Monitonng, Modeling, and Management project toward the costs of Yietd research in
Kenya on developing natural resource-management tools for use by farmers, planners
and policymakers

University of Malawi, Zomba, Malaw) $19,000 toward the costs of coordinating
actrvities of the Econormics and Policy Working Group - Malawn, an iniative within
the Soil Fertilty Network for Maize-Based Farming Systems i Malaw

University of Missouri-Columbia, Columbia, Missoun $6,000 1o continue its
oollaboration with the Kenya Agncultural Research tnstitute to complete the book,
“Transformung the Agricultural Research System in Kenya: Lessons for Africa "

University of Nairobi, Nairobi, Kenya $10,634 1o support a workshop on
environmental management and poverty alleviatron it the Lake Victona Basin

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe $20,800 toward the c|:osts of

coordinating actvities of the Economics and Policy Warking Group for Smallholder
Food Secunty in Afnca

| RESILIENT CROPS FOR CHALLENGING ENVIRONMENTS |

Abraham Blum, Tel Aviv, Israel $60,000 1o establish a Web site 1o serve the
information and communication needs of scientists working to create more resilient
crop species for less favorable environments worldwide, with emphasis on drought
tolerance n cereals

Center for the Application of Molecular Biclogy to International Agriculture,
Canberra, Australia $100,000 for the adaptation, optimizahon and provision of
microarray-based techneloges for marker-assisted selection of ma:ze germplasm
for Strnga resistance

Cuw Long Detta Rice Research Institute, Omon, Cantho, Yienam $160,000 to conduct
nce-biotechnology research leading to mproved nce vanehes for Vietnarmese farmers

Donald Danforth Plant Sclence Center, St Louis, Missoun $55,000 toward the
costs of a symposium on the Genetie Improvement of Crop Plants for Produchon in
Water-Lirmited Environments, to be held in 8t Lows, Missoun, 2001

Emmanuel Okoghenin, [badan, Nigena. $16,500 toward the costs of research
on the genetic mapping of cassava at the International Center for Tropical Agnculture,
Calr, Colombia

Foundation-administered project: $80,000 toward the costs of operating the
Foundation’s program on applying science and technolkogy to |mprowng food secunty

Foundation-admimistered project: $20,000 to support the parumpatm of developing-
country scienbists in the Second Intematwonal Apomeus Conference to be held in Como,
Italy, Apr 24-28, 2001

Haryana Agricultural University, Hisar, Inda $3G,741 for research and Ph D tram-
ing leading to the use of molecular markers to enhance disease resistance in sorghurn

Indira Gandhi Agricultural University, Raipur, India- $160,000 for research an field
sereening, molecular genetic analysis, and breeding leading to more drought tolerant
and gall midge-resistant nce vanebes

Institute of Agricultural Sciences of Rwanda, Butare, Rwanda $13,000 toward the
costs of research conducted in collaboration with the Intermationai Center for Tropical
Agniculture and other nahonal agncultural-research organizatons on genetic iImprove-
ment of bush and chimbing beans for smaltholder production in Afrita

International Center for Tropical Agricubture, Cal, Colomiza $449,000 toward
the costs of research conducted in collaboration with national agricultural-research
arganizations on genetic smprovement of bush and cimbing beans for smailholder
production in Africa

tnternational Center for Tropical Agriculture, Cali, Colombia $160,000 to support
ongoing research using advanced biotechnologies to produce more resilient and
higher-yielding rice vaneties for Labin Amenca

International Center for Tropical Agriculture, Cali, Colomtna $321,000 for research
on the molecular mapping of genes confernng resistance to the cassava mesaic disease.

International Centre of Insect Physiology and Ecology, Nairob, Ker!iya $75,000 for
research on the characterizabon of allefochermics involved m Striga suppression by

Desmodium species and screening for related signals in selected legumes

International Centre of Insect Physiology and Ecology, Nairabi, Kenya: $104,962
to continue support for its colleboration with the Uganda National Banana Research
Program on sogiceconomic studhes to support technology development for banana-
cropping systems including integrated pest management
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international Crops Research Institute for the Seml-Arid Tropics, Andhra Pradesh,
India, $98,000 to conduct a workshop and traming course on state-of-the-art feld
scraening of cereals, with emphasis en nce, for drought telerance, as part of a nabional
program for genetic improvement of this trait

International Crops Research Institute for the Semi-Arid Traples, Andhra Pradesh,
India $209,988 for field screening and molecular genetic analysss aimed at creating
moxe resihent craps, with emphasis on Improwving drought tolerance in cergals

International Crops Research Institute for the Semi-And Tropics, Andhra Pradesh,
India $530,446 to support a joint research project with the Insbitut de Econorme
Rurale, Mali, on Gunea Sorghum Hybnids Bringing the Benefits of Hybnd Technology
to a Staple Crop of Sub-Saharan Africa

Intemational Institute of Tropical Agriculture, Ibadan, Nigena $991,680 to support
the development of integrated pest-management technijues for banana weevil control

International Institute of Tropical Agriculture, Ibadan, Nigena $240,000 for the
development and use of molecular markers linked to genes confernng resistance to
Afncan cassava mosalc disease in Afnican cassava germplasm

Intemational Institute of Tropical Agriculture, |badan, Nigena $18,420 toward
the costs of publication and distnbution of the proceedings of the Word Cowpea
Research Conference Ill, held i Jbadan, Migerta, September 2000

International Maize and Wheat Improvement Center, Mexico City, Maxico
$274,550 toward the costs of the on-farm testing and seeds component of the
Southern Afnca Drought and Low Soil Fertlity Network’s project to develop
drought-tolerant vaneties of maize

International Maize and Wheat Improvement Center, Mexico City, Mexico
$285,700 for research an enginesrng resistance In maize to the parasitic weed
Stnga, one of the major constraints to crop produchon in Afnca

International Maize and Wheat Improvement Center, Mexico City, Mexico $10,000
toward the costs of a senes of workshops on maize agronomy to be organized by the
Center's Eastern and Central Afncan Mzize and Wheat Research Network and held n
Uganda, Tanzana and Kenya

Intermational Plant Genetic Resourges institute, Rome, Italy $170,000 for use by
its International Network for the improvement of Banana and Plantain for research to
deterrmine banana baselne information for eastem and southemn Africa.

Interational Plant Genetic Resources Institute, Rome, Italy $13,651 for use
by its International Metwork for the Improvement of Banana and Plaintain for
research to dentify and collect the ongimal edible diploid germplasm of East
Afncan Highland Bananas

John Innes Centre, Norwich, United Kingdom $157,400 toward the costs of
studentships for a cooperative program on rice biotechnology with the West Africa
Rice Development Association, Ivory Coast

Lowlands Agricultural and Technical Services Limited, Kisumu, Kerya $3,000 to
enable staff member Moses Orum to visit the Maharashtra Hybnd Seed Company,
Hyderabad, India, te discuss seed-processing and marketing strategies.,

Kenya Agricultural Research Institute, Nairobi, Kenya- $22,000 toward the costs
of research conducted in collaboration with nahional agncultural research organiza-
tions on genetic improvement of bush and climbing beans for smaltholder production
n Africa

Kenya Agricultural Research Institute, Nairobi, Kenya $3,303 toward the
costs of seed multiphcation and dissemination of Stnga-resistant maize vaneties
n Striga-infested areas of western Kenya

Kenya Agricultural Research Institute, Narrobi, Kenya $350,000 for improving
banana production in Kenya through distnibution of clean planting matena! produced
via tissue culture

Kenya Agricultural Research Institute, Nairoby, Kenya $69,115 for use by the
National Agncultural Research Laboratones to support the activibies of the Legume
Research Network Project and the coordination of the Sail Management Projects
at sites in Kissn and Kitale

Kenya Agricuitural Research Institute, Nairobr, Kenya 38,786 toward the costs of a
workshop to discuss sustainable seed systemns for small-scale farmers in sub-Saharan
Afnca, held in Kenya, Mar. 13-15, 2000

Kenya Agricultural Research Institute, Nairobi, Kenya 390,000 toward project costs
for accelerated multiphication and distnbution of healthy planting matenals of
improved cassava vaneties in western Kenya

Maketere University, Kampala, Uganda $9,980 to support the Fifth Tnennial
Congress of the Afnica Potato Association to be held in Kampala, Uganda

Makerere University, Kampafa, Uganda $90,815 to support the micropropagation
of selected banana cultivars for Ugandan farmers

Michigan State University, East Lansing, Michigan $26,000 for use by Michigan
State University Press o edit and publish “Cassava Afnca's Best-Kept Secret,” and
to ship 750 copies of the finished book to the Internabional Institute of Tropical
Agnculture for free distnbubion in Africa

Ministry of Agnculture, Malawi, Lilongwe, Malawi- $169,565 for use by its
Department of Agricultural Research and Technical $ervices toward project costs for
improving farmers’ maize yields through managing maize streak virus, Turcicurn leaf
blight and gray keaf spot diseases

National Agricultural Research Organization, Entebbe, Uganda $250,000 to
support the banana cropping-systems project

National Agricultural Research Organization, Entebbe, Uganda $41,000 toward
the costs of research conducted in collaboration wath the International Center for
Tropical Agnculture and other national agncultural-research organizations on genetic
improvement of bush and chmbing beans for smallholder production n Afnca.

National Center for Genetic Engineering and Biotechnology, Banghok, Thailand
$85,000 to identfy quanhtatve trait loci for drought tolerance in nce and test their
efficacy for marker-assisted nce breeding

National Institute for Agronomic Research, Maputo, Mozambique $249,450 for
support to the naticnal maize-breeding pregram (in Mozambigue

Purdue University, West Lafayette, Indiana $237,808 for research to produce more
durable resistance in sorghum 1o the parasitic weed Striga by charactenzing the
mechamsms of resistance and the genes responsible, and then combining them in
ways that enhance durability of resistance

Purdue University, West Lafayette, Indiana $40,000
on developing a strategy on tictechnology for cowpea improveme ¥ &
held in Dakar, Senegal

Rice Research Institute, Banghok, Thaland $150,000 te condjfictfeldfcresning of
rice for drought tolerance at multiple jocations n Thaland's dregightprofie north and
northeastem regions

Rothamsted Experimental Station, Hertfordsture, United Kingd

use by the Institute of Arable Crops Research for research onghecl

allelochemics involved 10 Singa suppression by Desmodium®Spa®ant screemng for
related signals in selected legumes.

Tamil Nadu Agricultural University, Coimbatore, India $84,500 for research on
dentifying genes associated with water stress tolerance (n nice

Tropical Soil Biology and Fertility Programme, Nairobi, Kenya $10,422 to support
publishing a Web page and preparation of the proceedings of the Forum for Qrganic
Resource Management and Agncultural Technologies symposium held m Narabs,
Kenya, September 2000

Unlted States Department of Agriculture, Washington, D C  $10,000 for use by the
Plant Genome Research Program of the Agncultural Research Service for support of
travel of Thurd World scientists to attend the Plant and Arimal Genome IX meeting
held in San Diego, Cahfornia, Jan 13-17, 2001

University of Agricuttural Sciences, Bangalore, India $55,000 to dentify molecular
markers for drought tolerance and utilize them in a rainfed rice-breeding program

University of Hyderabad, Hyderabad, India $480,000 to conduct nce genomic

research and provide leadership and coordination to the national Indian network on
nce improvement for drought tolerance

University of Nairobi, Nairobi, Kenya $66,760 for research on the effects of marze
and sesame mixed or rotahion cropping systems on Stnga infestation

University of Ottawa, Ottawa, Canada $70,000 to undertake research and conduct
biosafety assessments of transgenic crops with new genes for insect resistance

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe. $87,150 for research on improving
disease resistance n cowpea through genetic engneenng

West Africa Rice Development Association, Bouake, ory Coast $67,000 toward
the costs of a workshop on Sustainable Rice-Based Production in Africa, to be held
in W'Be, Céte d'tvore, Apr 9-12, 2001

West Africa Rice Development Association, Bouake, vory Coast $380,100 toward
project costs for bullding West Afncan capacity (n nce-breeding research
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Yvonne Lokko, Accra, Ghana $31 500 1o conduct research at the Intermational
Institute of Tropecal Agnculture, leading to a Fh D degree from tha University of Ghana,
on the genetic analysis of host plant resistance to African cassava mosaic disease

Enabling Farmer Participation

[ CROPS PRODUCTION SYSTEMS |

Center for Research and Advanced Stuidies of the National Polytechme Instiute,
Mexico City, Mexico  $108,000 to engineer cereal plants for increased tolerance
1o aluminum toxcity in sals and enhanced phosphate uptake

International Center for information on Cover Crops, Teputigaipa, Honduras:
$67,000 toward the costs of a workishop on expanding uses of Mucuna and
investigating the pretdems of antr nutritienal factors in the plant held n Tegueigalps,
Honduras, Apr 26-29 2000

Intermational Centre for Research in Agroforestry, Nawobi, Kenya $18,500 For two
workshops focusmng on Integrated Assessment of Soif and Water Quality in the Lake
Mictona Basin of East Afnca and Intensification in the East Afncan Highlands The
Dynarmues of Agroforestry and Livestock Stratepes for Building Natural Resource Capital

internatronal Livestock Research Institute, Nairohs, Kenya $45,000 to develop

2 spabally referenced cmp- and livestock-produchon database for sastem and
southem Afnca

Renya Agnicuttural Research Institute, Mairoby Kenya $38,874 to comtinue support
for on farm sesearch in improved sol management 51 sites of the Kisu Regional
Research Cenire

futobRecearch Instrtiute, Noirotn  Kenya 541,126 to continve
farm resealil in improved s managemeant at the Kitale Regional

suppart fartn

eraaty, E3st Lansing Michigan $18,750 for use by the
nclitural EGonomics to continue supporting reseanch on developing
st fertilizer-supply channels for smialtholders m western Kenya

Photograph Excised Here

National Agricuttwal Research Organizabron, Entebbe, Uganda 35,774 toward
the costs of 2 workshop organized by NARO's Namulonge Agncultural and Animal
Productson Research Institute to discuss sustanabie seed systems for small-scale
farnmers n Uganda

John Ongechia, Kisi, Kenya $30,000 for research on st fertility enhancement as
a strategy for managing beanfly infestation in maize-bean systems in East Africa

Screntfic and Industnal Research and Development Centre, Harare Zimbabwe
$9,108 for use by the Biotechnclogy Research Institute ta enable a Rotkefeller
Foundation-funded biotechnologist to attend and present a paper at the Soth
Internatwonal Congress of Plant Molecular Biology held in Quebec, Camada, Jun
18-24, 2000, and to wisit collaborating scientists in the United States and Europe

Siaya Community Oriented Development Programme, Sepa, Kenya $77,000 for
further develgpment and implementation of farmer participatory tnal programs to
promate the use of the appraprate fartihzer types and crop resikdue managemant
prachees in orders to restore soil fertilty and improve food production in smallbolder
farming systerns in westem Kenya

Sustanable Agricultural Centre for Research and Development in Afnca, Bungoma,
Kenya $5,000 toward the costs of creating better grovang opportunites for [sgurmes
within the maize-legume intercropping systems in east Afnca

Texas AEM Unwversity, College Station, Texas $10,000 for use by the Texas
Agricultural Expenrment Stabon to support the participation of Afncan scienbists in the
16th Syrmpasmurn of the intermnational Famming Systerns Association held in Santiago
Chile Nov 27-29, 2000

|
Umiversity of Matawl, Zomba, Malawi $59,125 for use by Bunda College of
Agnculture to conduct a study an the socweconamic factors affecting the adophion
of organic soit ferblity management technologies by smallholder farmers i Matawi

Youth for Action, Hyderzbiad, India $155,000 to support strengthening farmers’
capacity for mnovation in a serm-and region m India and to test a participatory model
for agncultural technology adaptation and diffusion
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International Maize and Wheat Improvement Center, Mexico City, Mexico
$427,000 toward project costs for strengthenmng maize seed supply systerns for
small-scale farmers 1n western Kenya and Uganda

Ministry of Lands and Agnculture, Zimbabwe, Causeway, Zimbabwe $139,970 for
use by the Depantment of Research and Specialist Services toward support of maize
open-pothinated vaneties ecosystem breeding in Zimbabwe

West Afnca Rice Development Association, Bouake, Ivory Coast $371,140 toward
the costs of a project to develop farmer parbicipatory approaches to technology devel-
opment and dissemination in Mal) and Nigena

| PARTNERSHIP FOR SOIL, WATER AND NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT |

Environmental Action Team, Kitale, Kenya $112,527 to continue support
for adaphwve research on biological alternatives for soll-ferhlity management for
maze production

Foundation-adrmmstered project: $85,000 to strengthen the Food Secunty's
Partnerships for Scils, Water and Nutnent Management program through the
establishment of an adwisory commuttee and consultation with experts on strategic
program areas, and through the promotion of inkages and exchange of expenences
among grantees

Infanta Integrated Community Development Assistance, Inc., Quezon, Philppines
$50,000 to strengthen and document its more than 20 years of community-based field
work and to explore parhcipatory approaches for agricultural innovation and diffusion

Intemational Insttute of Rural Reconstruction, Silang, Phlippines  $30,000
to suppott an intemational conference on advancing participatory technclogy
development to be held in the Phulppines, 2001

Kenya Agncultural Research Institute, Naircbi, Kenya $160,227 toward the costs
of incorporating the Farmer Field School approach to agneultural innovabion and
diffusion into its programs on soil-management and legume research

National Institute of Solls and Fertllizers, Hanoi, Vietnam $98,000 to establish and
implement integrated crop managerment Farmer Field Schaols in northem Vietnam,
and to document and analyze the process

Network for Studies on Rural Development, Chapingo, Mexico $92,000 toward the
costs of a pilot project that will test the feasibiity and potenhal of 6G Farmer Field
Schoots in the states of Oaxaca and Chiapas, Mexico

PELUM Association, Harare, Zimbabwe $51,000 to support a senes of workshops
organized by the PELUM Association ard ks partner organizations in eastern and
southern Africa focusing on the analysis of constraints and cpportunibies for promoting
sustainable agnculture in the regon

Swedish University of Agricultural Sciences, Uppsala, Sweden 346,000 for use

by its Department of Rural Development Studies to support an Afnican student in

the Master's Programme in Development Research, Application and Theory, focusing
on the Farmer Field School approach to technology adaption and diffusion

University of Malawl, Zomba, Malawa $25,000 to support the Agncultural and
Polcy Research Unit of Bunida College of Agniculture, for a study on the social costs of
soll erosion and s effects on food produchvity, iIncomes and food secunty 1n Malaw

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe $38,000 to support the Department

of Agnicultural Econormics and Extension 1o conduct research on factors that influence
farmers’ adophion of sol-ferblity management technologies and the effects of alternative
farrn pohcies on increased use of these technologies by smalltholder farmers in Zmbatwre

Vicente Guerrero Rural Development Project, Tlaxcala, Mexico $98,000 to
strengthen and document the mare than 20 years of s faciitabon of farmer-led
agncultural-technotogy dissermination in Mexico

Zimbabwe Inshtute of Permaculture, Harare, Zimbabwe $191,670 for use by the
Schools and Colleges Permaculture Prograrnme to promote changes in the curncula
of primaty, secondary and tertary educabion to sncorporate sustainable agncultural
pnnciples and income-generating actrvities to improve the food secunty of smallholder
farmers in Zimbabwe

Strengthening Policies and Institutions

[ BIOSAFETY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY |

International Maize and Wheat Improvement Center, Mexico City, Mexico
$700,000 for strengthening intellectual-property and technology-transfer management
at key centers of the Consultative Group on International Agnicultural Research

International Maize and Wheat Improvement Center, Mexico City, Mexico $47,300
for analysis of the distnbution of welfare from the tntroduction of transgenic cotten
vaneties in Mexico

International Rice Research Institute, Makat City, Pulippines $700,000 for
strengtherung intellectual-property and technology-transfer management at key
centers of the Consultatwe Group on International Agncultural Research

International Rwce Research Institute, Makat City, Philsppines $25,000 toward the
costs of a workshop on the Impact on Research and Development of Sw Generis
Approaches to Plant Vanety Protection of Rice in Developing Countres, hetd at IRRI,
Febtuary 2000

Internatronal Sernice for the Acquisibion of Agn-Biotech Applications, Ithaca,
New York $40,000 to conduct a preliminary freedom-to-operate review for
provitarin A nee (Golden Rice), in part as a model for traiming programs on
intellectual-property nghts

International Service for the Acquisition of Agri-Biotech Apphications, Ithaca,
New York- $50,000 to conduct a feastbility study on the evaluation and deployment
of nce genehcally modified to produce provitamin A in the endosperm

Scienbfic and Industnal Research and Development Centre, Harare, Zimbabwe
$4,615 to provide traiming in biosafety protocols for a scientist responsible far
introducing and monitoning such protocots at the Centre

Stanford University, Stanford, California $20,000 for use by Stanford Law School
toward the costs a conference on Intellectual Property and Giobal Biotechnology, held
at the Bellagio Study and Conference Center, Bellagio, laly, Mar 27-31, 2000

United Nations Industnal Development Organization {UNIDO), Vienna, Austria

$47 460 for the further development and disserninatian of an interactive computenzed
decision-support system for assessing nsks ansing from the use of genetically modified
crop plants

[ PoLICY ANALYS1S FOR EQUITABLE DEVELOPMENT |

governance structure of the Intiative for Development and Equ
Agnculture -

Government of Malawy, Lilongwe, Malawr $35,000 for use bfrithe Office of the]
Vice President to support the Policy Analysis Initiative for evajliation'of governmelit
pohcies in the areas of natural and environmental resources forstistainable d%
ment in Malaw

Internahional Crops Research Institute for the Semi-And Tropecs, Andhra Pradesh,
India $438,900 to support research and development of technologes, policies
and institutional mechanisms to promote wider adoption of improved soil fertiity
management options by smallholder famners in the semi-and zone of Zimbabwe

John Innes Centre, Norwich, United Kingdom $15,000 to enable developing-
country speakers to participate sn the conference, Global Agnculture 2020 Which
Way Forward? to be held in Norwich, Apr 18-20, 2001

Steven Were Omamo, Njoro, Kenya $26,000 for a study of agncultural markets and
instdutions with special reference to smplications for policy reform in Afnca

University of Pretoria, Pretona, South Afnca $97,000 to conduct research on the
diffusion te, and adoption of, agncultural biotechnalogies by smallholder fasmers in
South Africa

University of Zmbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe $22,100 toward the costs of a book
on how Afncans are leading the process of agneultural development in Afnca entitled,
“The Termite Strategy Transforming Rural Africa From Within "

LOCAL UNIVERSITY CAPACITY BUILDING
FORUM ON AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES HUSBANDRY

Africa University, Mutare, Zimbabwe $2,200 to provide fietd training for Afncan
graduate students in the agncultural sciences and to support research on soil-
management ophons for improved groundnut preduction in Zimbabwe

Chiang Ma) University, Chiang Man, Thailand $180,000 for use by its Faculty of
Agnculture to support s Master of Seience in Agneultural Systems degree program

Comell University, Ithaca, New York $900,000 to support the training of an
nterdisephnary cohort of fellows from eastern and southern Afnica at the Ph D
level in topics related to integrated nutnent management for Afnca

Egerton University, Njoro, Kenya $4,400 to provide field traiming for Afnican graduate
students in the agncultural sciences and to support the development of production-
technology packages for wheat/chickpea-rotation cropping systerns in Kenya

Egerton Unmersity, Nyoro, Kenya $4,600 to support research on overcoming
constraints to increased groundnut preduction
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Egerton University, Nyoro, Kenya $69,800 to prowde field trarung for Afncan graduate
students in the agncultural sciences and to support soil-science research on nitrogen-
efficiency management in the vertisols i western Kenya.

Foundation-administered project: $24,909 for work on maize improvernent breeding
programs for Kenya and ather Afncan countnes

Foundation-administered project: $75,000 for costs associated with managing
the Foundabion's pragram, Forum on Agncultural Resource Husbandry in Sub-
Saharan Africa

Jome Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology, Nairoby, Kenya $37,273
to provide traning for Afncan graduate students i the agneultural sciences and to
support research on the use of natural cherical compounds from natve plant species
for control of pests and pathogens

Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Technology, Nairob), Keniya $67,579
to provide training for Afncan graduate students and to support biotechnological
research for transformation of witarmin A-nch Kenyan sweet potato cultivars for
resistance to weewls

Jomo Keyatta University of Agriculture and Technology, Narohi, ¥enya $69,844 to
prowide field traning for Afncan graduate students in the agnicultural sciences and to
support research for ncreasing pigeon pea (Cajanus cajan) production

Kenyatta University, Nairobn, Kenya $4,800 for use by its Departrnent of Zoology te
provide field traiing for Afncan graduate students in the agncultural sciences and fo
support studies on the impact of agroforestry and intercropping on insect pests

Kenyatta University, Nairobi, Kenya $45,000 for research on the enhancement of
soil productivity by use of low-input technologies on the smallholder farms of the
central highlands of Kenya

Kenyatta University, Mairobi, Kenya $60,000 to provide field training for Afncan
graduate students in the agneultural sciences and to support research on the cantrol
of ront-knat nematodes in smatholder maize/bean intercropping systems (n Kenya

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $64,794 ta prowide field training for Afncan
graduate students in the agncultural sciences and to support research on disease-
resistant banana mutants and banana micropropagation systems

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $75,031 to provide field training for African
graduate students in the agricultural sciences and to support research on the genetic
dwersity and improvement of banana cultivars in Uganda

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $85,000 to prowide field training for Afncan
graduate students in the agncultural sciences and to support studies on increasing
potato production through selection of vaneties resistant to late blight disease and
through the judicious use of fungicides

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $65,000 to provide field training for Afncan
graduate students in the agncultural sciences and to support research on soybean
rust, the pnmary disease of soybeans in Uganda.

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $12,500 for use by s Faculty of Agniculture
to further the development of its programs

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $5,000 to prowide a preparation grant for
the development of a project involving the rehabilitation of degraded rangetands in
Uganda through the introduction of foragefodder legumes as cover crops

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda. $64,533 to provide field training for
African graduate students (n the agricultural sciences and to support integrated pest
management in Uganda where cassava mosaic virus 1s pandemic

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $64,584 to provide field traiming for Afncan
graduate students (n the agnicultural sciences and support research in overcoming
constraints to increased sorghum production in the dry farming regions of Uganda

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $65,000 to provide field training for Afnican
graduate students in the agncultural sciences and to supper economic research on
the adoption of integrated pest-managerent technologes developed for cowpea and
groundnuts in eastern Uganda

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda- $65,000 to prowvide field traiming for African
graduate students in agncultural sciences and to support research in identriying
drought stress folerant banana cultvars.

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $65,000 to provide field training for Afnican
graduate students in the agricultural sciences and to support research on overcaming
constraints to increased maize produchon

rere Unj A la, Uganda $65,000 to prowvide field training for Afrcan
graduate stydents in the agnchftural sciences and to support research on overcoming
~Constra Increased sweet pbtato production. .

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $65,000 to provide field trainimg for African
graduate students in the agncultural sciences and to support research on the use of
Intercrops N evercoming constraints to increased cassava production

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda: $65,000 to provide field traimng for
Afncan graduate students in the agncultural seiences and to suppont economic
vesearch on factors affeching technology adoption for improved sorghum produchon
1n eastern Uganda

Makerera University, Kampala, Uganda $65,000 to prowide field traiming for Afncan
graduate students in the agncultural scences and to support research to ncrease
sesame production in the dry regions of Uganda

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $65,000 to prowide field training for African
eraduate students in the agncultural sciences ang to support water balance research
studies in the semi-and areas of Lake Kyoga basin in Uganda

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $85,000 to provide field training for
Afncan graduate students in the use of blometrics and applied statistics for solving
agncultural problems in Uganda

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $75,000 to provide field training for African
graduate students in the agncultural sciences and to develop a decision support
system far sustainable productivity of the banana-based cropping systems of the Lake
Victona basin

Makerere Unlversity, Kampala, Uganda $75,000 to prowvide field traming for
Afncan graduate students in the agricultural sciences and te support research on the
economic evaluation of inkages between agricultural commercialization and the use
of purchased inputs in Uganda

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $99,233 to provide traming for African
graduate students n the agneultural sciences and to support specifically the outreach
actmhies associated with integrated pest management strategies for small-scale
farmers in eastern Uganda

Moi University, Eldoret, Kenva $2,400 to provide field training for an Afncan graduate
student 1n the agricultural sciences and to support the Phosphate Rock Evaluation
Project (FREP) o include research on market potenbial and farmer acceptance of the
PREP-PAC as a soil fertility tool in western Kenya

Mol University, Eldoret, Kenya $4,800 to prowde field training for African graduate
students in the agricultural sciences and to support the project, PREP—a strategy for
replenishing productty to low fertility patches in srallholders’ fields of westem Kenya

Moi University, Eldoret, Kenya $5,000 for use by its faculty of agncutture to further
the development of its programs.

Moi University, Eldoret, Kenya $5,000 to provide a preparation grant for the
development of a project involving all stakeholders in the mcorporateon of forest
regeneration 10 the Shamba system of crop production

Mol University, Eldoret, Kenya- $62,400 1o prowde field traning for Afncan graduate
students in the agncultural sciences and to support research on social factors affeching
adoption of agroforestry systems technology 1n western Kenya

University of Malawi, Zomba, Malawi $171,006 for use by Bunda College of
Agnculiure toward the costs of the Fourth Forum Regional Meeting, hekl in Lilongwe,
Malawi, Jul 10-14, 2000

University of Malawi, Zomba, Malawi. $4,695 for use by Chancellor College as a
preparation grant for research to enbance yam production that wiil prowvide field
traning for Afncan graduate students in the agncultural sgiences

University of Malawi, Zomba, Malava $4,800 for use by Bunda College of
Agnculture to provide field training for Afncan graduate students in the agrcultural
seiences and to support the development of vascular puncture techmgue and
tdentification of biologicatly and epidemialogically diferent maize streak virus isolates

University of Malawi, Zomba, Malaw) $64,800 for use by Bunda College to provide
field trainng for African graduate students in the agncultural sciences and to support
research on the biology, ecology and control of Stnga infestations in cereals

University of Malawi, Zomba, Malawi $65,174 to provide field training for Afncan
graduate students in the agneuttural sciences and to support research on agroforestry
interventions in central Malaw

University of Malawi, Zomba, Malawi- $68,339 for use by Bunda College of
Agriculture to provide field traiming for Afncan graduate students in the agncultural
seiences and to support research in agricultural economics on the use of soybeans
and pigean peas for soil-fertity managemeant in Malaw

University of Nairabi, Nawoht, Kenya $3,600 to provide field training for Afican
graduate students in the agncultural sciences and to support an assessment of the
dissernination and adoption of improved fodder trees by women farmers in Embu
Dustrict, Kenya
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University of Nairebi, Nawoty, Kenya $4,000 for use by its Department of Soil
Science to provide field traimng Tor Afncan graduate students in the agncultural
sciences and to support a pregect on field monitoring of seasonal surface sl koss and
erosion-induced nutnent losses in a maizeflegume-hased cropping system in Kenya

University of Nairobi, Namobi, Kenya $4,800 for use by its Faculty of Agnculture,
Departrnent of Soll Science, to provide field training for Afncan graduate students in
the agncultural sciences and to support research into soil-fertility problem solving in
the Central Highlands of Kenya

Unrversity of Nairobi, Nawrobr, Kenya $4,917 to provide a preparation grant for
the development of a project on post-harvest technology for sweet potatoes using a
participatory survey in two distnets of Kenya

University of Mairobi, Nairobi, Kenya, $62,210 to provide field training for Afncan
graduate students 10 the agriculiural sciences and to support integrated past-manage-
rment research on snapheans, which are a major export crop and an income-eaming
commodity for many smallholder farmers

University of Nairobi, Nairobn, Kenya $64,751 to provide field training for African
graduate students i the agncultural sciences and to support studies on technology
adoption and resource management in maize-production systems in two agreecological
20nes in Kenya

University of Nairobi, Nairobi, Kenya $65,469 to provide traming for Afncan graduate
students in the agncultural sciences and to support research on efficient resource use
n low input maize/pigeon pea intercropping systems in Kenya

University of Mairobi, Narobi, Kenya $69,640 to prowide field training in agncultural
sciences for Afncan graduate students and to support research on the adoption of
crop-production technologies and their impact on the food self-suficiency of small-
holder farmers in the Mumias Sugar Scheme in western Kenya

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe $2,500 for use by its Facully of
Agnculture to further the development of its programs

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe: $3,400 for a preliminary study to devel-
op a research project on preventing soil and water loss on badly degraded communal
areas through the use of intercropping that will provide training for Afncan graduate
students in the agncultural sciences

Unlversity of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe: $4,959 for a preliminary study to devel-
op a research project on drytand papnka produchon in the smallholder farrming sector
of Zimbabwe that will provide field traiming for African graduate students in the agn-
culiural sciences

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe: $7.3,500 to prowvide tramnng for African
graduate students and to support research on improved management of soybean-
production technologies in smallholder maize-based cropping systems in Zimbabwe

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe $8,000 to prowide a shpend supplement
for students supported by the Foundation’s Forum on Agncultural Resource
Husbandry program at the University

| LOCAL UNIVERSITY CAPACITY BUILDING: ADVANCED TRAINING FELLOWSHIPS |

Marjatta Eilitta, Gaineswville, Flonda $62,000 for a postdoctaral fellowship for
work to compile and circulate information and implement strategies to strengthen
informaticn management and axchange on green-manure cover-Grop systems, and
to facilitate expansion of the use of Mucuna, a cornmon green-manure cover-crop
species in Afnca and Latin Amenca

Anju Mahendru, New Delh, india $74,025 for a postdoctoral feliowship for
advanced training e plant genetics at the Department of Crop and Soit Sciences,
Unwersity of Georgia, Athens

Michigan State University, East Lansing, Michigan $20,000 toward the costs of
dissertation research conducted by a Kenyan student on inks between land-use
patterns and gender-based differences in access to resources 1n the Mount Kihmanjaro
area of Kajpado Distnct, Kenya

Sujin Patarapuwadol, Nakhon Pathom, Thailand: $144,270 for a fellowship for
advanced traiming in plant biotechnology leading to the Ph D degree at the Plant
Breeding Institute, University of Sydney, Austraba.

[ LOCAL UNIVERSITY CAPACITY BUILDING: OTHER |

Africa University, Mutare, Zimbabwe $30,000 to enable the University's Faculty

of Agnculture to obtam the Essential Electrorue Agncultural Library to improve access
of faculty and students to up-te-date scientfic information on all areas of agncultural
science for teaching and research

Afrlcan Crop Science Society, Rustenburg, South Afnca $37,050Q to support the next
scientific meeting of the Afncan Crop Science Society, based at Makerere University's
Faculty of Agnculture, to be held in Migena, 2001

Agricuttural College of the Humid Tropical Region, San José, Costa Rica $350,000
to strengthen collaborative relaticnships between the college and Makerere University
n Uganda through exchange of students and faculty, and imbiation of joint research
projects in sustanable agnculture, and through innovahions i learning, teaching and
community development. {$200,000 from Regional Actvhies/Cther Regions and
$50,000 from African Regional Qffice/Human Capacity Bulding/Afncan Universities-
MNew York }

Cornell Unrversity, Albert R, Mann Library, Ithaca, New York- $85,000 for use by
its Albert R Mann Library toward additional marketing and training support for the
Essential Electronic Agncuttural Library in Africa

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $10,000 for use by its Faculty of Agnculiure
to further the developrnent of its programs

Ministry of Lands and Agriculture, Zimbabwe, Causeway, Zimbabwe $45,000 to
provide access to the Essenhal Electronic Agnicultural Library to the Agronomy
Research Institute of the Department of Research and Spetiakist Services to improve
the qualty of ts scientific research actmbies

Obafemi Awolowo University, Ife-Ife, Nigena $45,000 to provide access to the
Essential Electrome Agricultural Library wath its Faculty of Agneulture to improve
access of faculty and students to up-to-date scientific information on all areas of
agncultural science for teaching and research

Texas ASM University, College Station, Texas $352,263 for research and Ph D
tramng n maize breeding, with emphasis on tolerance to drought and low soil
nitrogen, for two students from southem Afnica

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe $75,000 to provide a huepant
year salary supplement for a professonal chatr in crops science atffheUniversitys

Department of Crop Science of the Faculty of Agnculture, in ogller,to strengthen lh
quality of teaching and scientrfic research

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zmbabwe- $100,000 to stfengthe: |&
University's Department of Soil Science and Agncultural Engifgenng thig
visiting research professorship

:
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HEALTH EQUITY

Harnessing the New Sciences

| GLOBAL ALLIANCE FOR VACCINES |

Foundahon-admimstered project: $100,000 to undertake an inventory of public/
private partnerships for vaccine research and development and to explore innguative
ways 10 accelerate the development of vaccines and immunizations for use in
developing countnes i

Foundaton-adminstered project: $65,000 in support of the production, publication
and distribution of a repert on the pharmacoeconormics of tuberculosis drug developraent

Foundabon-administered project: $85,000 in support of the production, publication
and distnbution of the “Scientrfic Bluepnnt for TB Drug Development *

Foundabon-admimstered project: $1,500,000 in support of the creation and launch
of the Global Aliance for TB Drug Development

Global Alliance for TB Drug Development, New York, Mew York $4,500,000 for
general suppart

Global Forum for Health Research, Geneva, Switzerland $500,000 for core funding
of its actvities in 2000 and specifically for the private partnerships project

Intenational Vaccine Institute, Seoul, South Korea $50,000 toward the costs
of a program of capacity buillding in developing counines for clinical evaluation of
new vaccines

Medical Research Council, Cape Town, South Afnca $99,825 for use by its
Tuberculosis Drug Research Unit in Pretona to support the establishment of a
Coalition of Tuberculosis Research and Developrment Stakeholders in countnes
most affected by the disease

Medical Research Council, Cape Town, South Afnca $36,575 for use by its
Tuberculosis Drug Research Unit in Pretonia for a Latin Amenca regional consultative
meeting of tuberculosis research-and-development stakeholders to entify and
pnontize local needs

Willam Alan Muraskin, New York, New York $23,000 to continue {0 research and
wnte a book entitled, “A History of the Growth of the Chikdren’s Vaccine Program

University of Chicago, Chicago, llnos $63,000 for support of a research study on
the bialogy of apicomplexan parasites in order to identify targets for new medicines

University of Maryland at Balbimore, Baltirmore, Maryland $27,000 for use by its
Center for Vaccine Development toward the cost of research related to the development
of a safe, practical and effective oral vaccine against Shigella and £ coh and for
survesllance studies of pediatnic infections in Bamako, Mal

Wortd Health Orgamzation, Geneva, Switzerland $200,000 toward the costs of
strengthening and mawntaining a global movement for antituberculosis drug discovery
and developmeant

| MEDICINES FOR MALARIA |

Medicines for Malana Venture, Geneva, Switzerland $2,000,000 n support of
public/private partnerstups that foster the discovery and development of affordable
new antunalanal drugs

Medicines for Malana Venture, Geneva, Switzerland $1,300,000 in support of the
estabhshment of public/private partnerships to foster the discovery and development
of affordable new antimalarial drugs

Strengthening Global Leadership

[ HEALTH EQUITY FRONTIERS |

Catholte University of Chile, Sanbago, Chile $185,400 for use by its Department of
Public Health for a project to strengthen monitoning of health equity and health care
in Chile, as part of the Equity Gauge initiative

Global Health Council, White River Junction, Vermont $350,000 far activities to
promote redressing dispanbies in child health related o a U N General Assembly
Special Session on Children in September 2001

eal Disease Research, Bangladesh, Dhaka,
by its Centre for Health and Population Research for

bal elop 2 health-equity momitonng system in Bangladash,
€E-ﬁfl' ofthe Bauity Gauge imbiative

International Centre for Diarrhoeal Disease Research, Bangladesh, Dhaka,
Bangladesh $100,000 for use by rts Centre for Health and Population Research,
for the thurd phase of a collaborative research study between Bangledesh Rural
Advancement Commuttee (BRAC) and International Centre for Diarrhoeal Disease
Research, Bangladesh (ICDDR, B) on the effects of poverty-allewaton programs
on health

Mahudol University, Bangkok, Thasland $100,000 for use by ts Faculty of Social
Sciences and Humanities i support of a collaborative project to identify, assess and
monitor equity in health and health care in Thailand at the nabional, regicnal and
provincial levets, as part of the Equity Gauge (nitiative

Ministry of Health, China, Beging, Chuina  $250,000 for use by its Center for Health
Statishes and Inforrmation to estabhish the Chna Health Surveillance System, a
household-based and equity-onented health monitoring systern, as part of the Equity
Gauge inhative

Pan Amenican Health Organization, Washington, D C $500,000 toward the
costs of the capacity-building component of its health-equity inibatwe, and toward
regional level activities to identify and redress gender inequities in health-sector
reform policies

Tramung and Research Support Centre, Harare, Zimbabwe $98,250 to enhance
pubhe parbeipation and accountability in the heatth-budget processes in Zimbabwe,
as part of the Equity Gauge imhative

University of the Witwatersrand, Johannesburg, Sauth Afnca $25,000 for use by its
Centre for Health Policy toward the costs of developing-country parhcipation in the
regional conference of the Southem Afncan Network on Equity in Health (EQUINET),
Sept 13-15, 2000

Univessity of the Western Cape, Bellwilie, South Afnca $250,000 te develop a prac-
tical strategy for equitable allocation of public health resources and interventions
among 11 health distncts in the Cape Town Metropole, South Afnca, as part of the
Equity Gauge imhiative

| GLOBAL HEALTH WATCH |

Action on Smoking and Health Foundation, Bangkok, Thaland $300,020 for
activities related to the development of the Southeast Asian Tobacce Control Alliance,
a collaborative regional tobacco-control network

Action on Smolung and Health Foundation, Bangkok, Thailand $53,550 for a
workshop to foster the sholls and knowledge of key actors within the tobacco-control
field in Southeast Asia

Adventist Development and Relief Agency International, Sitver Spring, Maryland
$158.692 for use by its Cambodia office for a cormmunity-based intervention project
to increase the role of Buddhist monks in mimmizing tobaceo use wathin Cambodia

Consumers International, London, United Kingdom  $30,000 for use by its Regional
Office for Asia and the Pacific for a workshop on tobacco consumption and control,
held in Durban, South Afnca, Nov 13-17, 2000

Doctors Without Borders, Mew York, Mew York $75,000 toward the costs of a
conference, organized jointly with Health Action International, on Improving Access
to Essential Medicnes in East Afnca  Patents and Prices 1n a Global Economy, held
in Nawwobn, Kenya, June 2000

Essental Information, Washington, DC  $75,000 to support a pilot project to
imibiate tobacco-contred partnershups between U S and developing-country groups

Harvard University, Cambndge, Massachusetts $35,000 for use by its School

of Public Health in support of two seminars to explore ways in which information
and cormmunication technologies can best be used to advance health in developing
countnes

Johins Hoptuns University, Balbmore, Maryland $356,064 far use by its Institute for
Glohal Tobacco Control for capacity buillding and researchysurverllance activities in
Southeast Asia

Ministry of Health, Indonesia, Surabaya, Indonesia $61,328 for use by its
Directorate General of Drug and Food Control for a workshop of the ASEAN countries
an the World Trade Organizahion  Trade-Related Aspects of International Property
Rights, agreement and access to essential drugs

Panos Limited, London, United Kingdom  $55,435 toward the cost of producing a
bnefing document to increase the awareness of the different factors affecting access
to treatment for HIV and AlDS-related infections for disseminabion and discussion at
the 13th Intemabional AIDS Conference in Durban, South Afrca

Unmversity of llinoss at Chicago, Chicago, llinois $402,436 for use by 1ts Health
Research and Policy Centers to support the development of a research and technical-
assistance program on the economecs of tobacco use and control in Southeast Asia

World Health Organizahon, Geneva, Switzerland $205,500 for use by its Country
Office 1n Cambodia to provide technical assistance to government and nongovernmental
arganizations involved in fobacco control in Camboda
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Reproductive Health

Arwisandhan Teust, Mumbai, India; $425 000 to support India’s National Abortion
Assessment Study.

Family Planning Association of Kerya, Nairobi, Kenya: $23%,430 to complete an
intervention research project testing a new reproductive-haatth service delivery model
for young people in the small city of Nyari,

Foundation-administered project: $65,000 for consultancies and meatings associated
with implementing the reproductive-health services research program.

IPAS, Chapel Hili, Morth Carolina: $285,000 t0 conduct an assessment of three
community-based adolescent sexual and reproductive-health projests in West Africa,
and hold a regional workshop for these and other organlzations conducting similar
research in Africa.

IPAS, Chape! Hill, North Carolina; $2,230,110 to build program and research
capacity among teams in sub-Saharan Affca that are conducting intervention resesren
to design and test community-based approaches to expanding adolescent sexual- and
reproductive-healih information and sendces and promoting healthy behaviors.

Ministry of Health, Ghana, Accra, Ghana: $327,470 toward the cost of the
demographic surveillance system of the Nawronge Health Research Centre.

Pacific Institute for Women's Health, Los Angeles, California: $691,790 o test
community-based interventions to prevent unwanted pregnancies and unzafe
abortion and its complications in Kenya, in collaboration with the Center for the Study
of Adlescenca in Nairobi,

Popalation Councll, News York, New York: $227,950 to enable the Population
Council's staff in Banghok to continue to assist local researchers and UNICEF's
Myanmar office with conducting recearch studies, training and technical zssistance
an criticat issues in reproductive health and HIVAIDS in Myanmear,

Papulation Councll, New York, New York: $348,840 to enable its Nairobi regional
aoffice to continue to provide technical assistance to the Family Planning Association of
¥enya and the Zimbabwe MNational Famity Planning Council in testing and ¢valuating
new models of repraductive-health pragrams for adolescents.

Populatian Council, New Yark, New York: §
collaboration with the Seif-Employed Wo
set of livelihood and savings program acit
girls in Intia and the impact of such act!
and childbearing.

of publishing and distributing, free of changeNg
sub-Saharan Africa and South Asia,

Research, Action and nformation Metwork for the Bodily Integrity of Women, New
York, Mew Yori: $100,000 for its African Partnership for Sexual and Reproductive
Health and Rights of Women.

Sakhi for South Asian Women, New York, New York: $454,940 for a project in
collabaration with a group of women's and development organizations in India, o
complete and disseminate a review of sexual- and reproductive-health ressarch
conducted in India over the past 10 years; and o conduct with several community-
based otganizations in India, case studes and research to assess the links hetween
asset-building programs for wornen ard women's reproductive heaith.

Save the Children Fund {U.K.}, London, United Kingdom: $82,870 for creating and
strengthening the psychological and social resources of adalescents in urkan Mali, in
order to facilitata their acquisition and application of sexual-health information,

Society for Education, Action and Research in Community Health, India: $50,000
for the writing, publication and dissemination of research papers on reproductive and
child bealth and institutional capacity building.

Thomas Jefferson University, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania: $498,250 to further devel-
op the capacity of the Global Mefworl for Pesinatal and Reproductive Health, and to
support a multicenter study of perinatal infections.

Unlversity of Ibadan, (badan, Nigeria: $170,000 for a study to develop and evaluate
reproductive-health education and service programs for out-of-school youth in rural
and urban sites in Oyo State, Higeria,

University of Montreal, Montreal, Canada: $14,420 for a study to be conducted in
cailaboratien with tihe University of Yaoundé on adelescent reproductive health and
seuality in Cameroon.
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University of Montreal, Montreal, Canada $450,000 for intervention research to be
conducted 1n collaboration with the University of Yaounds, to test several approaches
to )mproving the sexual and reproductve heatth and health-seeking behaviars of
adolescents n Cameroon

Unwversity of Quagadougou, Quagadoligou, Burkina Faso $55,190 for a community-
hased study to document and understand the norms and practices refated to induced
abortion and prevention of unwanted pregnancies in a rural area of Bazega Province

Unma Foundation, Nairoby, Kenya $35,000 for 2 study on the \mpact of its AIDS
awareness actvibies on the sexual behawvior of youth in Kenya
Women's Health and Action Research Centre, Berun City, Nigena $182,970 to

conduct documentation and intervention research on the sexual and reproductive
health of out-of-school adolescents 1 Nigena

Zimbabwe Nabonal Family Planning Councit, Harare, Zmbabwe $302,110to
complete an intervention research project aiming to identify appropnate, effective
and replhicable models of reproductive-health services for youth in Zimbabwe

Resourcing Public Health

[ PUBLIC HEALTH SCHOOLS WITHOUT WALLS |

Carter Center, Atlanta, Georgia $60,000 1n support of three in-country public health-
training and curnculum-development workshops in Ethiopa

Chulalongkorn Unwersity, Banghok, Thailand $6,321 for use by its Gollege of
Public Health for reimbursement of the local costs assotated with hosting the annual
meebing in February 1999 of the Publie Health Schools Without Walls Network in
Bangkok, Thaland

Foundation-zdministered project: $160,000 for the costs associated with a
comprehensive parhcipatory evaluation of the Pubhc Heaifth Schools Without Walls
{PHSWOW]) program

Foundation-adnunistered project: $50,000 supplemental funding for the
comprehensive evaluation of the PHSWOW program to enable the evaluators to
further network development and to facibtate internal evaluations of the programs
n Zimbabwe, Uganda, Ghana and Vietnam

Sree Chitra Tirunal Institute for Medical Sciences and Technology, Tnvandrum,
India $130,029 for use by ts Achutha Menon Centre for Health Science Studies
to support the activities of the woarlang group established to collect and analyze
information to define the future forrm and membership of the Publhc Health School
Without Walls networl In preparation for the next annual meeting

[ INFORMATION/SURVEILLANCE |

Afnca Midwives Research Network, Dar es Salaam, Tanzama $200,000 as an
Internationat Health Research Award for support of a collaborative partnership to
strengthen research skills and opportunities among midwives in Africa

Ateneo de Manila University, Manila, Philippines $93,900 for use by its Institute
of Philippine Culture for activibies related fo fostening people-centered public health
strategres, and forging networks among several Asian countries to share information
about these efforts

Braziian Instrtute for Consumer Protection, Sao Paulo, Brazl $200,000 as

an Intemational Heatth Research Award to support a collaborative partnership to
improve health in Brazil and Latin Amenca by strengthening consumer action
through research and knowledge generation

Chulalongkorn University, Bangkok, Thailand $98,800 for use by its College
of Public Health for activibies related to knowledge management and capacity
development in Southeast Asi

Consumers Internatienal, London, United Kingdom  $350,000 for use by ds
Regronal Office for Asta and the Pacific toward the costs of the People’s Health
Assernbly conference held in Dhaka, Bangladesh, December 2000

Council on Health Research for Development, Geneva, Switzerdand $150,000
supplemental funding for an interatonal conference i Bangkok, Thalland, to devise
a new agenda for health research for development

Curatio Intemational Foundation, Thilisi, Republic of Georgia $200,000 as an
Internabonal Health Research Award to support a collaborative partnership to
strengthen the links between research and policies to make the health-care system
ore respansive to the needs of its population

r lunchon, Vermont $248,950 o support a
outreach program in the United States on infechous

Health Systems Research Inshtute, Nondabun, Thailand $200,000 as an
international Health Research Award to support a collaboratrve partaersiup to
strengthen the capacity of bealth-research institutions in the context of health-
systems reform in Thailand

INCLEN Trust International, Manila, Phibppines  $2,000,000 for general support

Institute of Policy Studies of Sn Lanka, Colombo, Sn Lanka $260,000 as an
International Health Research Award to support a collaboratve partnershup to
strengthen health-systerns reform n the Asia-Pacedic region within the Natonal
Health Accounts framework

Medical Research Council, Cape Town, South Afnca $200,000 as an International
Health Research Award for use by its Women's Health Research Unit in Pretonia to
support a collaborative partnership to create a South Afncan gender-based wiclence
and health nhative

Mimistry of Health, Cambodia, Phnom Penh, Cambodia $84,918 for use by its
Communicable Disease Control Department for continued efforts to strengthen
disease survesllance through capacity buldding and communications networking

Ministry of Health, Kenya, Nairobi, Kenya $98,300 n support of actiities to
strengthen the integrated disease survaillance system in Kenya, as part of the East
Afnican Integrated Disease Survaillance Network

Ministry of Health, Uganda, Karnpala, Uganda $79,800 in support of a project to
strengthen the integrated disease surverllance system in Uganda, as part of the East
Afncan Integrated Disease Surverllance Network

Ministry of Public Health, Thailand, Nonthabun, Thaland $10,460 for use by its
Field Epidermiology Traiming Program toward the costs of a meeting related to the
start-up of a Mekong Basin Disease Surveillance network

Miristry of Public Health, Thailand, Nonthabun, Thaland $400,000 for use by
its Field Epiderniotogy Training Program for activities related to the mantenance and
further development of the Mekong Basin Disease Surveillance network

National Institute for Medical Research, Dar es Salaam, Tanzania $200,000 as
an internabional Health Research Award to support a collaborative partnership to
strengthen the Tanzana National Health Research Forum and for health-research
actnaties

National Instrtute for Medical Research, Dar es Salaam, Tanzama $141,841 in
support of its activihies as the country focal point for Tanzania and to serve as the
regional coordinating center for the East Afncan Integrated Disease Surveillance Network

Mational Instrtute of Public Health, Mexico, Cuernavaca, Morelos, Mexico
$200,000 in suppart of a collabaratve partnership to improve the hinks between
repraductive-health and health-sector reforms in Latn Amenca and the Canbbean

Nepal Health Research Council, Kathmandu, Nepal $200,000 as an Intemabonal
Health Research Award for a collaborative partnershep in support of activities to
strengthen the health-research network in Nepal

Southeast Asian Minlsters of Education Organizatlon, Bangkok, Thailand
$200,000 for use by its Regional Tropical Medicine and Public Health Network
for actwities related to research-capacily development for provincialidistnet health
officers in the Mekong region

Tata Institute of Social Sciences, Mumbai, India $200,000 1n support of a
coltaborative parinership to strengthen health research among nongovernmental
organizations n India

World Health Organizabon, Geneva, Switzerland $400,000 to work with regional
representatives of developing-country mstrtutions te develop an administration

and selection process for the Millenmum Health Research Awards, presented at an
international reeting entitled, (ntarmational Conference on Heatth Research for
Development, in October 2000

launching a Second Contraceptive Revolution

Action Canada for Population and Development, Ottawa, Canada $96,270fora
public-education program about internationat poputation and development (ssues,
and the dissernination of research results on these topics

Aaron iamaond AIDS Research Center, New York, New York $300,000 for a study
of nfubtors of HIV-1 envelope and cellular coreceptors, as part of a network geared
toward the developrment of vaginal microbicides

All India Institute of Medical Sciences, New Delhi, India $299,940 for studies in
receptive stage gene expression in the rhesus menkey endometnum and the mode
of action of antiangogenic agents dunng receptiity and implantation, as part of an
implantation research network brought together by the World Health Qrganization
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All India Institute of Medical Sciences, New Delhi, india $100,000 to continue
stucies in receptive stage gene expression in the rhesus monkey endometnum and the
mode of action of antiangiogenic agents dunng receptinty and implantahion, as part of
an implantation research network brought together by the World Health Organization

Blaise Pascal University, Clermont-Ferrand Cedex, France $91,110 for a study
of GPXS and GPX3 in the mammalan epicdidyrmis as potential fools toward the
modulation of the eprdidymal enviranment and the integnity of spermatozoa

Brigham and Women's Hospital, Boston, Massachusetts $299,980 for a study of
vagnal tract mucosal-immune defense and HIV infection, as part of a network geared
toward the development of vaginal microbicides

Chinese Academy of Sciences, Beying, China  $100,000 for use by its State Key
Laboratory of Reproductive Biology to study the effects of antiangriogenic factorscn
the corpus luteum and implantation in pnimates as part of an implantation-research
netwaork brought together by the World Health Organization

Concept Foundation, Banghok, Thalland: $242,810 to complete a collaborative
research and development project with the World Health Organization and Chinese
instibutions concerming the post-ovulatory use of mifepnstone as a means of reducing
unwanted pregnancies and the recourse to abortion.

Family Health Intemational, Research Tnangle Parl, Narth Carolina $29,290
for a study of the intraduction and use of emergency contracephion in Venezuela

Oregon Health Sciences University, Portland, Oregon  $300,000 for use by the
Cregon Regional Pnimate Research Center for studies in rhesus monkeys using
antiangiogenic agents as part of an implantation-research network brought together
by the World Health Organization

Population Council, New York, New York $743,620 to participate 10, and adrminister
a basic science network on, heterosexual transmission of HIV that s geared toward
the development of vaginal microbieides

Prince Henry's Institute of Medical Research, Clayion, Victona, Australia: $300,000
for a study of novel endometnal targets for pasteoital contraception as part of an
implantahon-research network brought together by the World Health Organization

Rockefeller University, New Yorl, New York $295,320 for a study of dendnhc
cells as targets for microbicides to block the mucosal transmission of HIV, as part
of a network geared toward the development of vaginal microbicides

Unwersity of California, Dawis, Dawis, California $300,000 for studies in the
Slv/rhesus macaque ammal model designed to define the biology of heterosexual
HIV transrmission, as part of a network geared toward the development of vaginal
microbicides

University of Cambridge, Cambndge, Ursted Kingdom $330,170 for use by its
Roste Hospital for a study of angiogenesis and the role of angiogenic growth factors
on implantation as part of an implantation research network brought together by the
World Health Organization

University of Technology Aachen, Aachen, Germany $330,000 for development of
trophoblast-specific contracephive agents as part of an implantation-research network
brought together by the World Health Organization

University of Turku, Turky, Finland $212,260 to complete a study involving the
development of immortalized epididymal cell lines and related activities as part of
a network concerned with the application of molecular pharmacology for post-
testicular actwity

Umiversity of Virginia, Charkotteswille, Virgnia, $142,570 to complete a project
on epididymal-specrfic transcnption factors and secreted proteins as targets for the
development of a male contraceptive

Vanderbilt University, Nashuille, Tennessee $322,850 to complete resaarch on the
charactenzatton of an eprdidyrnal gene promoter as a tool to study secreted epididymal
proteins as potentiat targets for male contraception

Westphallan Wilhelms University, Munster, Germany $1358,100 to complete a study
designed to develop a male contracephive by targeting sperm metabolism

World Health Organization, Geneva, Switzerland $72,400 for a meehng in Oregon
of the inveshigators and project review committee for an implantation research initiabve
of the Special Programme of Research, Development and Research Traiming in
Human Reproduction

‘World Health Organization, Geneva, Switzerdand $250,000 for meetings, collaborative
projects and publication costs associated with an implantation-research (nitiative of
the Special Programme of Research, Development and Research Training in Human
Reproduction

Promoting Po'liéy Dialogue and Research

| CAPACITY BUILDING IN AFRICA | 5

INDEPTH, Navrongo, Ghana $100,000 for a scientific meeting in Johannesburg,
Sauth Afnca, of representatives from an (nternational network of field sites with
continuous demographic evaluation of populations and their health.

Population Council, New York, New York $994,730 in support of (s Afncan
Population and Health Pobicy Research Center in Mairch

Explorations and Other Grants

| INITIATIVES FOR EQUITY IN HEALTH |

African Medical and Research Foundation, Nairoby, Kenya $4C,000 in support of a
mesting o explore apporturities for hamessing information fechnology for commurity
health with a special focus on changing the climate for continuing education and
increasing public demand for better health care

Chinese Academy of Preventive Medicine, Beying, China $25,000 to support
developing-country participants from cutside of China to attend the internabional
meeting, Challenges for Public Health at the Dawn of the 21st Century.

Commonwealth Regional Health Community Secretariat for East, Central and
Southem Africa, Arusha, Tanzam $97,556 in support of a meeting of health and
finance mimsters to discuss pnonty issues that relate to mcreasing government financ-
ing of HIV/AIDS prevention and control programs in east, central and southern Afnca

Foundation-administered project: $100,000 in support of a Bellagio conference on
the feasibility of establishing a global TB drug facility for equitable access and efficient
procurament of TB drugs

Foundahon-adnunistered project: $200,000 to explore

on the feasibiity of creating a global drug facility for eq l‘f"ﬁbm =
treatmant

Foundation-administered project: $500,00C in support of the establishment of
a global drug facility to ensure equitable access to and efficient procurement of
tuberculosts drugs

Foundation-adnmmstered project: $99,500 to explore the feasibilty of a public/
private partnership to accelerate the development of a dengue vaccine for poor children

Grantmakers in Health, Washington, D C  $12,000 for continued support of its
efforts to communicate information and generate knowledge about health ssues and
effective grantmaking strategies to help grantmakers improve the nation's health,

Harvard Unlversity, Cambndge, Massachusetts $25,000 for suppart of a sympo-
sium, Community-Based Healthcare Lessons from Bangladesh to Boston, to ook at
the impact of community-based models and to engage prachiioners in a dialogue for
developing future programs

Health Systems Research Institute, Nondabun, Thailand $500,000 toward the
costs of documenting and strengthening the role of civil society in decision makang
about health-sector reform in Thailand

Pan American Health Orgamzabion, Washington, D C $46,217 in support of a project
to increase the responsweness and appropnateness of public-health training programs
and instituttons in addressing the social and heatth needs of thesr populations

University of Manitoba, Winmipeg, Canada $288,000 for continued support of a
collaborative research project, with the University of Natrobt and the University of
Ghent, to evaluate the impact of regular routine chernoprophytaxis to reduce the
incidence of sexually transmitted diseases and HIV infection among women sex
workers in Kenya

World Health Orgamization, Geneva, Switzerland $874,600 for the secand phase
of actities to be conducted 1n collaboration with LINICEF and warking groups from
vanous countnes, to design and test new measures to monitor and evaluate nsk and
protective factors in adolescent development in country-level programming
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m WORKING COMMUNITIES

Setting a More Equitable Public Agenda

| RACE POLICY AND DEMOCRACY |

Barelas Community Development Corporation, Albuquerque, New Mexco $15,000
to assist the Barelas Community to parbicipate In a comprehensive citywide redevel-
epment plan in Aibuquerque, New Mexico

Bay Area Insbtute, San Francisco, Califorma $100,000 to expand its New Califomsa
Media into a statewnde collaboration of ethmc news organizabions aimed at enkancing
interettinic coltaboration and civic education

Chicago Lawyers' Commuttee for Cowil Rights Under Law, Chicago, llnois $100,000
n support of its Economic Opportunity Program to increase the capacity of individuals
to access and sustan high-quality employment

Colling Center for Public Policy, Tallahassee, Flonda $10,000 to support the
Funders’ Network for Smart Growth and Lwable Communities conference on Smart
Investing in Calfornia Commurmties

Collins Center for Pubhic Policy, Tallahassee, Florida $40,000 to support its project,
Funders' Network for Smart Growth and Livable Communities, exploning how funders
and practitoners can effectively advance an equity agenda in the emerging smart-
growth movernent

Community Renewal Sotiety, Chicago, llinois $50,000 toward continued support
for its publication, The Chicago Reporter

International Human Rights Law Group, Washington, D C $50,000 for additional
support for a preparatory consultatton at Bellagio for the United Nations World
Conference on Racism, scheduled for the year 2001

Massachusetts Instiute of Technology, Cambridge, Massachusetts $100,000 for
general support for the Center for Reflective Cornmunity Practice

Unversity of Chicago, Chicago, (Iknors $85,000 to support comparative research by
the Black Ciil Society Project of the Center for the Study of Race, Politics & Culture
on cvic associahon among different populations m the United States, especially
Afncan-Amencan communities

University of Memphus, Memptus, Tennessee $50,000 to support the Race and
Nation in the Global South imitiative of its Center for Research on Women, which
wilk create knowledge about the Southern region’s changing demographics

Youth Law Center, Wastungton, D C  $100,000 for continuing support for its
Juvenile justice intbiative, Bullding Blocks for Youth

| POLICY ANALYSIS AND ADVOCACY |

9 to 5, Working Women Education Fund, Millwaukee, Wisconsin $75,000 to
support a six-month organizational development and strategic planning process for
the National Alliance for Far Employment, a network of national and local groups
dedicated to impraving the working conditrons of nonstandard workers by promoting
better pubhc policies and private business practices

Asian Pacific American Legal Center of Southern Callfornia, Los Angeles, Cahfornia
$400,000 for continued support of its Far Redistncting Project

Centter for Communsty Change, Washungton, D C  $450,000 to provide general
support for technical assistance, policy analysis, training, workshops and convening
for the 300 grassroots community groups it serves and to provide a vaice for thewr
concerns in natonal policy debates, parbcularly on housing, the Community
Renvestment Act and work-force development 1ssues

Center for Community Change, Washington, D C  $60,000 to support the first phase
of the National Carnpaign for Jobs and Income Support as 1t attempts to build support
armong local grassroots organizing groups to advance a national anbipoverty agenda

Center for Law and Social Policy, Washington, D G $200,000 to fund the
advancement of a structure of supports for low-wage working familes and
unemployed adults and to improve work-force development services

Center for Law and Secial Policy, Washington, D € $15,000 to provide parhal
support 0 convene policy analysts, adwocates and practiioners to review recent
research findings on family formation and child welfare and to discuss their policy
ymphcations and potenbial use in the debates about reauthenzation of federal
hiftesge suppog«of poorYamyies and pro-family pohcies

gton, DC  $900,000 for general support for s
sfand iveliood of Amenca's children

CLF Serwices, Boston, Massachusetts $100,000 to support its development, n
collaboration wath the Potomac Coalition, of a busmess plan for democratic investing—
an nvestment vehicle targeted at creating wealth in paor communities and focusing
on demaocratic control of investrments and cibizen mvolvement in their deployment to
serve the pnonties of marginalized communities

Community Vosces Heard, New York, New York $150,000 toward general support
for grassroots organizing and outreach among low-ncome residents to encourage and
faciltate ther participation m policy debates around welfare reform, workfare and job
creation in New York City and New York state

Conservabon Law Foundation, Boston, Massachusetts $275,000 for general
support of its Greater Boston Institute

Economic Opportunity Institute, Seattle, Washigton $150,000 toward general
support for research, pohcy and advocacy to improve the economie secunty and
well-being of low-mcome households in Washington state

Economic Policy Inshitute, Washington, D C  $450,000 to support the angoing
research, techmical assistance and outreach work on lwing standards and to promote
public policies at the national, state and local levels that can improve the economic
well-being of working people

Enterprise Foundation, Columbia, Maryland $1,315,000 for the third round of the
National Commumty Development Initrative

Fiscal Policy Institute, New York, New York $175,000 to support (a) sectoral
analyses of New York City's economy, including the wages and benefits provided
by nonprofit social-service agencies that employ many former welfare recipients,
(b} monitonng of the implementation of the Worldorce (nvestment Act, and

{c) a survey and senes of eight focus groups of New York public opiron on welfare
and work-force development issues

Foundaton-administered project: $40,000 to host a program planming meeting at

the Bellagio Study and Conference Center on Economuc integration and inequality in
the Global Economy to discuss a research and policy agenda for creating a farer set
of rules of econormic engagernent between developed and developing countnes

Foundation-admumistered project: $50,000 to support two reviews of newspaper
coverage in five geographic areas, the first will examine portrayats of welfare recipents
and welfare reform between 1996 and today, the second will examine press coverage
of work-force development issues that affect low-skilled workers

Human Services Alliances, Los Angeles, Calformia $60,000 to prowide support for a
survey of the child-care needs of 600 low-income farmilies in Los Angeles County, to
generate public education matenals on chikd-care ssues, and to develop workshops
to train social-sennice prowiders and low-income residents to advocate for subsidized
child care that meets their needs

Institute for Women's Policy Research, Washington, D € $80,000 to support
two ongoing policy projects—one examines the education and traiming opportunibes
actually available to women attempting to move off welfare in seven states, the
second project provides techmical assistance and policy-analysis suppert te local
groups promoting unemployment insurance reform

Instrtute of Development Studies, Bnghton, United Kingdom $48,100 te bring
together at the Bellagio Study and Conference Center key researchers to clanfy the
theoreticat and methoedological foundations of value-chan analysis and discuss its
utility as a demce to promote understanding of global ecanomic integration

Jobs with Justice Education Fund, Washington, D C  $75,000 to support a six-
month organizational development and strategic planning process invohang local
coalihons of cornmunity, faith based, labor and student organizaticns comnitted
to promating economic (ustice

Lawyers’ Committee for Crvil Rsghts Under Law, Washington, D C  $150,000
toward support of its Fair Redistniching Project to enhance minenty voting nghts
and participation

Local Imbative Support, Traming and Educabon Network, Washington, D C
$200,000 to support the development of curnculum, staff traiming and model
practices for the Workforce Investrment Act's Youth Opportunity Centers in the
Distnet of Columbxa and nationally

Local tnitratives Support Corporation, New York, New York $935,000 for the third
round of the Natiorial Community Development lratiative

Mexcan Amencan Legat Defense and Educational Fund, Los Angeles, Califormia
$150,000 for wts 2000-2001 Redistncting Project to ensure fair representation for
Latinos and other minorities 1in the redistriching process that wall result from the year
2000 census

MAACPF Legal Defense and Educational Fund, New York, New York $150,000 for
continuing support for fair radistncting efforts

National Council of La Raza, Wastungton, DC  $450,000 to provide support for
the activities of the Policy Analysis Center of NCLR winch conducts research, policy
analysis and outreach actwities on the educational, economic and employment
conditions of Latinos i the United States
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PolicyLink, Qakland, Califorma: $1,500,000 to provide general support for an
emarging national community-tunlding policy mstitute,

Progressive Technology Project, Washington, D.C.: $35,000 to support the produchon,
publ ication and dissemmnation of two documents that describe (a) best practices

i the grassroots use of information technology, and (b) the needs and challenges
community organizers face n using technology.

Progressive Technology Project, Washington, D.C.: $200,000 to provide two years
of general support for a national support center providing hands-on technical and
strategic assistance, and traming and small grants for physical infrastructure to
Ccommun ity-organizing groups so that they can use new infarmation tools more
effectrely to advance their work

Puerto Rican Legal Defense and Education Fund, New York, New York- $150,000 to
support its Cic Participation and Yoting Rights Praject, a comprehensive and multi-
faceted approach to vobing nghts to meet the growinig needs of the Latino eommunity.

Southern Eche, Inc., Jackson, Mississippt $175,000 for continued support of efforts
o buid capacity of Afncan-Amencan communmties in Mississipm and the Southern
region to participate productively in local policymaking and gevernance.

State University of New York, Albany, New York, $58,703 for use by the Melson A.
Rockefeller Institute of Government as bridge support for a multisite study of 1he
implementaticn by caseworkers of policies articulated by state and local officials for
Temporary Aud fo Needy Families,

Stralegic Concepts in Organizing and Policy Education, Los Angeles, California:
$100,000 to provide core support for economic development and community
orgamzing actrities n Los Angeles

Wayne State Unlversity, Detroit, Michigan $100,000 toward the costs ot a study on
the effects of major automative manufaciurers’ wotkplace strategres on lower-skilled
production workers

William C. Velasquez Institute, Loz Angeles, California $125,000 for general support
of its work to improve poltical and economic participation of Latine communihes in
the United States

| WORK AND ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY | .

AFL=CIG Center for Working Capital, Washingto/MQ.CELS 1v75,000 1 suppaft )
research program on international pension funds and :

tours with capital stewards in other countries, si3

Kingdom, Germany, France and South Afnica

Brandeis Unhversily, Waltham, Massachusetts: § y
examining tha experiences, traming and expectations Fa<amp! , mskilled
female workers daing entry-level health care and clencalioffice work employed by
major temporary-help agencies.

Center for Community Change, Washington, D.C.: $100,000 to provide general
support for its Coalition on Human Needs Project, which offers information sharing,
public education actiaties and strategic cacrdinaticn 1o s membership base of
almost 500 rehgows, cwl nghts, labor and advocacy groups cancemed with ensunng
that the neads of poor and vulnerahle groups are met

Caniter on Policy Initiatives, San Diego, Calfornia: $175,000 for general suppart
of its work to promote improving standards of living for poor and moderate-income
families in San Diego through research, policy development and public educatian.

Corporation for the Advancement of Policy Evaluation, Pninceton, Mew Jersey:
$25,529 to provide planning suppont tor a major study of the way for-profit abor-
markel Infermecharies are being used by public work-force development agencies
ta place public assistance recipients in jobs it New Jersey and nationally,

Foundation-administered project: $90,000 toward the costs of a meeting of
researchers and activists from Morth America and Europe to compare fiexibie labor-
market practices and national stratemes to address nonstandard work issues

Institute of Development Studies, Bnghton, United Kingdom $62,500 to support
the produchion and Gstnbution of & manual outhring methads of carrying out global
value-chain research and analysis that can be used by grassrools organizations

ke those that are part of the Self Employed Women's Association and HomeNet
International to assest in projecting empkayment opportunshes for low-skilled workers

Mational Burean of Econnmic Research, Cambridge, Massachusetts 100,000 to
support a research project examining the impact of employee stock ownership and
ophion plans on worker compensabon, voice and Ineguality within and between firms,

=
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Umnversity of Morth Carolina at Chapel Hill, Chzpel Hill, North Carchina $100,00C
to suppoit a research study investigating the iImpact of for profit tkemporary agencies on
the paths to work and on the sarmings and employment tenure of low skilled workers
and publc assistance recipents in Missoun and North Carglina n the 1990s

Unmversity of Texas at Austin, Austin, Texas $65,000 to support a research project
exarmiming the markets and industries that professional employer orgamizatrons and
temporary agencies are serving in the U § economy

Urnversity of Wisconsin, Madison Wisconsin $60 000 to supporl a research project
exarmrung thanges in the orgamzation of work in the hospitality industry and the way
collechive bargaining inshtutions may assist or impege effective firm and worker adap-
bion o an increasingly compebtive emaronment

[ COMMUNITY AND NEW URBAN PARADIGM |

Harvard University, Cambndpe, Massachusetts $99,256 t0 support a theoretical
and case study review of community buikding and its contnbution to reduging social
and economic disparibes

Intemational Labour Orgarisation, Geneva, Switzerland $75,000 to support 2
workshop on migrant-worker remittances and micro finance indsatives to enhance
investrnent In, and Improve the ves of family members in, nigrants’ home countnes

Urban Instiute, Washington, DC  $350 00G in suppeort of s Neighborhood Change
Database projpct

Buiiding Competent Organizations

[ COMMUNITY BASED ORGANIZATIONS |

Aspen Institute, Washington, D C $100,000 to provide core support for continued
convering of the field and research on the evaluabion of commumty changs by its
Roundtable an Comprehensive Community Inihatives

Chapn Hall Center for Children, Chicago, llnois $10,000 to support the
completion of a publicahion on power and race

Community Partness, Los Angeles Calfornia $5 000 1o establish the Lucy Esquibel
Memonal Fund 0 recagnition of her Iife and contnbutions toward the Wilam Mead
Housing Develapment, by providing support to others in their efforts to attan swilar
|eadership capabilities

Community Resource Exchange, New York New York $50,000 to support a scan
of the held of partnerships between institutions of higher education and communities
nationwide i order to determing the partnecships appheability in New Yark City

Consensus Organizing Institute, San Diego, Calfornia $75,000 toward the costs of
its reorganization

D C Agenda Suppert Corporation, Washington DG $40 000 to facilitate a
partnership between the University of the Distnct of Columbia and members of
community-based voluntary associations that wil binld residents leadarship eapacity

DePaul Unwversity, Chicage llimeis $20,000 for use by 1its Egan Urban Center to
assess diveraity armong technical assistance providers

Hispamics in Philantheopy, Berkeley, Califorma  $750 000 1o support the Funders
Collaboratve for the Strong Latino Communities imhiative to bunld orgamizabonal
capacity ameng, and a broader funding base for, Latino nonprofit organizabions in
the United States ($375 000 from Creatiaty & Culture)

Hostas Community College, Branx, New York $73,122 ko enhance Hostes Community
College’s mshiutional capacity to serve its surrounding Sowth Bronx neighborhood

National Community Butlding Network, Qakland California $350,000 to provde
continued core support

San Francisco Chamber of Commerce, San Francisco California $100,000 toward
the costs of incubating indwidual-development accourt pre-empleyment tramming and
caneer advancement programs of s San Francisce Works project

San Francsco League of Urban Gardeners, San Francisco Calformia $50,000 in
support of its project, the Southeast Neighborhood Jobs Inmative Roundtable

Stanford University, Stanford Califormia $50 000 1o support the develapment of an
Intemnet based matching sennce that matches the needs of nonprofit organizations
with graduate students and faculty at vanous levels of higher education

Tulane Unwversity, New Orleans, Loursiana $50,000 to support the development of
resident-dnven commundy-service projects in parinerships with the New Crieans
Center for the Urban Community

Unavarsity of California, Santa Barbara, Santa Barbara Calforma $13,000 ip
provde addibiona! support for the instdutions of Higher Education and Community
Partnership conference
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Unwersity of Memphis, Memphis, Tennessee $50,000 to support the development of
a consortium of partnerstups between communities and institutions of ngher education

Upnsing Community Plus, San Francisco, California $25,000 to provide supgort for
the final phase of the feasibrity study and application process to establish a community-
controlled credit unton in Bayview Hunters Point

Urban Institute, Washington, DG $200,000 toward continued core support of its
National Neighborhood Indicators Project

Urban Strategres Council, Oakland, California $225,000 in support of its Cormnmunity
Building Support Center

Urban Strategres Council, Oakland, California $225,000 toward core support

Young Community Developers, San Francisco, Califiorma $75,000 to suppont
organizational infrastructure and capacaity-bullding actities

| RACIAL JUSTICE ORGANIZATIONS |

Community Partners, Los Angeles, Calforria $350,000 toward continued support
of its imtiative, Advancement Project

Community Partners, Los Angeles, Califorria $300,000 toward the Advancement
Project's Project Forum on Race and Democracy, which seeks to build a network of
influenhial actors in key social movemnents to explore shared interests and possible col-
laborations across maovements

Foundation-adnumistered project: $320,000 toward adminestrative costs of produc-
Ing ang disseminating the Racial Justice Innovation report

Matwve Amencan Rights Fund, Boulder, Colorade $325,000 for general support of
the Mative Amencan Rights Fund Human Rights Project

Puerto Rican Legal Defense and Education Fund, Mew York, New York
$600,000 to continue support for Basic Rights hibgation, adwocacy and techrucal
assistance activities

| WORK-FORCE DEVELOPMENT MODELS |

Business for Social Responsibility Education Fund, San Francisco, Cahiformia,
$150,000 to assist employers in developing career-advancement strategies in the
retail sector through the development of an 1ssue bnef and a how-to guide

Center for Law and Social Pohcy, Washington, D $87,500 to support technical
assistance, policy analysis and practitioner exchanges aiming to improve the scale
and impact of cormmunity-service jobs programs sering poor and excluded people

Chicago Jobs Council, Chicago, lllinois $100,000 to support the actwvities of The
WorkFund, its work-force capacity-builldimg imitiative for job traiming and emplayment
service providers who are contracted under the Workforce Investrment Act

CitySkills, Watertown, Massachusetts $125,000 ta support orgamizational develop-
ment and Web-srte expansion for is werk n job training and placernent of lower-
meome urban adults inte Web-development careers

Community Developiment Venture Capital Alliance, Mew York, New York $300,000
to support its activiies that encourage traditional-venture capital funds and angel cap-
ital investors to provide equity finance and technical assistance o businesses that
pravide good jobs to low-income people

Comell University, [thaca, New York $25,500 to support the dissermination of a
study of the "new media” work force that will contrbute to current debates about the
effects of infarmation technology, flexinly and new work orgamzations on skill devel-
opment and worklife 1ssues

Cornerstone Assistance Network, Fort Worth, Texas $25,000 to support the design
of a program that will improve the organizational effectiveness of community-based
organizations providing job training and employment-related services to poor and
excluded urban residents

Council of Community Services, Nashville, Tennessee $50,000 fo support the
design of a program that will improve the organizational effectiveness of community-
based organizations providing job traiming and employrment-related services to poor
and excluded urban residents

Development Traming Instrtute, Balhimore, Maryland $81,000 to support research
into strategies te promote human capital development

Foundation-administered project: $100,000 toward administrative costs associated
with the development of a partnership between the Mills Comoration and the
Rockefeller Foundation to learm how residents of poor urban commumihies ¢an get
traiming, support and access to career-irack jobs in Mills malls

Foundation-administered project: $35,000 toward administrative costs associated
with the advancement of a partnership between the Mills Corporation and the
Rockefeller Foundation to enable residents of poor urban commuribes to get training,
supports and access to career-track jobs in Mills malls

The ICA Group, Brookling, Massachusetts $150,000 to support the development
of a network of staffing sennce companies to assist unemployed and underemployed
people into qualiy jobs

Instiative for a Competitive Inner City, Boston, Massachusetts $85,000 for the
production of a corporate strategy case study on the MillsWorks Learning &
Development Center, a project of the Nashwille Jobs Partnership

Initiative for a Competitive Inner City, Boston, Massachusetts $350,000 to support
the documentation and dissernination of work-force recruting, retention and advance-
ment practices of fast-growing inner-cify companies

Jobs for the Future, Boston, Massachusetts $260,000 to support (1) a six-month
planning process to develop new nonproit and cornmercial work-force development
enterpnses for low-skiiled workers, ang (2) informational actiities for policymakers
of diverse perspectives about welfare and educahon-policy pnorites

Jobs for the Future, Boston, Massachusetts $50,000 to support communication ang
dissernination activities related to a national conference entitled, Low-Wage Workers
in the New Economy

Management Consulting Services, Boston, Massachusetts $43,000 to support
the planning phase for s project to build the capacity of work-force development
corganizations in the Boston area

Manpower Demonstration Research Corporation, New York, New York $20,000 to
prewvide support for a Californea conference on the impact of welfare and work-force
development policy reform

Mational Center for Strategic Nonprofit Planning and Community Leadership,
Washington, D C $100,000 to support the implementation of a program aimed at
enhancing the skills and performance of practitroners who work with youth to secure
employment under the Department of Labor’s Youth Opportunity Grants inrhative

National League of Citres Institute, Washington, D C $25,000 to support s City
Qutreach to Working Families project that seeks to ncrease access of love-income
working families to essenhal income support, health-insurance coverage and
nutrhonal assistance

Public/Pnvate Ventures, Ph|ladelph|a, Pennsylvania M -----
mnavation grants component of the Workang Venture lnitiative, whuch ams to
improve the performance of work-force development ofganizations

Pubhc/Private Ventures, Philadelphia, Pennsylvama $15,900 to complete the
documentation of the design and operation of Philadelphra’s Transitional Work
Corporabion, and to distribute the report to policymakers and practitioners

Welfare to Work Partnership, Washington, D C  $150,000 to support the first-year
activities of the New York City Workforoe Source, its work-force development project in
partnership with the Mew York Cify Employment and Training Coaliion, which connects
providers of job-tratning services and key employers in targeted industry sectors

YouthBuild U.S.A., Somenville, Massachusetts $75,000 to hire a project director to
develop a system for career and business development

| SCHOOL DISTRICT INFRASTRUCTURES |

Brown Umversity, Providence, Rhode Island  $400,000 to support the work of the
Annganberg Institute for School Reform’s Nationat Task Force on the Future of Urban
Distncts to develop, advocate for and implement designs to incraase the quality
and effectiveness of supports needed to create commumihies of successful schools
for all chuldren

Learmung Cormmunities Netwark, Ine., Cleveland, Ohio $2,550,000 to help a network
of urban school districts connect distnct-level reform policy to school practce and
take the lessons of network back into the arenas of policy, research and practice

$San Antomo Independent School District, San Antonio, Texas $425,000 toward
continued implementation of the Rockefeller Foundation imtriative, Building Distnct
Infrastructures for Professional Development

Testing Innovations

| RACE AND DEMOCRATIC PARTICIPATION |

Foundation for Contemporary Research, Foreshore, South Afnca $50,000 in
support of its projects, Democrahzing Civil Society and Stmutating Local Econonies,
that will deepen understanding of the process and power of local governance,

and the relationship between economic opportunity, sustained parbcipation and
responsive reprasentation
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Harvard University, Cambridge, Massachusetts: $100,000 for use by the John F.
Kennedy School of Government's Harvard Project on American Indian Economic
Development foward its awards program honoring contributions in the govemance
of American Indian Nations.

Omega Boys Club of San Francisco, San Francisco, California: $100,000 to improve
the financial stability of its arti-violence radio show for urban youth,

Unlversity of Taxas Law School Foundation, Austin, Texas: $100,000 to increase
involvernent in public education among parents who have not been actively engaged
with Austin magnet middle schools in the past.

Uplift, Ine., Greensboro, North Carolina: $200 000 for a planning grant for develop-
ment of the Jubiles institute, a training institute to create the instifutional capacity

to lzad ongoing productive community discourse around issues of race, policy and
democracy In the city of Greensbort, Morth Caraling,

JOBS INITIATIVE

Aspen Institute, Washingtan, D.C.; $50,000 to support the ongoing work of its
Domestic Strategy Graup.

Lalifomia State University, Hayward, Hayward, California: 375,000 to creats a
collaborative among local communities, Alameda County, and California State
University, Hayward, in order to enhance the county’s implementation of emplayment-
related policies.

Center for Law and Social Policy, Washington, D.C.: $1 00,000 to provide technical

support to local officials In California who are planning wage-paying community-
service programs for Temporary Assistance far Needy Families (TANF} recipients.

FHausing, New York, Mew York: $225,000 to strengthen
t services defivered to tenants of supportive housing.

ent Corporation, Oakland, Califomia; $75,000
ape-based employment peagram for limited-English

ect: 571,000 to document the joint program between
the Califmia Endowment, and to support 2 joint

Foundation-administered project: $258,000 toward administrative costs associated
with the Rockefeller Foundation Employment Initiative to increase employment far
inner-city residents.

Manpower Demonstration Research Corporation, New York, New York: $100,000
to support the analysis of performance-based contracting and comrunity-service
jobs as part of a three-year implementation study of the YWisconsin Works program
in Milwaukee.

Manpowet Demonstration Research Corporation, New York, New York: $850,000
1o provids operations support for the Neighborhood Jobs Initiative,

Manpowet Demonstration Research Corporation, New Yok, New Yark: 52,000,000
to suppert the evaiuation of the fobs Plus Demonstration,

Manpower Demonstration Research Corporation, New York, New York: $12,526
to convene a workgroup of social scientists, practitionars and evaluators to assess
and analyze a draft MDRC publication on collaboratlon in the Foundation's Jobs Plu:
demonstration sites. -

Regents of the Unlversity of Californla, San Francisco: $100,000 to support the
implementation and docurnentation of a university-community parthership to enhance
employment and econmmic apportunities in fow-income areas ot San Francisca,

San Francisco State University, San Francisco, Califomia: $98,442 to support
management information-systern development and program-evaluation activities for
San Franciscn's wage-based community-service jobs initiatives,

Urban Institute, Washington, D.C.: $242,065 to build the capacity of the
Neighborhood Jobs Initiatives sites to develop and apply indicators of neighborhood
health and change.

| EDUCATION INITIATIVE |

California Tomorrow, Cakland, Catiforia: $178,835 to catalyze and provide leader-
ship in setting a new agenda for public education that infuses the issues of immigranis
into key school-reform and social-justice dialogues nationally and which affirms that it
is possibie to be bicultural and bilingual,

Fourration-administered project: $465,863 for a symposium to consider the
Rockefeller Foundation's investment in the School Development Program (SOP) and
the lessons for philanthropic suppart of schogkreform initiatives, and for dissemina.
tion of the findings of key SDP researchers and evaluators,
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Loughborough University, Loughborough, Lecestershire, United Kingdom $54,000
to examine how the Bnhish New Deal wetfare-reform program can inform the impending
United States debate on the reauthonzation of welfare-reform legislation

New Haven Public Schools, New Haven, Connecticut $75,000 to deepen and
institutionalize SDP distnctwide

School Dastrict, City of Flnt, Flint, Michigan $1,334,966 to help Flint Community
Schools connect district level reform policy to school practice by planning and
implementmg systerns that improve teaching and leaming distnctwide

School Distnct, City of Fhint, Flint, Michigan $513,266 to evaluate the process,
impact and effectiveness of the Flint Community Schools systemwide reform efiorts

Yale University, New Haven, Connecticut $1,838,636 for a final grant ta strengthen
the Yale Child Study Center’s orgamzational capacity to deepen and sustain imple
mentation of SDP in urban school distncts and schools and share SDP lessons with
practitioners and policymakers

Explorations and Other Grants

Center for Law and Education, Washington, D C  $143,000 for development
of policy-analysis tools to better understand the substance and strategies guiding
education reform at the state level and among national reform organizations

Children*s Defense Fund, Washington, D ¢ $600,000 to support its praject on
mobihzing wamen to improve the lives of poor chikdren and faniles in the first
decade of the 21st century

Foundabion-admimistered project- $500,000 toward a senes of meetings,
consultancies, projects and program activities to explore the transnational character
of urban communities, leading to program-strategy development that focuses on the
growing dimensions of work, farmily hfe, community development and cultural
expression among the poor and excluded whose livellhoods stretch acress internabional
boundanes ($250,000 from Mexico Cffice, $100,000 from Creatmty & Culture)

Foundation-admimstered project- $30,000 toward the costs of a conference entitled,
Work and Health New Relabonships in a Changing Economy, being jaintly organized
by the Rockefeller Foundation, The Calfornia Endowment and The Calformia
Weltness Foundation ($45,000 from Health Equity)

Fund for the City of New York, New York, New York $150,000 for use by its Center
on Court innovation to support an exchange between U $ and U K policymakers and
practitioners in juvenile justice to review policy reforms nvolving community-based
Justice activities

Graduate School and University Center, City University of New York, New York,
New York $270,000 to support the Democracy Study Project of its Howard Samuels
State Management and Policy Center

Institute for Wisconsin's Future, Miiwaukee, Wisconsin $92,000 to enable the
Mitwaukee Parent Action Coordination and Traiming project (PACT) to develop a
funding medel of what s required to prowide an adequate education for alt Milwaukee
children and train parents and community groups on its implications

Intemnatwonal Labour Organisation, Geneva, Switzertand $175,000 toward the
costs of conducting severai pilot surveys of socioeconemic secunty among the poot,
a research workshop an insecunty measures and a major international conference
0N SOCIOBCONCMIC SECUNty

National Housing Development Corporation, Rancho Cucamonga, Califomta
$150,000 to provide imitial seed capital for s program 1o acquire and preserve
at-nsk affordable housing throughout the country and eventually transfer ownership/
management to local nonprofit organizatwons, increasing therr capacity

Office of the United Nations High Commussioner for Human Rights, Geneva,
Switzerland $400,000 toward the costs of a conference o be hetd in South Afnca to
Increase awareneass about racism and s consequences in the 21st century

Philanthropic Collaborative, New York, New York $300,000 in support of its project,
Demas, to create a high profile national discussion entitied “The Commion Wealth
Project,” aimed at raising public consciousness about the growing problem of
economic inequality and poverty in the United States

University of Missoun-Columbsa, Columbia, Missoun $199 B09 to generate reports
about knowledge from research on education, and to spensor conferences designed to
refocus public attention on the special needs of chuidren from poor commumties and
on ther schools

University of Pennsylvamia, Philadelptua, Pennslyvania $50,000 in support of the
Campbell Collaboration to produce and mamtam systematic reviews of studies of the
effectivenass of social and educatwon interventons

[ STRATEGIC ALLIANCE |

Astan Resources, Inc , Sacramento, Califormia $180 000 to support its parttcipation
in the Sacramento regional coliaborative of the California Works for Better Health
project a statewide mbative designed to improve the health and economic opporturity
of residents lwving in Califormia

Catholic Charities of the Dwocese of Fresno, Fresno Califormia $180,000 fo support
its participation in the Fresno regonal collaborative of the Califormia Waorlks for Better
Health project, a statewde inthatve designed to improve the health and econormic
opportunity of residents nang 1n California

Center for Community Change, Washington, D ¢ $180,000 to support the
participation of its progect, the Alameda Comdor Jobs Coalition, in the Los Angeles
regional collaborative of the Cahiforma Works for Better Health project, a statewide
intiative: designed to improve the health and economic opportunity of residents
inaing in Califorma

Central Calfornia Legal Serwices, Fresno, California $180,000 to support the
participation of s project, West Fresno Coaliion for Economic Develepment, in
the Fresno regional collabarative of the California Works for Better Health project,
a statewide imibiative designed to improve the health and econormic opportunity of
residents lving (n Calformia

Clunatown Service Center, Los Angeles, California $180,000 to support its
participation in the Los Angeles regional collaborative of the California Works for
Better Health project, a statewide initative designed to improve the health and
economic opportunity of residents Inang in Cabformia

Commumity Coalition for Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment, Los Angeles,
Calforma $180,000 to support its participation in the Los Angeles regional collabo-
rahve of the Califormia Works for Better Health project a statewide inihative designed
to improve the health and economic opportunity of residents lving in Califomia

East L A. Community Corporation, Los Angeles, Califorma $180,000 to support
its parbcipation n the Los Angeles regional collaborative of the Califormia Works
for Betier Health project, a statewide inthative designed to smprove the health and
economic opportunity of ressdents Invaing in Califormia

Environmental Health Coalition, San Diego, California $180, 000 to suppoﬂ |ls

progect, a statewide imbiative designed to improve the Beat
of residents Iving in Califormia

Los Angeles Metropolitan Churches, Los Angeles, California+ $180,000 to support
the participation of its project, United Afncan Amencan Ministenal Council, in the
San Diego regional collaborative of the Califorma Works for Better Health project,

a statewide inthative designed to improve the health and econermic opportunity of
residents Iving in Califomnia

Manpower Demonstration Research Corporation, New York, New York $560,000
to evaluate the smplementation of California Works for Better Health, Phase |

Metropolitan Area Advisory Commuttee on Ant-Poverty of San Diege County, Inc.,
National City Calforma $180,000 to support s partrcipation n the San Diego
regional collaborative of the California Works for Better Health project, a statewrde
nhabve designed to improve the health and economic opportunity of residents lving
in Califorma

Mutual Assistance Network of Del Paso Heights, Sacramento, Califorria $180,000
to support its participation in the Sacramento regional collaborative of the Califorma
Works for Better Health project, a statewide imtiative destgned to improve the health
and econormic opportunity of residents (nng in Califorrua

National Econonme Development & Law Center, Oaldand, Calformia $225,898 to
implernent the first part of a multistaged technical assistance program for 16 commu-
mity-building organizations in four regions of Cabformia

Sacramento Valley Organizing Community, Sacramento, Calforma $180,000 to
support s participation in the Sacramento regional collaborative of the Calformia
Works for Better Health project, a statewide inthative designed te improve the health
and econormic cpportunity of residents lving in Calforria

San Diego Orgamaing Project, San Diego, Calfornia $180,000 to support its partic-
pation in the San Diego regional collzborative of the Califorma Yorks for Better Health
project, a statewide mitiative designed te improve the health and econormic opportunity
of residents lving 1n Calformia

Strategic Concepts n Orgamang & Policy Education, Los Angeles, California
$130,000 to support its partiipation in the Los Angeles regional collaborative of the
Calfornia Works for Better Health project, a statewnde imbiative designed to improve
the health and econonmc opportunity of residents (ming in Califormra
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CRES-TER | GLOBAL INCLUSION )

Global Public Goods

GLOBAL DIALOGUES ON BIOTECHNOLOGY -
A SHARED PROGRAM WITH FOOD SECURITY

AfricaBio, Irene, South Afnica $58,200 toward the costs of a workshop on food and
agncultural biotechnology for decision makers in the South Afncan Development
Community region, held in Midrand, Gauteng, South Africa

African Bictechnology Stakehobders Forum, Narobi, Kenya $29,606 toward the
costs of a mass media and policymakers workshop on biotechnology

Bread for the Wordd Institute, Washington, D € $200,000 to reframe debates
about iotechnology in the context of a campaign to reduce hunger in Afnca

Center for Science in the Public Interest, Washington, D C  $200,000 toward the
costs of a project to broaden public debate on genehic engineenng in agnculture and
to encourage improved regulabions in bictechnology

Consumer Federation of America Foundatlon, Washington, D€ $150,000 for
research, analysis, cornmentary and public informabion efforts of its Food Policy
Institute on agneultural biotechnology issues

John Dillé, Rock Hill, South Carolina $15.685 to study the feastbility of publishing
the Plant Biotechnology Quarterly, a new journal on genetically modified crops

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, Rome, ltaly $12,000 for
use by its subregional office in southern and eastern Afnea to develop information
matenals to be used m Afnca to communicate ssues related to the development and
use of transgenic crop planis

Foundation-administered project: $200,000 toward the costs of actvities that are
being developed to faciitate an international diatogue on bictechnology among groups
holding dvergent views on the apphcation of biotechnology to agncutture

Foundation-administered project: $441,500 for the costs of consultants for the
Global Dhalogues on Plant Biotechnology

Foundation-admimnstered project: $847,430 toward the costs of actities to develop
an ongoing mtemational dialogue an the application of biotechnology to agriculture
among groups holding divergent views

Global BioDiversity Institute, Wilmington, Delaware- $30,000 toward the costs of its
traiming program in biodiversity, biotechnology and law at the University of Botswana,
Aug. 1-Sept. 7, 2000

Harvard University, Cambridge, Massachusetts $500,000 for use by s Center for
International Development toward the costs of its project on the role of biotechnology
m the global economy, specifically the imphcations for developing countnes

Institute of Development Studies, Bnghton, United Kingdom $300,000 for a
research program to examine Higtechnology policy processes in developing countnes
and to explore how different local and national contexts enable or constrain the
consideration of poor farmers’ perspectives

International Center for Tropical Agriculture, Call, Colombia: $150,075 to develop
and follow a muttistep process invohvaing biosafety assessment, nutnhional testing
and negotiations on intellectual-property nghts for the delivery of safe and useful
transgenic nce cultrvars to seed producers and farmers in Costa Rica and other
Latin Amencan countries

International Centre of tnsect Physiology and Ecology, Nairoby, Kenya $250,000
for research to assess the nsk of transgene dissemination associated with the
introduction of genetically modified crops in Africa using cowpea as a model

International Service for the Acquisition of Agri-Biotech Applications, ithaca, New
York $225,000 to establish a knowledge senter on crop bictechnology located
Southeast Asia serving all developing countries and to facilitate a dialogue that waill
enable policymakers and scientists responssble for crop biotechnology in developing
countnes to better understand the posihons and concemns of all sides in the global
debates on this fopic

KCTS Television, Seattle, Washington $50,000Howard the costs of its documentary,
Hot Potatoes, a hustory of potato bhight and efforts to develop bhight-resistant potatoes

Panos Institute, London, United Kingdom $75,320 toward the cost of a pilot project

Rural Advancement Foundation International, Winnipeg, Canada $317,500 for a
program to advance the informal participation of rural societies of developing countries
n agneultural research and development that address food secunty

Rural Advancement Foundation International, Winnipeg, Canada. $45,000 for the
participation of representatives from Southern civil-socrety organizations in the Global
Farum on Agncultural Research, an international conference on agricultural biotech-
nology and food secunty-related topics

South Centre, Geneva, Switzerand $23,120 to enable experts to take part in a two-
day workshep in Geneva on imptemenbing the Biosafety Protocol

Syracuse University, Syracuse, New York $200,000 toward the costs of its Gene
Media Forum's project to develop an international information systern for journahsts
and the public on food and brotechnology

Tides Center, San Francisco, Califormia $50,000 toward the costs of its project,
Norttwest Science and Environmental Policy Center, for its work on intellectual
property and North-South 1ssues i the development of agncultural botechnology

University of Costa Rica, San Jose, Costa Rica $150,000 to develop and follow a
multistep process mvolving biosafety assessment, nutritional teshing and negotiations
on ntellectual-property rights for the delivery of safe and useful transgenic nice cultivars
to seed producers and farmners in Costa Rica and other Latin American countnes

University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania $447,700 for use by s
Center for Bioethics to estabhsh a framework of values and principles that can command
broad public consensus and guide debate about genetically modified organisms and
their role 1n relaton to food secunty

World Media Foundation, Cambndge, Massachusetts $50,000 toward the costs of
Lmng on Earth, National Public Radio’s news journat on the environment, for coverage
on genetically modified agnculture

World Resources Inshtute, Washington, D € $400,000 to strengthen the capacity
of developing countries to implement the Biosafety Protoce! through research, work-
shops and the pubhcation of a gwde to the Protocol

[ INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS |

Center for International Environmental Law, Washington, D C  $45,163 for a joint
project, with the South Centre, to enhance developing-country participation in World
Trade Orgamization negetiations on inteliectual property

Essential Information, Washington, DG $98,000 toward the costs of its Consumer
Project on Technology's research on transparency and accountabilty in the intellectual-
property system

First Nations Development Institude, Fredencksburg, Virginia $100,000 toward the
costs of 4ts effort to find new approaches to secunng indigenous peocples’ cultural,
artishc and scientie hentage through trade law and financial markets.

Foundation-administered project: $272,000 for a senes of meetings, service
arrangements and/ or consultancies that will inform an ongoing exploration on
intellectual-property nghts

International Institute for Sustainable Development, Winnigpeg, Manioba, Canada
$100,000 toward the costs of reports and online coverage of meetings related to
ntellectual-property nghts for publicabion in its Eartfy Negotiations Bultetin

Habitat International Coalition, Geneva, Switzerland $51,000 for the work of its
preject, the International NGO Committee on Human Rights in Trade and Investment

Panos institute, London, United Kingdom $116,175 toward the costs of a project
to examine 1ssues concerning patenting and other intellectual-property nghts as they
affect public health in developing countnes

South Centre, Geneva, Switzerland $45,000 for the costs of the publcation and
dissermination of two monographs by Carlos Correa on intellectual-property-nghts
1ssues in developing countnes

South Centre, Geneva, Switzerland $82,113 for a jont project, with the Center for
International Emaronmental Law, to enhance developing-country participation in
World Trade Organization negohiations on intellectual property

South Centre, Geneva, Switzerland $36,000 for the costs of the publication and
dissermination of a monograph by Carlos Cotrea on integrabing public-health concerns
nto patent legislation n developing countries

University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, Pennsylvaria: $19,648 for use by

its Center for Bioettucs to explore the current state of ownership, patenting and
property statutes of genetic and biological matenal threugh the establishment of
an international database

GENDER EQUITY

Affinity Group an Population, Reproductive Health and Rights, Takoma Park,
Maryland $100,000 for genaral support and toward the cost of an analysis of
current funding trends in populaton, reproductive health and nghts
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Benton Foundation, Washington, D € $100,000 toward the costs of its Crne Wodd US
Center in its outreach and editonal activities related to wornen and reproductive rights

Earth Times Foundation, New Yorlk, New York $75,000 toward the cost of reporting
on population, international development, the environment and other social 1ssues

Equilibnum and Populabon, Fars, France $248,000 for actmities designed to
educate European policymakers and the public about international population and
reproductive-health 1ssues

Famuly Federation of Findand, Helsink, Finlared $172,640 to cornplete an educational
imitiative on international reproductive-health and family-planning rssues for parha-
mentanans, govermnmment officials and the media

Internatonal Planned Parenthood Federation, London, United Kingdom $138,590
to conhinue an educational inbative on international reproductive-health ssues by
contnbuhng to the peer-review process of individual countnes’ overseas development-
assistance efforis that 1s undertaken by the QECD's Development Assistance
Committee

International Women's Health Coalition, New ‘York, New York $500,000 for
general support

Project Hope Intemational, Amold, Maryland $19,640 for the costs of research to
inform the development of a safe house in northeastern Thailand for the wictims of
child prostitubion and exploitation

Swedish Assocration for Sex Education, Stockholm, Sweden $75,000 to complete
an educational nmative concerning the Cairo Programme of Action, parhcularly ado-
lescent reproductive health and nghts, for Swedish opinion leaders, govermment offi-
cials and the public

[ PEACE AND SECURITY |

Amencan Academy of Arts and Sciences, Cambndge, Massachusetts $50,000
toward the costs of ts Pugwash Study Greup's project on intervention, severeignty
and intemnational secunty

Asia Soceety, New York, New York $37,365 toward the costs of its study on conflict
resolutton (n Asia

Asia Society, New York, New York $5,000 toward the costs of women's participation
at a sympesium to explore opportunibies for building peace and civil society in
Afghanistan

Center for Economic and Social Rights, Brooklyn, New York $60,000 for research
on the condibons of the Kurdish minonty in Iran to help understand how Islarmic
thought shapes the treatment of minonties

Economic Affars Bureau, Cambndge, Massachusetts $10,000 toward the cost of a
senes of articles for is magazine, Dollars and Sense, on the connections between the
expansion of corporate dominance throughout the world and the increased lethality of
conflicts among and within smaller nations

Foundation-adrmimstered project $105,000 for a senes of meetings and consultancies
leading to a Bellagio conference to develop international mecharnisms to strengthen
minority nghts globally with a focus on the Umted Nations system

Foundation-admwmistered project. $120,000 to examine I globalhzation makes
non-state arrned groups vulnerable to international pressure to improve respect for
human nghts

Harvard Unwersity, Cambridge, Massachusetts $200,000 toward the costs of the
Common Secunty Forurn, a joint project with King’s Coliege, University of Cambridge,
10 encourage new ways of thinking about global secunty as well as the actve devel-
opment of new policies for globat palitical cooperation and the renewal of intemational
polihcal nstituticns

Human Rights Watch, New York, New York $20,000 toward the costs of a research
paper on its role 1n addressing the problem of human-nights violations committed by
arrned, nongovernmental groups, particularly in Asia ang Africa

Internabonal Council on Human Rights Policy, Versox, Switzedand $40,000 toward
the costs of a meeting of national and internahonal human nghts organzations to
discuss the dilemmas that anse when human-nghts abuses are addressed throught
mulitary intervention

Internahional Council on Human Rights Policy, Versox, Switzerland $24,500
toward the costs of a report on the impact and effectiveness of human-rights
orgaruzations on armed groups to respect human nghts

International Inshitute for Strategic Studies, London, United Kingdom  $20,000
toward the costs of the publication and dissermination of a monograph that exarmines
the potential for peace conditonality

International Institute for Strategic Studies, London, United Kingdom $15,000
toward the costs of its project to examine the effects of intemational administration
of war-tarn societies

Intemational Peace Academy, New York, New York $200,000 towards the costs of
its project on how ecanomic 1ssues in civil wars affect the transion from war to peace

King’s College, University of Cambndge, Cambndge, United Kingdom $500,000
toward the costs of the Common Secunty Forum, a joint project with Harvard
University's Center for Population and Development Studies to encourage new ways
of thinking about global secunty

National Committee on Amencan Foreign Policy, New Yok, New York $135,000
toward the costs of a CD-ROM project on humanitanan mine clearance

Naublus of Amenca, Berkeley, California- $500,000 for a fellowship program on
formation technology and security for young pohcymakers

New School University, New York, New York $50,000 for use by its World Pohcy
Inshtute toward the casts of producing several articles for its World Policy Journal

New York University, New York, New York $225,000 for use by its Center on
Intematicnal Cooperation toward the costs of a research project to analyze regional
conflict formations in South Central Asia and the Great Lakes region of Afnca

Project Underground, Berketey, Califorma  $20,000 toward the costs of developing a
‘Web-based database on conflicts around the wortd that are based on rmining and ol
resources and that affect minonties

Bryan Rich, New York, New York $25,000 for completion of a documentary,
Breaking the Cades, on ethnic conflict in Burundh

Social Science Research Council, Mew York, New York $100,000 to complete a
hook-length case study of the effort to ban land mines that led to the Ottawa treaty

Soctal Scientists' Association, Colombo, Sn Lanka $25,000 toward the costs of a
project to examine the political economy of armed conflict and its contnbution to
ethrue polanzation in Sa Lanka

United Nations Development Programme, New York, Ne
the costs of a workshop to inform, elicit and support cpdte
by mapping future scenanos

Globalization and Livelihoods

[ LIVELIHOODS AND ECONOMIC INTEGRATION |

American Prospect, Boston, Massachusetts $200,000 [d%ardthg
on the govenance of global cormmerce and how mc% P
rather than penalize, the poorest and most manginal

publication in sts magazine, The Amencan Prospect

Stephanie Black, MNew York, New York $15,000 to complete a documentary film on
the impact of policies and trends related to global economic integration in Jamaica

Center for Economic and Pelicy Research, Washington, D G $100,000 for its
research and education project on policy 1ssues related to economic integration and
intellectual-property nghts

Center for Intemational Environmental Law, Washington, D C  $71,900 to
strengthen efforts by ciwil society, iInternational erganizations and developing-country
governments to promote constructive reform of the World Trade Organization and
related international and regional trade and investment institvbons

Circle Foundahon, Bethesda, Maryland $50,000 toward the costs of its vox Populi
project, designed to give the American public a greater voice in the pubhic policy
process, through the interpretation of policy data, 3 television series and a Web siie

Development Group for Alternative Polictes, Washington, D C $150,000 toward
the costs of its Structural Adjustment Parhicipatory Review Intizhwe—a global cvil-
society network

Development Group for Alternative Policies, Washungton, D C - $70,000 toward
the costs of s Allance for Responsible Trade's program to promote eguitable and
sustainable trade, economic integration and development in the Amencas

Financial Markets Ceriter, Philomont, Viiginia $80,000 for an international conference
to exarmine how to improve transparency and accountabiity (in central banking policies
and praciices

Foundation-admimistered project: $64,729 for a senes of meehngs, service arrange-
ments and consultancies to inform an ongeing exploration on promobing equitable
economic integration

George Meany Center for Labor Studies, Silver Spring, Maryltand $30,000 toward
the costs of participation of representatives from developing countnies w a meeting of
union and worker educators to discuss popular education in a more global econony

Global Labour Institute, Geneva, Switzedand $31,000 toward the costs of planming
an intemational conference of informal sector workers, aimed at increasing the particr-
pation of these workers in negatiations on international labor standards
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GLOBE U.5.A,, Washington, D C  $40,000 toward the costs of s project on global-
1zatton and the role of legislators in this process

Harvard Unlverslty, Cambndge, Massachusetts $100,000 toward the costs of a
research and fellowship program for developing-country policymakers designed
to make openness work for developing countnes by establishing national models
approprate to the diversity of their institutional strictures

Institute for Agricutture and Trade Policy, Minneapolis, Minnesota $46,400 toward
the costs of fts conference on buillding a movemnent for global democracy, held at the
Ballagio Study and Conference Center, May 2000

International Center for Mot-for-Profit Law, Washington, D¢ $25,000 toward
the costs of the component for sub-Saharan Africa of a database project designed to
provide useful resources to advance the development of better laws affecting civil-
society organizations in countnies around the world

International Centre for Trade and Sustainable Development, Geneva, Switzerland
$50,000 toward the costs of preduction and development of two of ts BRIDGES
publications—a manthly review and a weekly trade-news digest

International Institute for Sustainable Development, Winnigpeg, Manitoba, Canada
$400,000 for a project to bwld long-term capacity among developing-country institu-
tons to address trade and sustainable-develppment issues

International South Group Network, Quezon City, Pulippines $206,000 to support
the projects of its Southemn and Eastern Afnca Trade Information and Megotiations
Initiative to strengthen the abilty of Afncan officials to negotiate on trade and
development 1ssues, and to develop research and teaching capacity in trade policy
in Afncan insttutions

La Trobe University, Victona, Australia $15,000 toward the costs of an abbrewiated
versian of its study on global governance reform

Montreal International Forum, Montreal, Quebec, Canada $70,000 toward
the cost of two projects its Forum 2000 on Human Security and a new global
governance inthative.

National Center for Economic and Security Alternatives, Washington, D C.
$50,000 toward the costs of a project on developing comprehensive social
and economic policy strategies for the United States (n the era of globalization

Park Ridge Center, Chicago, Minois $104,960 to conduct a three-part inquiry in
order to develop a framework of ethics from which to evaluate globalization

Public Interest Projects, New York, New Yorkk $38,500 toward the costs of a
research project on tobacco control and trade issues

Queens’ College, University of Cambridge, Cambndge, United Kingdom $100,000
toward the costs of developing-country participants in two educational seminars on
changing international financial regulations

Rockefeller Family Fund, New York, New York $22,150 for use by its Environmental
Grantmakers Association toward the costs of the Funders’ Network on Trade and

Globalrzation, an inhative designed to raise awareness and faciltate dialogue within the
fourdahion community about the refevance of intemational trade and globalization ssues

Stanford Unliversity, Stanford, Calforma $150,000 far use by its Inshitute for
Internatronal Studies toward the costs of s Inititative for Policy Dialogue to foster
transparent and parhcipatory decision-making processes at bath the national and
global levels,

StreetNet Association, Durban, South Africa $80,000 for research on (1) economic
condrtions of women street vendors in Zimababwe, Uganda, Ivory Coast and Ghana,
and {2) a set of public dialogues to promote policies and prachices that will improve
thetr well-being

Synergos Institute, New York, New York. $450,000 for general support ($150,000
from Globat Philanthropy)

Tides Center, San Francisco, Calformia $98,100 for use by ts project, New
Economy Commumcahons, toward its project to develop a strategy for nongovern-
mental organizations to assist the poor and excluded in developing countnes to obtain
labor nghts in the global economy

United Nations Association of the United States of America, New York, New York
$50,000 for the planning phase of its project on global health and the United
Nations system.

United Nations Development Programme, New York, New York $150,000 toward
the cost of an altemative trade report on renewing the global governance of trade
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United Nations Developn?ent P;ogramme, New York, New Yorkk $40,000
toward the costs of an inihiative designed to provide iImpetus to a broad debate on
the question of faimess and inclusion (n the decision-malong structures of global
negohiations and institutions !

University of Massachusetts at Amherst, Amherst, Massachusetts: $75,000 for use
by ts Pohtical Economy Research Institute for a research project on how to restructure
complementary domestic and international financial rules and insbitutions i order 1o
prornote more stable, egalitanan growth in a penod of global economic integration

|_ENVIRONMENT AND LIVELIHOODS |

Bellagio Forum for Sustainable Development, Osnabruck, Germany $60,000 for
general support

Centre for Science and Environment, New Delh, India $20,000 toward the costs of
a study on the practice of cormmunity-based water management on degraded lands.

Chiang Mai University, Chiang Ma1, Thastand $15,000 toward the costs of an
nternational sympasium on the governance of natural resources in the Mekong region

Cropper Foundation, Tnnidad and Tobago $60,000 toward the costs of an interna-
tional conference to investigate public policies In environment to promote greater equity

Foundation-administered project: $20,000 to explore the feasibility of a cross-
thernatic program on water with the Foad Secunty and Health Equity thernes

Green World Foundation, Bangkok, Thailand: $19,360 toward the costs of a work-
shop on community river care in the Mekong ragion

Intemational Centre for Research in Agroforestry, Nairabi, Kenya- $175,000 to
support the development of science-based tools to advance local participatory
watershed management in Thailand ($40,000 from Food Secunty)

Hamoi Agricultoral University, Hano, Vietnam $10,000 toward the costs of a
national workshop on the )impacts of decentralization policies on water and natural
resource management in the Vietnamese uplands.

Harvard University, Cambndge, Massachusetts $50,000 toward the costs ¢f a
resurvey on water use, sanitation, energy use and demographic transthions in two
rural willages in North Bihar, Incha

LEAD Intemnational, New York, New York $15,000,00C for generat support

Nepal Water Conservation Foundation, Kathmandu, Nepal, $35,000 toward the
costs of a workshop and strategy meeting on water 1ssues related to human nghts
and governance, held in Kathmandu, Nepal, Qctober 2000

Pacific Institute for Studies in Development, Environment, and Security, Qakland,
Canformia $10,000 toward the costs of the purchase and distribution of “The World's
Water," a book on global and regional freshwater probtems and solutiens, tg university
hbraries and nongovernmental orgamzatians in sub-Saharan Afnca and South and
Southeast Asia

Pacific Institute for Studies in Development, Environment and Security, Oakland,
Califorria $61,780 for research to assess the connections between water resources
and )ssues of econemic globahizaticn and privatization

Tay Mguyen University, Daklak, Vietnam. $7,500 toward the costs of a workshop on
participatory water resources management in Vietnam's central highlands

Umited Nations Development Programme, New York, New York- $80,000 toward
the costs of a technical adwiser for its Energy and Atmosphere Programme

University of Massachusetts, Lowell, Lowell, Massachusetts $25,500 for use by
its Lowell Center for Sustainable Production toward the costs of a traiming program
in chean production for ntemational envirgnmental and community activists

Water Policy Internationat, Surrey, United Kingdom $26,000 toward the costs of
Afnican participation 1n a workshop cn the establishment of an internabional cvil-
society discourse on development in the Nile Basin

World Business Council for Sustainable Development, Conches-Geneva,
Switzerland $150,000 to examine and build support, for the ways in which the
miming industry can contnbute to a global transtron for sustainable development

World Resources Institute, Washington, D C : $87,000 toward the costs of initiating
regional pilot assessments i Southeast Asia and southern Afnca of the Millenmum
Ecosystem Assessment

World Resources Institute, Washington, O C  $105,000 for research on water-
management 1ssues in the countnes of the Mekong watershed
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REGIONAL PROGRAMS

Africa Regional Office

| HUMAN CAPACITY BUILDING |

Afncan Economic Research Consortium, Nairobt, Kenya $166,543 to suppart the
development of an Afnca-based collaborative Ph D program in order to further
strengthien teaching and research capacity on the continent

Association of Afncan Universibes, Accra-North, Ghana $25,570 toward the cost
of conducting a mapping of current vanants in the provisions of unversity education
n Africa

Boston College, Chestnut Hill, Massachusetts $20,000 for use by its Center for
Internatianal Higher Education te support a study on the acadermic profession and the
changing conditions n global higher-education systems

Foundation-administered project: $100,000 toward the costs of a senes of
woarkshops to promote a diatogue between Makerere University and the Government
of Uganda to identify ways to increase the outreach of the Unwersity in response to
governmental decentrahzation m Uganda

Foundaton-adrmmstered project: $297 500 toward the costs of facilitating a dialogue
between Makerere University and the Government of tganda to identify ways of their
warlung together to meet the traiming neads related to the decentralization of the
university system in Uganda

Foundatien-admimistered project: $450,000 toward the costs of a senes of
workshops, serminars, analytical case studies and consultancies to help strengthen
selected Afncan unversihes as instituhons and to butld their capacity to contnibiite
more effectively to natwonal development

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $38.720 to enable tts Cornimittess of Seven
and Fourteen to continug planning activities involving new work on capacity building
for decentraiization in Uganda

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $198,620 toward the costs of its project on
capacity buillding to meet the demand for human resources at the distnict level as a
result of decentralization in Uganda

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $2,000,000 to support its rewitahization
as an institution that can nounsh Uganda's social, pelitical and economuc transfor-
mation in the 21st century, and address the human capacity and research needs
of decentralization

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $22 000 toward the costs of s strategic-
planning exercise to meet the demand for human resources at the disinct level as
a result of decentralization in Uganda

Salzburg Serminar, Middlebury, Vermont $50,000 to support a workshop to explore
global trends affecting the future of higher education in emerging economies

Socral Science Research Counctl, New York, New York $99,872 to strengthen
research by African schotars and others on higher-education tnstrtutions and
systems (n Afnca

Unrted Nations Educational, Scientific and Cuftural Orgamization, Panis, france
$56,000 for use by its Internabional Institute for Educational Planning for the
Association for the Development of Education in Afnca’s Working Group on Higher
Education to conduct a study of ngher-education innovations 1n African universities

Wormen's Law and Public Policy Fellowship Program, Washington, D ¢ $25,000
toward the cost of a Leadership and Advocacy for Wormen in Afnca Higher Education
Fellowship to recrisit and train one female lawyer from Tanzaria who will focus on
improving equal access to ligher education

Yale University, New Haven, Connecticut $18,294 for a planning meeting te convene
Yale facully and outside adwisers from acadernia, orgamzations and foundabons to
establish an agenda for an upcorming internabional tugher-educat:on symposium

[ AFRICAN CAREER AWARDS |

Aggrey } D. Ambali, Malawi $32,000 to enable hirn to conduct pestdoctoral
research at the University of Malawi on the effectiveness of protective reserves for the
recovery of cormmercially important small cichlid species in Lake Malombe, Malawi

Foundahan-admmlslefed project: $400,000 for administrative costs of the Afncan

Lawrence lkaman, Kenya 332,000 to enable him to conduct postdoctoral research
at the University of Nairobi on raternal health-care utilization in Teso Disinct, Kenya

Daniel Matthews Jamu, Malawt $31,933 to enable him to conduct postdoctoral
research at the International Center for Living Aquatic Resources Management
concerning nifrogen use, ang efficiency and retention in integrated aquaculture/
agnculture systerns in Malaw

Meleckidzedeck Khayest, Kenya $32,000 to enable him to conduct postdocioral
research at Kenyatta Uanversity on the socioeconomic determinants of the ability to
cope with the consequences of road-traffic accidents in Kenya

Bamabas A. Kuza, Uganda $32,000 to enable him to conduct postdoctoral
research at Makerere University on micro-finance development and poverty allewviation
n Uganda

Jackson Kung'u, Kerya $32,000 to enable lum to conduct postdoctoral research at
the Kenya Agncultural Research Institute on the fungus that causes gray leaf spot on
maize in Kenya

Grace Bantebya Kyomuhende, Uganda $29,960 to enable her to conduct postdoc-
toral research at Makerere University on causes of maternal mortality n Uganda

Lily Mafela, Botswana $32,000 to enable her to conduct postdoctoral research at
the University of Botswana on ronformal education programs and giris’ reintegration
into the education system in Botswana

Ishmail Mahin, Kenya $31,998 to enable him to conduct postdoctoral research
at Kenyatta University conceming community fuel-wood resource management in
Myando Distnct, Kenya

Paul Manda, Tanzania $31,985 to enable hirn to conduct postdoctoral research at
the Ursversity of Dar es Salaam on the relahonstup between maodem contraceptive
use and women's empowerment in Dodoma Municipality, Tanzania

Dawid Mazambam, Zimbabwe $29,235 to enable him to conduct postdoctoral
research at Ecit Trust an gender, governance and the welfare of rural women, focusing
on land policies and their impact on women 1n Ward 4, Nyanga District, Zimbabwe

Rwenge Mburaneo, Cameroon $32,000 to enable hum to conduct posidoctoral
research at the University of Yaounde )l on gender relations, women's status and
contraceptive use in Cameraon

Jacob Ole Miaron, Kenya $32,000 to enable him ko conduct postdoctoral research
at the Unversity of Nairobt on validating Maasai ethnoveteninary medicinal plants
In Kenya

Solomon Mombeshora, Zmbabwe $32,000 to enable hurn to conduct postdoctoral
research af the University of Zimbabwe on the impact of Zimbabwe's economic
reform program on women (n rural Zmbabwe

Elias Mpofu, Zmbabwe $32,000 to enable him to conduct postdoctoral research at
the University of Zimbabwe on ways of enhancing the social acceptance of disabled
students in integrated-schoobng situations in Zimbabwe

Linus Mumithi, Kenya $32,000 to enabla lnm to conduct postdoctoral research at
the Kenya Agncultural Research Institute on the development and improvement of
ntegrated management strategies for Insh potato bactenal wilt in Kenya

Fhilomena Wammu Muwur, Kenya $32,000 1o enable her to conduct postdoctoral
research at Kenyatta University on gender inequalities in the planming, developrment
and management of low-income settlements in Narobi, Kenya

Lows Mumnera, Kenya $32,000 o enable him to conduct postdoctoral research at
Egerton University on soil-fertility replerishment and weed control in maize-based
cropping systerns n western Kenya

Charles Nzwoka, Kenya $31,980 to enable i to conduct postdoctoral research
at the University of Mairobs on the subculture, livelihoads and survival strategies of
adolescent street girls in Nawrota

Jasper Ogwal-Okeng, Uganda $32,000 to enable him to conduct postdectoral
research at Makerere University on the effectiveness and safety of two tradional
herbal remedies for the treatment of malana in Uganda

Sheila Qkoth, Kenya $32,000 to enable her to conduct postdoctoral research at
the Unsversity of Naroty on mycotoxn contamination in infants' food in Kenya

Joseph Oryokot, Uganda $31,825 to enable lim to conduct pastdoctoral research
at Makerere University an the use of ammal draught techinology to improve weed
management in finger millet n Uganda

Chns Stusanya, Kenya $31,974 to enable lnm to conduct postdoctoral research at
Kenyatta University on the response of srall-scale farmers to population pressure on
land in Vitiga Distnict, Kenya

James Tumwane, Uganda $34,000 to enable him to conduct postdoctorat research
at the Kawanda Agncultural Research Institute on the resistance of tomatoes to late
blight disease i Uganda

Wilberforce Tushemereirwe, Uganda $32,000 to enable hum to conduct postdoctoral
research at the Kawanda Agncultural Research Institute, Uganda, on the effect of
banara leaf speckle on yreld in East Afncan highland bananas
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[__AFRICAN DISSERTATION INTERNSHIF AWARD [ . Lo "

lowa State University, Ames, lowa: $2,575 in conjunction with the African
Dissertaton $ntershup Award to Monday Ochu Mbila, to allow his supervisor
at the University of Nigena to attend his dissertabion defense

Louisiana State University, Baton Rouge, Lowsiana $2,750 in conjunction with
the Afncan Dissertation Internship Award for Edmond Kabagambe, to enable his
supervisor at Makerere Unwersity to attend his dissertation defense

Northwestern University, Evanston, lihnois $4,450 in conjunchon with the Afncan
Dissertation Intemship Award for Amal Hassan Fadlalla, to enable her supervisor at
the University of Khartoum to attend her disseriation defense

Princeton University, Princeton, New Jersey $4,397 n conjunction with the African
Dissertation Internstup Award to Dawd Gordon, to allow his supervisor at the
University of Zambia to attend his dissertation defense.

Purdue University, West Lafayette, Indiana $4,421 in canmjunction with the African
Dissertation Internstup Award to Samson Angima, to allow his supenvisor at the
International Centre for Research in Agroforestry to attend his dissertation defense

Tufts University, Medford, Massachusetts. $2,050 in conjunction with the Afncan
Dissertation internstup Award for Timathy Afful-Koomson, to enable his supervisor at
the Forestry Research Instriute of Ghana to attend his dissertation defense.

University of British Columbia, Vancouver, Canada $3,450 in conjunction with
the African Dissertation Internshup Award for Anthony Mawuh Saliar, to enable his
supervisor at the University of Cape Coast to attend his dissertahion defense

University of British Columbia, Vancouver, Canada $3.475 i conjunchon with the
Atncan Dissertation Intemnship Award for Joyce G Maina, fo enable her supervisor at
the University of Mairobt to attend her dissertation defense

University of Cape Town, Rondebosch, South Afnca $270,380 for the costs of
consuitative workshops of the partner universities of sts University Science, Humanities
and Engineenng Partnershipy in Afnca in order to develop coflaborative research projects
that integrate capacity development with a focus on health equity and foed secunty

University of Cape Town, Rondebosch, South Afnica- $50,000 for the costs of
consulitabons with the vice chancellors of the partner universibies of the University
Seience, Humanities and Engineenng Program in Afnca on the expansion of the
program to include health sciences and agnculture

University of Wlinois at Chicago, Chicago, llinos $2,439 1in conjunchon with
the Afncan Dissertation Internship Award to Godfrey Gitogo Maina, to enable his
supenwsor at Mol University to attend hus dissertation defense

[ FEMALE EDUCATION IN AFRICA_|

Egetton University, Njoro, Kenya $74,991 toward the casts of training in snformatbion
technofogy for the pupils participating in s reading-tent project, with particutar
emphasis on using the Intemet,

Forurn for African Women Educationalists, Ghana Chapler, Accra, Ghana $25,000
for general support

Forum for African Women Educationalists, Ghana Chapter, Accra, Ghana $45,000
for research on policies and interventions associated with girls” sexual maturation and
menstruai practices 10 schools in Ghana

Forum for African Women Educationalists, Ghana Chapter, Accra, Ghana
$298,760 for capacity bulding and technical support to improve the management
of its secretanat and the effectiveness of its outreach actmities

Forum for African Women Educationalists, Narobi, Kenya $790,000 for
implernentation of the program on strategie-resource planning for girls” education
and for development of an integrated operational framework for all actiwvihes of the
FAWE-led Working Group on Female Education

Forum for African Women Educationalists, Nairotn, Kenya $750,000 for
general support

Forum for African Women Educationalists, Uganda Chapter, Kampala, Uganda
$25,000 for general support

Foundation-admimistered project: $200,000 for adnunistrative expenses of the
Female Parbcipation in Education in Africa program

Foundatlon-administered project: $120,000 to explore the implications of African
multingualism in the development of curncula for gils

Foundation-administered project; $77,200 for the costs of a consultative meeting
to assess the results of exploratory work on basic learming competencies and sexual
maturation

Foundation-administered project: $94,464 for the costs of a service arrangement with
the Uniersity of Zimbabwe to camry out case stucdies :n Zimbabwe on basic-learning
competencies and hife skalls of gils, especially as related to sexual maturation

Foundation-administered project: $250,000 toward the costs of producing innovative
newsletters for teachers and students for the Minds Across Afnca School Clubs program
in primary schools, and of repnnting the newsletters and the educatianal cormics for
that prograrm in the format of charts that are more economical, durable and versatile

Foundation-administered projact: $97,194 for the costs of a service arrangement
with Makerere University to carry out case studies in Uganda on basic lkaming
competencies and ife skills of girls, especially as related to sexual maturation

Foundation-administered project: $98,240 for the costs of a service arrangement
with Kenyatta University to carry out case studies in Kenya on basic learming
competencies and Wfe skills of girls, especially as related to sexual maturation

Hanoi School of Public Health, Hanol, Yietnam $36,225 for research on policies
and interventions associated with girls’ sexual maturation and menstrual practices in
Vietnamese schools

Institute for Reproductive Health Training and Research, Marobi, Kenya $25,200
toward the devalopment of educational information to prepare pre-adolescents for
the progess of sexual maturation

Kenyatta University, Nawobi, Kenya: $16,700 for the costs of a meeting te brng
together international agencies and donors based in Kenya with the Government and
Kenyan umverstties to examine the feasibility of a project to advance girls’ mathematics
and science education in Kenya

Kenyatta University, Nawobi, Kenya- $30,000 toward the costs of creating awareness
among stakeholders about Iife skills and sexual maturation as they affect girls’ acoess
to, and participation m, educaton

Maendeleo ya Wanawake Organization, Narobi, Kenya $315,875 toward the cost
of implementing an ntervention designed to reduce girns’ dropout rates from pnmary
school 1n five districts in Kenya that currently have poor girls’ completion rates

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $30,000 for a project to create awareness
among stakeholders about |fe skills and sexual maturabion as they affect girls’ acoess
fo, and participation i, educabion

Makerere University, Kampala, Uganda $58,881 toward the costs of llustrabing
children's stones from its project on Minds Agrossirica SehrSTLUITS,

of research to entify critical areas to addres’a
and households in promohng chuldren's

South African Broadcasting Corporation, 4
its outreach program, Takalam Sesame, deg
learming experiences in disadvantaged COmPRLA
and television programs

University of Nairobi, Narobi, Kenya $10,917 toward the publication of a booklet
on HIV/AIDS educabion and its distsbution te pnmary and secondary school teachers
n Kenya

United Nations Children's Fund, New York, New York $25,000 for the costs of
travel to international meetings to advance the goals of its Alhance for Community
Achion on Female Education

United Nations Childrens Fund, New York, New York $4008,000 for ds trust fund for
the Alliance for Commumity Action on Female Education

United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Orgamization, Panis, France:
$74,000 for use by s International Inshitute for Educational Planning to support the
activities of the Association for the Development of Education i Afnca,

University of Zimbabwe, Harare, Zimbabwe $30,000 toward the costs of creating
awareness among stakeholders about hife skills and sexual maturation as they affect
pirls' access to, and participaton in, education

[ OTHER THEMATIC ACTIVITIES |

Africa Centre, London, United Kingdomn $177,472 to develop a comprehensive
digital database of mformation on Africa and to strengthen iis radic program on
African affairs that promotes scholarly debates on the developmental challenges
factng the African continent

Africa University, Mutare, Zimbabwe. $291,000 toward the mbial planning phase
of its institute of Peace, Leadership and Goevernance in Africa

Associaton for Better Land Husbandry, Nairobi, Kenya $15,000 to support a
project-hased poverty-assessment study linked to national poverty surveys

Assoclation of African Universities, Accra-North, Ghana $217,677 toward the costs
of a project to develop a database of Afncan theses and dissertations

BOOST Fellowship Foundation, Arington, Vieginia $198,544 for a prot program
1 Zimbabwe to devetop and nurture student entrepreneurship and comrmitment to
community poverty allewiation through partnerships among universities, the private/
corporate sector and communrtes in southem Afnica

Development Innovations and Networks, Harare, Zimbabwe. $70,000 toward the
costs of a summit meehing on micro-credit to benefit the poor in Afrca

Foundation-administered project: $100,000 toward the costs of a senes of
meetings to assist in the development of strategy papers for the different
components of the Afnica program
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Foundateon-administered project- $100,000 toward the costs of meetings to develop
& framework for a multidonor Partnership for Afncan Renewal

Interational Association of Students Interested in Econonncs and Business
Management-Kenya, Nawobt Kenya $10 000 toward the costs of its external forum
an empowenng youth thraugh the Afncan renaissance a cornponent of its East and
Southern Afnca Leadership Development Serminar Mairoty Apn! 2000

International Cowncit on Sacial Welfare, Kampala Uganda $10,000 for five
participants from East Africa 1o partiopate in the International Confersnce on Social
Welfare held n Cape Town, South Afnica, October 2000

international Food Policy Research Institute, Washington, CC $172 124t
support a study onh poverty mapping in Malaw! and Mozambique

International Livestack Resaarch Instrtute, Naotx, Kerya $160,000 to support the
development, in collaboration with the Afncan Economic Research Consorbum, of a
spatial database on paverty for Cast Afnca

Legal Educabion Foundation, Mairobi, Kenya $23 440 for research on tradibonal
machanisms of conflict preventron, management and resolution (n Afnica

Organization for Saclal Science Research in Eastern and Southern Afrea, Addis
Ababa, Ethiopa $20,000 toward the casts of an intemational conference, Afncan
Conflicts Management Resoluhion and Post-Conflict Reconstruction, being organized
jontly with the Development Palicy Managerment Forum, held in Addis Ababa
Ettuoma December 2000

Unmited Nations Centre for Human Settlements, Nairoby, Kenya $75,000 toward the
costs of implementing a global campaign on good urban povernance

Unwersity of Nairobi, Matrotn, Kenya $117,760 for the planning phase of a project
to enhance eastern and southern Afnca’s capacity in blometry

OTHER REGIONS

Bangladesh Rural Advancement Commitiee, Dhaka, Bangladesh $250,000 ior
general support

Esquel Foundation, Quito, Ecuador $400,000 for general support

Japan Canter for Internabonal BExchange, Tokyo, Japan $300 000 toward the costs
of launching 2 global commission on humnan secunty

Bellagio Study and Conference Center

[ GRANTS FROM THE BELLAGIQ FUND |

Center for International Forestry Research, Jakarta, indonesia $10,000 toward
the costs of actrihies to enhance a conference Captunng the Value of Forest Carbon
for Sustanable Local Livehhoods, held at the Bellagio Study and Confarence Center,
Feb 14-15 2000

Columbia University, Mew York Mew York $13 460 toward the cost of activities to
enhance a conference, Altnnsm and Impenahism Westemn Religious and Cultural
issions to the Middle East, held at the Bellagio Center, Aug 28-Sept 1, 2000

Columbia University, Mew York, New York $7 500 taward the cost of prowiding
travel support for five conference parbopants for the conference Altrusmn and
Impenalism Western Religous and Cultural Missions to the Middle East, held
at the Bellagio Center, Aug 28-Sept 1 2000

Cornell University, Ithaca New York $20,000 toward the cost of actvibies to
enhance a conference, Gross Domastc Product vs Quality of Life Batancing Work
and Farmuly held at the Bellagio Center, Jan 29-Feb 2, 2001

Cornell Universily, Ithaca Mew Yerk $7,500 toward the costs of travel support for
frve conference participants for the conference Gross Domeshc Product vs Quality

of Life Balancing Work and Famnily, held at the Bellagio Study and Conference Center,
Jan 29-Feb 2, 2001

Fiona Godlee, London, United Kingdom $7,500 toward the costs of travel support
for participants from deveioping countries and Eastern and Central Europe to attend
the conference, Strategy Mesting of the World Association of Medical Editars,

held at the Bellag o Study and Conference Center, Jan 22-26, 2001

Foundatmn-administered project; $36,000 to prowde trave! assistance for Bellagio
Study and Confarence Center tearn and confierence particapants from developing
countries in Afnca, Asia and Latin Amenca as well as fram Eastem and Central
Europe, who otherwise may not be able to partcipate in the meeting

Harvard Universidy, Cambnidge Massachusetts $21 155 toward the cost of travel
for participants from Afican cauniries to attend the conference, Prionbies for Health
Investments in the Context of Altemative Strateges for Poverty Reduction held at
the Bellagic Study and Conference Center, Feb 12-16, 2001

Instrtute for Advanced Study, Princeton, New Jersey $1,860 toward the costs of
travel suppord for two corference participants for the confarence, Feminism and the
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Stufting Boundanes of Public and Private, held at the Bellagio Study and Conference
Center, Dec 4-8, 2000

Louislana State University, Baton Rouge, Louisiana $23,118 toward the costs of
activities to enhance a team residency, Health Maps A Global Network for Control
of Snail-Borne Disease Using Satellite Surveillance and Geographic Information
Systems, held at the Beilagio Study and Conference Center, April 4-14, 2000

Glenn E. Schweitzer, Adington, Virgiia  $6,600 toward the costs of actvibes followng
from a collaborative residency and a subsequent team residency on SOCKECONOMIC
and secunty 1ssues in Russian alomic cities, held at the Bellagio Study and
Conference Center n 1996 and 1958, respectively

University of Colorade at Boulder, Boulder, Colorado $4,000 toward the costs of
travel support for five conference participants for the conference, Transnational
Moments of Change in Postwar Europe, held at the Bellagio Study and Conference
Center, Oct 2-6, 2000

University of Westminster, London, United Kingdom $5,000 toward the costs of
actwties to enhance a conference, Democrahization and the Mass Madia, to be
held at the Bellagio Study and Conference Center, Apnl 9-14, 2001

Yale University, New Haven, Connecticut. $7,500 toward the cost of providing
trave! support for five conference participants for the conference, Toward a Glabal
Emvironment Organization, held at the Bellagio Study and Conference Center,
Sept 18-21, 2000

2000 Years Transmission of Mathematical Ideas: From Late Babylonian te Early
Renaissance Science—Joseph W Dauben, Professor of History and History of
Science, Graduate Center, City University of New York, and Yvonne Dold-Sampionius,
Unrersity of Heidelburg, Germany (Apnl 3 to 8)

AlDS Exploration—Anel Pablos-Méndez, Associate Director, Health Equuty,
Rockefeller Foundation (October 16 to 20}

Altruism and Imperiafism: Western Religious and Cultural Missions to the Middbe
East—Reeva S Simon, Assistant Director, and Eleanor Teprian, Research Associate,
both of the Middle East Institute, Columbia University (August 28 to September 1)

American Forms, Global Forums—Djelal Kadir, Edwin Erle Sparks Professor of
Comparative Literature, Penn State University, University Park, Pennsylvania
{May 29 1o June 2)

The Changing Landscape of the Welfare State: Implications for the Future of Social
Protection—Nei| Gilbert, Chermin Professor of Social Welfare, University of Califormia,
Berkeley (August 7 to 11)

Civil Society, Democracy and Globalization—Carolyn Deere, Warren Weaver Fellow,
and Susan Sechier, Director, both of Global Intiatives, Rockefeller Foundation
(May 1510 19)

Consensus and Mobilization/Adotescence and Future Global Agenda-—Bruce Dick,
Senior Adviser, Youth Health, UNICEF, New York {February 21 to 25)

Consultation in Preparation for the United Nations World Conference on Racism—
Gay Macdougall, Execubive Director, International Hurman Rights Law Group,
Washington, D C, and Dayna Cunmingham, Associate Director, Working
Communibes, Rockefeller Foundathon {January 24 to 28}

Developing Efficient and Equitable Health Sector Strategies—Margaret Whitehead,
Professor of Pubkc Health, University of Liverpaol, United Kingdom, and Tim Evans,
Director, Health Equity, Rockefeller Foundation (July 3 to 7)

Economic Inequality and the Global Economy—Kathenine McFate, Associate
Director, Working Communities, Rockefeller Foundation (June 19 to 23}

Feminism and the Shifting Boundaries of Public and Private—Joan W Scoft,
Professor of Social Science, nstitute for Advanced Study, Princeton, New Jersey
(December 4 to 8)

Gentes, Kings and Kingdomns: The Emergence of States (300-800)—Walter Pohl,
Director, Forschungsstelle fur Geschichte des Mittelalters, Osterreichische Akademie
der Wissenschaften, Vienna, Austria (December 11 to 15).

Government Reform, Decentralization, State-Civil Society Cooperation and School
Reform—Manlyn Gittell, Professor of Political Science, and Director, Howard Sarmuels
State Management and Policy Center, Graduate School and University Center, City
Unsversity of New York, and Dayna Cunningham, Associate Director, Working
Communities, Rockefeller Foundation (October 30 to November 3)

Honey Bee Socioneurogenetics: Building a Community to Foster New Approaches
to the Study of Brain and Behavior—Gene E Rebinson, Professor of Entomology and
Neurgseience, University of llinos, Urbana (June 26 to 30)

Hausehold-Centered Environmental Sanitation—Roland Schertenleib, Director,
SANDEC, EAWAG, Duebendorf, Switzerland {January 31 to February 4)

Intellectual Property and Global Bistechnology—John H Barton, Professor, Stanford
taw School, and Joseph Straus, Max Planck institute for Foreign and International
Patent, Copynght and Competition Law, Muntch, Germany (March 27 to 31)

International Markets for Carbon Sequestration From Tropical Forests: Principles
and Guidelines to Ensure Beneficial Local Development and Environmental
Impacts—Sara J Scherr, Visiting Fellow, Agnicultural and Resource Economics
Department, University of Maryland, College Park (February 14 to 18)

Leaving Mo Child Behind in the Third Millennium—tianan Wnght Edelman,
President, Children's Defense Fund, Washington, D C (Apnl 25 to 29

Planning Meebng for Improving Research and Knowledge on Soclal Development
in International Organizatlons—Thandika Mkandawaire, Director, United Nahions
Research Institute for Social Development, Geneva, Switzerland (November 6 to 10)

Progressive Government: Coming to Terms With the Global Knowledge Society—
Matthew Taylor, Director, Institute for Public Policy Research, London, United
Kingdom {(March 17 to 20)

Prometing Secioeconomic Security—Guy Standing, internatronal Labour Organmization,
and Kathenne McFate, Associate Director, Working Communities, Rockefeller Foundation

Realities and New Approaches: Development Communication in the 215t Century—
Denise Gray-Felder, Vice President for Admimstration and Communications,
Rockefeller Foundation (October 9 to 14}

Reflections on Global Institutions for Environment and Development—Julia M
Lefevra, Executive Director, LEAD intemahional, Mew York {uty 10 to 14}

Strategic Planning Meeting of the Carlbbean Publishers Network—Ilan Lucein
Randle, Chairman, Canbbean Publishers Network, Kingston, Jamaica
{Novernber 1310 17)

Toward a Global Environmental Organization—Daniel C Esty, Director, Yale Center
for Environmental Law and Policy, New Haven, Connecticut (September 18 to 22)

Toward a Global History of Contemporary Women's Movements—Linda Gordon,
Professor of History, New York University (Ju

Professor of History, University of Col
Oregon University, Monmouth (Octol

Value Chain Research—Gary Gereffi, Pro
Katherne McFate, Associate Director, Worang Cotrdunities roggam,
Foundaticn (September 256 to 29)

Charting a Global Course for Medical AborISHT Rew
Appropriate Policies—Beverly Winitkoff, M D , Director, Reproductwe Health,
Population Council, New York {June 12 to 16)

Europe and the United States: Comparative Ethnic Literatures, Cultures and
Politics—Alfred Hornung, Professor of English and Amencan Stuches, University of
Mainz, Germany (February 9 to 15)

Health Maps: Disease Control Using Satellite Surveillance—John Malone, Pofessor of
Microbiology and Parasitology, Loukstana State Unnersity, Baton Rouge (Apn) 10 to 14),

Operationalizing Cairo and Beijig: A Training Initlative i Gender and Reproductive
Health—Jane Cothingham, Techmcal Officer, Women's Perspectives and Gender
Issues, Department of Reproductive Health and Research, World Health Orgamization,
Geneva, Switzerland {May 1 to 5)

Population and Reproductive Health: Planning for the Future for the Rockefeller
Foundation—Lincoln Chen, Executive Vice President for Strategy, Rockefeller
Foundation {Apnl 3 1o 7)

Resourcing Public Health—Sarah B Macfadane, Associate Director, Health Equity,
Rockefeller Foundation (May 1 to 5)

Sound of Falling Light—Chns Millado, Playwnght and Director, Quezon City,
Philippines (November 24 to Decernber 15)

RESIDENTS

Dr. Elizabeth Abel (United States), Associate Professor of Enghsh, University of
Califormia, Berkeley—a manuscnpt, “Signs of the Times  The Visual Poliics of im Crow."

Dr. Juse Antonio Aguilar Rivera {Mexica}, Professor of Political Science, Centro de
Investigacion y Docencia Econormicas, Mexico City—a manuschpt, *The Sound &
the Fury Essays on the Multicultural Persuasion in Mexioo and the United States

Dr. Aziz Al-Azmeh {(United Kingdom), Professor, Department of Near East Languages,
Columbia University, New York——a project, “Mapping the Gaze. Considerations from
the History of Arab Cralization” (with Nadia Al-Bagdad))

Dr. Nadia Al-Bagdadi (Germany), Postdoctoral Research Feliow, Center for Behavioral
Research, Amencan University of Beinut, Lebanon—a project, “Mapping the Gaze
Considerations from the History of Arab Ciwvilization™ (with Aziz Al-Azmeh)

Michael H. Alderman, M.D. (United States), Professor of Medicine and Epidenmiclogy
and Social Medicine, Atbert Einstein College of Medicing, Bronx, New York—an
assessment of SPARC {Sickness Prevention Achieved through RegicnalCollaboration)
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Dr. Ginanasigiamony Aloysius {India), Visiting Fellow, Centre for Social Studis,
South Gujarat University Campus, Mew Delln—a study, “Nationalism as Social
Dernocracy in India *

Dr. Carol Becker (United States). Dean of Faculty and Professor of Liberal Arts,
School of the Art Institute of Chicago—a new hook of essays, "Surpassing the
Spectacle Global Transformations and the Changing Cultural Politics of Art *

Ms. Jill Bedgood (United States), Arbist, Austin, Texas—artwork, “Janus at the
Threshold The Ethics of Architecture and the Architecture of Ethucs” (wath
Beverly Penn)

Ms. Lorna R. Bieber (United States), Photographer, New York Crty—a photo senes,
“Hormes and Offices "

Dr. D. Caroline Blanchard (United States), Professor of Genetics, John A Bums
School of Medicine, University of Hawan at Manoa—a manuscnpt, “Aggression and
Defense in Mammals "

Dr. Eckart Boege (Mexico), Professor of Anthropology, Instituto Nacional de
Antropologia & Histona, Xalapa, Mexico—a study, “Conservation of Biodiversity
Through Ecodevelopment Lessons Learnt From Peasant and Indigenous Populatron
Around Protected Areas in Southern Mexico "

Dr. Elena V, Botkova (Russia), Senior Researcher, Institute of Oniental Studies,
Russian Academy of Sciences, Moscow—-a study, “Russian Military Expedihons to
Mongolia A Contnbubion to Mongohan Studes "

Dr. Nikolai Nikolaevich Bolkhovitinov (Russia), Director, Center for Morth Amencan
Studies, Russian Academy of Sciences, Moscow—an article, “Mikhail Karpowich,
George Vemadsky, Mikhail Flonnsky and the Formation of Russian Studies in the
United States "

Dr. John M. Bowers (United States), Prafessor and Chair, Department of English,
Unwversity of Nevada, Las Vegas—a manuscrnpt, “Chaucer and Langland The
Antagonistic Tradibion, 1360-1550 "

Dr. Rexford G. Brown {Linited States), Executive Director, Urban Leaming
Community, Denver, Colorado—a manuscnpt, “Full Moon Over Middle School
Adventures of a Charter Schoot Founder ™

Dr. C. Sue Carter {(United States), nstinguished University Professor of Biology,
Unnersity of Maryland, College Park—a manuschipt, *Is There a Neurobiology of
Love?” (with Stephen W, Porges and Kerstin Uynas-Moberg)

Dr. Lief H. Carter (United States), McHugh Family Distinguished Professor,
Department of Political Science, Cotorado College, Colorado Springs—a manuscnpt,
“Liberal Poliics as Play ”

Ms. Elaine McEwan Carty (Canada), Professor of Nursing, University of Bntish
Colurnbia Schoo! of Mursing, Yancouver—a manuscnpt, “Wornen, Disability and the
Expenence of Chuldirth and Parenting ™

Ms. Josely Carvalho (United States), Artist, New York City—a mediafinstallation
project, “The Book of Roofs ¥

Dr. Dianne L. Chambless (United States), Distinguished Professor of Psychology,
University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill—a study, “Avaidant Personality Disorder:
Meaningful Diagnosis or Useless Duplication® {with Thomas Fydrch}

Mr. Oscar G. Chase (United States), Vice Dean and Professar of Law, New York
University School of Law—a book-length exploration of the relationshup bebween a
society's culture and its dispute-processing institutions

Ms. Laurel Chiten {United States), Independent Fiimaker, Somerville,
Massachusetts—a feature-length nonfiction ilm, “Touched by an Alien "

Dr. Kenton J. Clymer {United States), Professor of History, University of Texas,
El Paso—a manuscnpt, “The United States and Cambodia: A History ™

Dr. Richard Crawford (United States), Glenn McGeoch Collegiate Professor of Music,
University of Michigan, Ann Arbor—a study of the life and mustc of George Gershwin.

Dr. Joseph Dan (Israel), Gershom Scholem Professor of Kabbalah, Department of
Jewnsh Thought, Hebrew University, Jerusalem—a study, “The Language of the
Mystics The Problem."

Dr. Richard Danielpour (United States), Composition Faculty, Manhattan School of
Music, New York City—a music composition, “Margaret Gamer, Opera in Two Acts,”
and a cello concerto, “Sik Road "

Dr. Vrmda Datta (India), Reader, Unit for Child and Youth Research, Tata Institute of
] umbap—a Mapuss

"Day Care Prowiston for Young Children in

elv Expertence in Media The
Simultanerty” (with Todd Githn)

Ms. Diana de Solares {Guatemala), Artist, Guaternala City—artwork, “The Mask 1s
the Meaning ™

Dr. Vishakha N. Desai (United States), Vice President for Cultural Programs and
Director of the Galleries, Asia Society, New York City—a book about the 20th-century
arts in Asia (with Apinan Poshyananda)

Dr. Kathleen M. DeWalt (United States), Professor of Anthropology and Public Health
and Associate Dean for Graduate Studies and Research, University of Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvama—a manuscnpt, *Becoming a "Socia’, Cassava Processing, Wormen's
Social Power and Chuld Welfare in Manabn, Ecuador”

Dr. Kui Deng (United States), Assistant Professor of Musie, Dartmouth College,
Hanover, New Hampshire—a music composition, “Floating boon,” for a mixed
ensemble of Chinese and classical instruments

Dr. Ina Druvlete {Latvia), Professor, Latvian Language Institute, University of Latvia,
Riga—a study, “Minonty Language Rights in Mulhlingual Regians ™

Dr. Steven C. Dubin {United States), Director, Media, Society and the Arts Program,
State University of New York, Purchase—a study, "Bones of Contention. The African
Bunal Ground and the Politics of Memory "

Charles J. Epstein, M.D. {United States), Professor of Pediatncs, University of
California, San Francisco—a manuscnpt, “Is Genebics Becoming Dangerous to Society?”

Dr. Myron Essex {United States), Lasker Professor of Health Sciences and Charr,
Harvard AIDS Institute, Harvard School of Public Health, Cambnidge, Massachusetts—
a rewised edition of a book on AIDS (n Afnca (with Souleymane Mboup}

Ms. Inci Eviner (Turkey), Artist, Istanbul—artwork, “Envy and Tenderness *

Dr. B. H. Fairchild (United States}, Professor of English, Califormia State University,
San Bernardino—a collection of poerns, “Rave On "

Dr. John C. Fletcher {(United States), Professor Ementus of Biomedical Ethics,
Uriversity of Virgima School of Medicine, Charlottesville—a manuscnpt, “Genetics,
Ethucs and Society Global Trends” {with Dorothy C Weriz)

Dr. Keith Forster {Australia), Semor Lecturer, School of Humanities, Media and Asian
Studies, Southern Cross University, Lismore—a study, “The Economic and Social
Dirnensiens of Reform in a Chinese Province The Case of Zhepang

Dr. Lynn Freed {United States), Wnter, Sonoma, California—a novel, "House of Women "

Dr. Robert L. Fred (United States), Visiting Associate Professor of Education,
Northeastern University, Boston—a manuscnpt, “The Passionate Learner Engaging
All of Qur Chuldren in the Power of Discovery "

Dr. Thomas Fydrich (Germany), Privatdocent, Inshiute of Psychology, Unversity of
Heidelberg—a study, “Avaidant Personality Disorder Mearingful Diagnosis or Useless
Duphcation?” {(with Dianne L Chambless)

Dr. Joseph Gal {(United States), Professor of Medicine, Pharmacology and Pathology,
University of Colorado Schod! of Medicine, Denver—a study, “Problems of Nomenclature
and Termmology in Stereochermistry The Use and Misuse of the Term Chiral'.”

Dr. Allen Gal (Israel), Professor of History, Ben-Gunon University of the Negev—two
studies, “West of Zion A Comparative Study of Amencan and Eurspean Ziomsm” and
“Madern Jewish Matonalism The Geo-Pohitical Dimenstons ”

Ms. Sally Gall {(United States), Artist, New Yark City-—artwork about humanity's
relationship to the natural wortd

Mr. George Garrett (United States), Wiiter, Charlotteswille, Virgimia—a novel on
Amencans in Italy, then and now

Dr. Todd Gitlin (United States), Professor of Culture, Joumalism and Sotiology, Mew
York University—a study, “The New Expenence of Media The Emergence of a Culture
of Saturation, Spead and Simultaneity” (with Daniel Dayan}

Dr. Howard F. Gospet (United Kingdom), Professor of Business History, King's
College London—a manuscnpt, “Mations, Firms and the Management of Labour,
1890-1965 "

Mr. John Haines (United States), Writer, Helena, Montana—-a collection of poems,
essays and letters, "A John Haines Reader"

Dr. Gary G. Hamilton {United States), Professor of Sociology, Jackson School of
International Studies, Universiy of Washington, Seattle—a manuscnpt, “Taiwan's
Integration in the Global Economy The Eccnomic Sociology of Capitalism n Asia”
{with Cheng-Shu Kao)

Ms. Ronne Hartfield {Unrted States), Consultant in Museum Education and Planning,
Chicago—a biography of her mother, “Down River, Down Heme "

Dr. Ehid Havazefet (United States), Associate Professor of English, Oregon State
University, Corvallis—a new novel

Dr. Keith Owen Hawkins (United Kingdom}, University Reader in Law and Society,
Fellow and Tutor, Onel College, Oxford University—a comprehensive analysis of legal
decision making (with Peter K. Manming)
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J. Allan Hobson, M.D. {United States), Prafessor of PsychiatryaHarvard University, +
Cambndge, Massachusetts—a manuscript, “Sleeping Beauty The Art and Science of
Drearming” {(with Hellmut Wohl}

Dr. Martin Holland (New Zealand), Professor of Political Science, University of
Canterbury, Chnstchurch—a study, “Good Govemance and Development in the Pacific

Ms. Sharon K. Hom {United States}, Professor of Law, City University of New York
Law Schoal, Flushung, New York—a study, “Re-forring Cevil Rights in Uncmal Times”
{with Enc K Yamamato)

Mr. David Ivle (United States), Artist, New York City—artwork, “Paintings as
Influenced by MNorthern Italian Geography and Art History "

Dr. William J. Jackson {United States), Associate Professor of Religious Studies,
Indiana University/Purdue University, Indianapolis—a manuscript, “Fractal Patterns in
the Humanities ”

Dr. Daniel Javitch (United States), Professor of Comparative Literature, New York
Unnersity—a study, *Sixteenth-Century Italian Genre Theory and Doctrines of ‘Initatio’ "

Dr. Thambapillai Jogaratnam {Sri Lanka), Professor of Agnicultural Economics,
Unversity of Peradeniya—a textbook, “Econormc Growth, Distnbution and the
Envircnment Sustainable Development in Sn Lanka.”

Dr. Cheng-shu Kao (Taiwan), Prafessor of Sociclogy, Institute of East Asian Societies
and Economies, Tunghai University—a manuscnpt, “Tawan"s Integrabon in the
Global Economy The Economic Sociology of Caprtalism i Asia” (with Gary G.
Hamulton)

Dr. Julian E. Keil (United States), Professor of Epidemiology, Ementus, Medical
Unwversity of South Carolina, Charleston—a study, “Health Status and Aging
Charactenshcs of Blacks and Whites in a Southeastern Community Forty Years of
Observation” (with Susan E. Sutherland)

Dr. Philippa Kelly (Australia), Senior Lecturer, Bepartment of Enghsh, University
College, Australian Defence Force Academy, Canberra—a study, “Autobrographical
Practice in Early Modern England *

Dr. David |, Kertzer (United States), Dupee University Professor of Secial Science,
Brown University, Providence, Rhode Istand—a manuscnpt, “The Roman Cathahic
Church and the Jews n the 19th Century ™

Dr. Rajani Konantambigi (India), Associate Prafessor, Unit for Child and Youth
Research, Tata Institute of Social Sciences, Mumbai—a manuscnipt, *Day-Care
Provision for Young Children in India  Problems ard Prospects” (with Vninda Datta).

Dr. Will Kymlicka (Canada), Professor of Philosophy, Gueen's University, Kingston,
Ontano—a study, “Mimonty Rights in Western Democracies and Eastemn Europe *

Dr. William Montgomerie Lamont {United Kingdom), Research Professor of History,
University of Sussex, Lewes, East Sussex—a study, “The Muggletorian History
1652-1979 "

Ms. Denise Lanctot (United States), Librethist, New York Crty—a three-act opera,
“Pope Joan An Qperahic Heresy™ (with John Musta)

Ms. Ana Lara (Mexico), Composer, Mexico City—bwo music compesibons, one for the
Mexican percussion ensemble Tambuco and one for the French flute tno D*Argent

Dr. Richard Ned Lebow {United States), Professor of Political Science, History
and Psychology, and Director, Mershon Center, Ohio State Unwersity, Columbus—
a manuschpt, *Unmaking the West Counterfactual Histonies of Alternate Worlds *

Dr. Ann Lieberman {United States), Visiting Professor, Department of Education,
Stanford University, Calforma—a study, “The Winting Project Connection From
Metworks to Classrooms *

Dr. Yu-sheng Lin {(United States), Professor of History, University of Wisconsin,
Madison—a manuscnpt, "Chinese Ideas of Political Order from the Nealithic
Ageto221BCE"

Ms. Helen MacAlister {United Kingdom), Artist, Edinburgh, Scotland—a senes of
drawings and paintings concerned with language, commurucation and etymology

Ms. Rachel Manley {Canada), Wniter, Toronto, Ontano—a memoir of life with her late
father, Michael Manley, "A Range of Peaks "

Dr. Peter K. Manning (United States), Professor of Sociology and Cniminal Jushice,
Michigan State University, East Lansing—a comprehensive analysis of legal decision
making {with Keth Owen Hawkins),

Dr. David Alfred Martin {United Kingdom), Professor Ementus of Sociology, London
University—a study, “Centres and Penphenes Cross-Disciplinary Study of Religio-
Polical Power in Evrope ”

Dr. Michael Matthews (Canada), Professor of Composition, School of Music,
University of Manitoba, Winnipeg—a cello concerto

Dr. Souleymane Mboup (Senegal), Professor, Department of Bactenology-Virology,
Urversity Cheikh Anta Dop, Dakar—a revised edition of a book on AIDS in Afnca
{with Myron Essex)

Dr. William Hewat McLeod {New Zealand), Professor Ementus of History, Unnersity
of Otago—a study of the Sikh Rahit

Dr. Denis McGuail {United Kingdom), Professor Ementus, Department of Politics,
Unwersity of Southampton—a book that explares the different meamings of medra
accountability to society

Roger E. Meyer M.D. (United States}, Senior Consultant on Clinical Research,
Association of Amencan Medical Colleges, Washington, D.C —a paper, “Ethical Issues in
the Conduct of Cinical Research Involving Subjects with Mental or Addictve Disorders ”

Dr. William A. Mikhail (Egypt), Professor of Econometnics, Amenican University in
Cairo—a study, "Varyng Input—Output Coefficients in Investment Programs ”

Dr. Alastair J. Minnis (United Kingdem), Professor of Medieval Lterature, University
of York—a manuscript, “The Medigval Eve Creation and Cnsis ™

Dr. Mario I. Molina {Chile}, Associate Professor of Physics, University of Chile,
Santiago—an essay, “Nonlineanty in Maternials Science "

Mr. John Musto (United States), Composer, New York Criy—a three-act opera, “Pope
Joan An Operatic Heresy" (with Denise Lanctot}

Ny, Susana Narotzky (Spain), Professor Titular Universidad, Department of Social
Anthropology, University of Barcelona—a manuscript, “Reworking Ethnography Sites
of Work, Practices of Culture in Two Economic Regions of Eurepe—A Com parative
and Histoncal Approach” (with Gavin Srmith}

Dr. Susan Neiman {Israel), Professor of Phulosophy, Tel Aviv University—a manuscapt,
“Bwl n Modern Thought

Ms. Elizabeth Neuffer (United States), Reporter, The Boston Globe, Boston,
Massachusetts—a manuschpt, “Beyond Hatred *

Pr. Sonia Nieto (United States), Professor of Education, Unwersny of Massachusetts,

Montreal—a manuscript, “Days of Dea XC
Qaxacan Poputar Culture "

Ms. Lestye Obiora (Nigerial, Associate Profebsorfiames EARoge
University of Anzona, Tucson—a study on th nee obacateg

Nacwnal Autonoma de Méxlco—-a paper,
The Role of Market and Productive Strategiesfameitios
Conservahon and Sustainable Development *

Dr. David Patterson (United Kingdom}, Professor Ementus, Hebrew Studies, St
Cross College, University of Qxford—a transiation of three novellas and a short story
by Hebrew writer Joseph Hayyim Brenner, 1881-1921 {with Ezra Spicehandler)

Dr. Daniel W, Patterson {United States), Kenan Professor Ementus of Enghsh and
Folklore, Unwersity of North Carolina, Chapel Hill—a manuscnpt, “A Cultural
Interpretation of 18th-Century Scotch-Insh Gravestones in the Carohna Piedment *

Dr. Philip Pechukas {United States), Professor of Chemistry, Columbia University,
New York City—a study, “Guanturn Dynamucs of Open Systems ”

Ms. Beverly Penn {United States), Associate Professor of Art, Southwest Texas State
University, Austin—artwork, “Janus at the Threshold. The Ettucs of Architecture and
the Architecture of Ethics™ {with Jill Bedgood)

D, Joel Pfister {United States), Professor of Amencan Studies and English, Wesleyan
University, Middletown, Connecticut—a study, “Inderduality Incorporated The
History of Indmduabzing and Natwve Amencans ”

Dr. Stephen Polcari (United States), Former New York Director, Archives of Amencan
Art—a study, “Jackson Pollock A Design for Change *

Dr. Stephen W. Porges (United States), Professor and Charr, Department of Human
Development, Uriversity of Maryland, Coltege Park—a manuscnpt, “Is There a
Neurobiology of Love?” (with C Sue Carter and Kerstin Uynas-Moberg)

Dr. Apinian Poshyananda (Thailand), Associate Professor, Faculty of Fine and Apphed
Arts, Chulalongkom University, Bangkok—a book about the 20th-century arts (n Asia
twith Vishakha N Desai)

Dr. Harriet B. Presser (United States), Distinguished University Professar,
Department of Sociology, Universiy of Maryland, College Park—a study, "Toward a
24-Hour Economy Nonstandard Work Schedules and the Amencan Family ™

Dr. Paula Rabinowitz (United States), Professor of English, University of Minnesota,
Minneapolis—a study, “Emily, Frida, Georgia A Story of Fermmism, Natonalism and
Painting in the Age of Mecharucal Reproduchon "

Dr. Alfredo Rehren {Chile}, Associate Professor, Insttute of Polical Science, Cathohc
University of Chile, Sanbiago—a study, “The Pohtics of Corruption in Chile ™
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Dr. David Ford Robitaille {Canada), Professor and Head, Department of Mathemates * 4 Dr. Dabniy Stuart (United Sta‘ﬁes), $ Blount Mason Jr Protessor of English,

Education, University of Brtish Columbia—two volumes as part of a study, *The
Impact of the 'Third International Mathematics and Science Study’ on the Teaching
and Learning of Mathematics and Science *

Ms. Pathann Rogers (United States), Water, Castle Rock, Colorado—new poems

Dr. Nils Roll-Hansen {Norway), Professor of Philosophy, University of Oslo—a book
on the problematic consequences of an instrumental view of science

Dr. Ingnd D. Rowland {United States), Associate Professor of the History of
Art, University of Chicago—a biography of the southen Italian philosopher
Giordane Bruno

Dr. Peter H. Russell {Canada), University Professor Ementus, Department of Polrcal
Science, University of Toronto—a study, “The Mabo Case and the Decolonization of
indigenous Peoples "

Dr. Mary Beth Saffo (United States), Professor of Physiclogy, Anzona State
University, Phoenix—a manuscnpt, “The Dynamics of Endosymbiosis The Lives of
Organisms Inside Crganisms "

Dr. Richard J. Samuels {United States), Ford Intemational Professor, Departrnent of
Folitical Science, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambndge—a manuschipt,
“Leaderstup in ltaly and Japan *

Dr. Kay Schaffer (Austrahia}, Associate Prafessor, Department of Sccial Ingquiry,
Unsversity of Adelaide—an essay, "Social Change, Autobiography and Hurman Rights™
{with Sidonie Smith)

Dr. Frieder W, M, Schniock (Germany), Artist and Art Histonan, Berin—crzation of a
new Web site (with Renata Stih)

Dr. T. Paul Schuliz {(United States), Professor of Economics, Yale University, New
Haven, Connecticut—a manuscrnpt, "Women's Productivity, the Family and the
Demographic Transition

Dr. Zur B. Shapira {United States}, Research Professor, Stem School of Business,
New York University—a study, *On the Reluctance to Assume Power Implications
for Governance "

Dr. Tracy Denean Sharpley-Whiting (United States), Associate Professor of French,
and Director, Afncan-Amenican Studies and Research Center, Purdue University,
West Lafayette, Indiana—a study, "Gendenng Negmtude Race Women, Race
Conscrousnass, Race Letters "

Dr. Marilyn Shrude {United States}, Professor of Music, Bowling Green State
University, Ohio—a composition for wiolin and plang

Mr. Sorya $im (Cambodia), Deputy Director for Research and Finance,
Documentation Center of Carmbodia, Phnom Penh—a study, “Unaccounted U §
Incidents in Cambodia *

M. Arthur Simms (Jamaica), Artist, Long Island Crty, New York—artwork, “Folklore
for Contemporary Jamaicans "

Dr. Sidonre Ssmuth (Umited States), Professor of English, tmiversity of Michigan,
Ann Arbor—an essay, “Social Change, Autobiography and Hurman Rights” (with
Kay Schaffer)

Dr. Gavin Smuth {Canada), Professor of Anthropology, University of Toronto—a manu-
scnpt, "Reworking Ethnography Sites of Work, Practices of Culture m Two Economic
Regions of Europe—#a Comparative and Histoncal Approach” (with Susana Narotzky)

Dr. Gerald Stanton Smith (United Kingdom), Professor of Russian Language and
Literature, University of Oxford University—a manuscnpt, “Eurasiamism and
Russian ldentity "

Dr Eleonora Solovey (Ukraine), Semior Research Scholar, Institute of Literature,
Kiev—a monograph about the Ukraiman poet V Svidzinsky

Or. Bode Sowande (Nigena), Senior Lecturer, Department of Theatra Arts, University
of ihadan—a manuserpt, “Oduthemes History of a Nigerian Theatre ™

Dr. Ezra Spicehandler (United States), Professor of Hebrew Literature, Hebrew
Union College-Jewsh Inshiute of Religion, Cincinnab—a transiabon of three novellas
and a short story by Hebrew writer Joseph Hayyum Brenner, 1881-1921 (with
David Patterson}

Dr. Piotr Steinkeller (United States), Professor of Assynology, Department of Near
Eastern Languages and Ciantization, Harvard University, Cambndge, Massachusetis—
a study, “Population Density, Settlernent Patterns and Rural Landscape Under the

.

Case of the P, Umma "
s}, Durector, pmar Field Office, Save the Children,
nidbook, “Basifive Devignce A New Paradigm for Addressing

7), Artist Beqin—c

)

1on of a new Web site {with Frieder

Washington and Lee University, Lexington, Virmniz—a valume of new and previously
published poems, “The Man Wha Loved Cezanne "

Susan E. Sutherland (United States), Mission St Joseph's, Asheville, North
Carolina—a study, “Health $tatus and Aging Gharactenstics of Blacks and Whites
n a Southeastern Commuruty Forty Years of Observahon” (with Julian € Keil}

Mr. Ricardo Tacuchean (Braail}, Professor of Music, Rio de Janeso University—
a music composition, “Stnng Quartet No 2, ‘Bellagio’ "

Or. Belgm Tekee (Turkey), Professor, Department of Socwlogy, Bugazigt University,
|stanbul—a study, "Famibal Relationships, Childbeznng and Child Reanng in Istantil *

Ms. Fiona Templeton (United Kngdom), Lancaster University, Lancaster—a play,
"Medead

Dr. Rornila Thapar (India), Professor Ementus of History, Jawaharial Nebru Unwersity,
New Dethi—a manuscript, “Representabion of Histery The Case of Sornanatha *

Dr. Przemyslaw Urbanczyk (Poland), Professor, Institute of Archaeclogy and Ethnology,
Polish Academy of Sciences, Warsaw—essays on early medieval Central Europe

Dr. Kerstin Uvnas-Moberg (Sweden), Professor, Department of Physiology and
Pharmacology, Karolinska Instdute, Stockholm—a manuscnpt, *Is There a
Meurabiology of Love? (with €. Sue Carter and Stephen Proges)

Dr. Hans Viavianos (Greece}, Professor of Politics, American College of Greece,
Athens—a manuscnpt, “John Ashbery Selected Poems ”

Ms. Aleksandra Vrebalov {Serina), Composer, Now Sad, Yugoslavia—a music
compasttion, Op 29, for the Now Sad Synergia Ensemble

Dr. Xvejun Wang (China), Associate Professor, Department of Urban and
Enwironmental Science, Peking University, Beiying—a study, “Taxation Polcy
Jts Role in Emaronmental Protechtion and Resource Conservation in China "

Dr. Dorothy C. Wertz {United States), Senior Scientist, Dnision of Social Science,
Ethics and Law, Shriver Center for Mental Retardahion, Waltham, Massachusetts—
a manuscnpt, “Genetics, Ethics and Society Global Trends” (with Jobn C Fletcher)

Dr. H, L. Wesseling (Netherlands}, Professor of Modern History, and Rector,
Netherands Instrtute for Advanced Study in the Humanities and Social Sciences,
Wassenaar—a manuscnpt, “European Colomial Empires, 1815-1919 "

Mr. C. K. Wilhams {(United States), Wnier, Princeton, New Jersey—new poems

Dr. Hellmut Wohl {United States), Professor Ementus of Art History, Boston
Unersity—a manuscript, “Sleeping Beauty The Art and Science of Dreaming”
{with J Allan Hobson)

Ms. Andrea Wollensak {United States), Associate Professor of Art, Connecticut
College, New London—artwork, "Cultural Geographies Global Positioning System
Drawings of Bellagio.”

Dr. Drane Wood (United States), Assistant Professor, Graduate School of Education,
George Mason University, Arington, Virginta—a study, “The Winting Project
Connechon, From Networks to Classrooms” (with Ann Ligberman)

Dv, Ben Xu {China), Professor of English, St Mary's College of Califorma, Qakland—a
study, “Nationalism and Intellectual Politics in China of the 1990s" (wath Zhou Xian}

Mr. Enic K. Yamamoto (United States), Professdf of Law, University of Hawant,
Honolulu—a study, “Re-Forming Civil Rights in Uncivil Times" (with Shirley Hom)

Dr. Zhou Xsan {China), Professor and Acting Chair, Department of Chinese, Nanjing
University—a study, “Nationalism and intellectual Pelitics in China of the 1990s"
{with Ben Xu)

! 2000 ELLA HOLBROOK WALKER FELLOWS |

These fellows are selected to be in residence for three or more months to help
facilitale contacts among the other residents and to work on their own projects.
Awards are by invitatron only; no apphcabons are accepled.

Mr. Charles Amickhanian {United States), Composer and Executive Director, Other
Minds, In¢ , San Francisco—a horspiel commissioned by Westdeutscher Rundfunk
{Cologne, Germany), compnsed of samples from histonical player-mana rolls digitally
processed and telescoped into a single tape composition

Ms Carol Law {United States), Visual Arbst, EIl Cemto, Calforma—artwork n mixed
media on *Laws of Nature,” including “Volta Notebook,” “Plane Tree Cycle,” and the
Lano paintings

Mr. John Reader (Unsted Kongdom), Writer and Photographer, Richmand upon
Thames—a book on Africa, a companion volume to the National Geographic Scciety's
television senes to be broadcast n fali 2001

© 2003 The Rockefeller Foundation
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SPECIAL PROGRAMS *

Communication for Social Change

Catholic Development Commission, Masvingo, Zimbabwe $67,150 to test, in a field
setting, communication processes aimed at buliding the capacity of, and empowenng,
rural Zimbabwean youth to advocate on their own behalf against nsky behaviors
which can lead te the transmission of HIV

Foundation-administered project: $200,000 toward the costs of a Bellagio conference
to explore new approaches in communication for social change

Imaginario, Bogota, Colombia: $50,000 toward the costs of developing the
Communcation Iniatve Labin Amenica, a network—including a Web database, list-
senve and electromic magazines—on communicabion for sustanable development

Internationai Center for Tropical Agriculture, Cali, Colombia  $93,500 for rts project
to evaluate and enhance the impact of community telecenters in Colombia

International Council of AIDS Service Organizations, Toronto, Canada $25,000 to
assist voices from developing countries 10 be heard in the AIDS debate interationally
via world media,

National Public Radio, Washington, D € $125,000 to continue coverage: of race
and to maintam the race beat as part of the cultural desk

Panvws Limited, London, United Kingdom $510,000 toward the planming phase for
developing regional Panos mstitubions (n East Afnca, southern Africa and south Asia

Soul City, Lower Houghton, South Afnca $100,000 toward the cost of producing the
racho series, Soul Buddyz 2, designed to raise the awareness of pre-adolescents to
health and development 1ssues

Umzingwane AIDS Network, Esigodinl, Zmbabwe: $62,000 to test, in a field setting,
communicabion processes aimed at building the capacity of, and empowenng, rural
Zimbabwean youth to advocate on their own behalf against nsky behaviors which can
lead to the transmission of HIV

Zimbabwe AIDS Frevention and Support Organisation, Barare, Zimbabwe
$63,141 to test, In a field setting, communicabion processes aimed at building the
capacity of, and empowenng, rural Zimbabwean youth to advocate an their own
behalf against nsky behawviors which can lead to the transmission of HIV

Expiorations in Population and the Cairo Agenda

The Alan Guttmacher Institute, New York, New York $500,000 toward the cost of
a comparative study n five countries, in collaboration with local partners, concerning
adolescent athtudes and health-seeking bebavior related to sexually transritted
diseases, meluding HIV

Aspen Institute, Washington, D ¢ $100,000 toward the costs of its Women's Lens
on Global Issues, a project to buld a new constituency for intermational engagement

Ateneo de Davao University, Davao City, Phulippines $19,350 to complete a progect
at its Social Research Office, in collaboration with the Population Council, 10 measure
fiow women’s reproductive behawvior 15 affected by improving public famify-planning
and reproductive-health services in the province of Davao del Norte.

Banaras Hindu University, Varanasi, India: $1,448 for a study of the status of
wormen and ferhlity in eastern Uttar Pradesh

Boston Women's Health Book Collective, Somervilfe, Massachusetts $60,000 for
activities designed to improve the scientific dialogue on wornen's reproductive health.

Center for Health and Secial Policy, San Francisco, Califorra $100,00C for a project
to advance reproductive and sexual health and nghts

Centre for Economic and Social Studies, Hyderabad, India $100,000 to undertake
studies on maternal mortality and morbidity in Andhra Pradesh following health-
sector reform

Coalition for Women's Economic Development and Global Equality, Washington,
D €.. $200,000 to conduct a mapping of international arganizations that examines
gender and trade and to develop a modet “women's impact statement” that can be
used to evaluate and negotiate trade agreements

Coalition on Violence Against Women—Kenya, Nairobi, Kenya $100,000 to
decrease the incidence of domeshic violence in Kenya by educating the pubhc
about women's nghts under the law.

© 2003 The Rockefeller Foundation
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Foundation-administeted project: $30,000 for pragram consultancy costs associated
with explorations in populahon and the Cairo agenda

Foundation-administered project: $50,250 for a meeting at the Bellagic Study and
Conference Center m Apnil 2000 to discuss Population and the Cairo Agenda The
Next Steps at the Rockefeller Foundation

Foundation-administered project: $55,000 for consultations concerming future
grantmaking in populahon ang public health in sub-Saharan Afnca

HelpAge International, London, Umited Kingdom- $100,000 for a project n
collaboration with the Organization of Afncan Unity to raise the profile of demographic
aging 15sues in Africa and encourage the development of appropriate policies

Johns Hophins University, Baltimore, Maryland $254,670 to complete a collaborative
project with the University of Montreal on the relationshins between dechning child
mortality and fertiity rates in sub-Saharan Africa

Liaison Centre for Medical Women in Africa, Nairobi, Kenya $94,800 to nvestigate
how gender bias affects the health of women in Kenya and to begin the process of
alleviating the problem

Partners in Population and Development, Dhaka, Bangladesh $217,930 for general
support

Population Council, New York, New York $250,000 for a meeting at the Foundahon's
Bellagio Study and Conference Center on the pohtical economy of global population
change and the publicatron of a supplernent to 1ts Population and Development
Review based on the conference proceedings

Population Council, New York, New York $254.,74(0 to complete a study documenting
the impact of quahty of care on women's reproductive behavior

Popufation Council, New York, New York $4 78,080 to complete, in collaboration
with the Afncan Population and Health Research Center, a study on the health
effects of rapid urbanizabion and of population growth in developing countnes and to
implernent an urban-based fongitudinal demographuc and heatth-research system

Population Council, New York, New York $500,000 toward the cost of renovating
the Center for Biomechcal Research

Tides Center, San Francisco, Califormia $200,000 for a study by the Center for
Health and Gender Equity concerming the impheations of health-sector reforms in
India ard Tanzara for reproductive health and nghts

Tides Center, San Francisco, Califormia $225,000 toward the costs of ifts pro;éct, New
Economy Commurnications, far its initiatrve on women at work in the developing world

United Nations Research Institute for Social Development, Geneva, Switzerland
$100,000 for a project to explore how social policy has responded to the increasing
globahzation of production and women's labor-market participation

University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Mictugan $68,900 for a study of how gender affects
the well-being of older Asians and the support provided to them by farmily members

University of Pennsylvania, Phuladeiphia, Pennsyivania $250,000 for use by its
Population Studhes Center for the Afncan census analysis project.

Women's Funding Network, San Francisco, Califormia $100,000 to develop a
model for effective constituency building of women and girs, with a facus on 1ssues
of globalzation

Women's Law and Public Policy Fellowship Program, Washington, O C - $100,000
to train two women lawyers from South Afnca committed to advancing the cause of
women'’s rights in ther country

World Health Organization, Geneva, Switzerland, $400,000 for research in
Narmibia and Tanzania as part of a mulhicountry research study on women's health
and domestic violence

Global Philanthropy

Aga Khan Foundation U.5.A., Wastimgton, DL $125,000 to develop & demand-led
approach to promoting and traming m philanthropy and strengthening cvil society in
Asia and Africa

Asia Foundation, San Francisco, Califorma $150,000 toward the costs of its
Asia Pacific Phalanthropy Cansorfium to build an expenmentat infrastructure for
philanthropy in Asia

Foundation-administered project: $300,000 to explore the feasibilty of establishing
a nonprofit global portal in philanthropy and the nonprofit sector and, (f feasible, to
develop a business plan and mobilize resources o launch the portal

Foundatlon-administered project: $200,000 for administrative expenses of the
GrangWell project, to expand and improve the way effective change strategies

around the warld are supported by creating innovative netwaorks of new phianthropists,
nonprofit orgamizations and thought leaders that fully utilize the power of communica-
tions technologies

Give2Asia, San Francisco, Califormia $100,000 for general support

Graduate School and University Center, City University of New York, New York, New
York $50,000 to support three intemational fellows 1o study diaspora phutanthropy
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Nonprofit Enterprise and Self-Sustainability Team, Santago,Gtule $25,000 toward!
the costs of its International Vanture Philanthropy Forurn, to explore new capital
maodels for the nonprofit sector »

Oaxaca Community Foundation, Oaxaca, Mexco $100,000 for general support,

Peninsula Community Foundation, San Matea, Calfornia $25,000 toward the
costs of its phulanthropic—incubator project designed to help new philanthropic
orgamzatwons flounsh

The Phitanthropic Initiative, Boston, Massachusetts $50,000 for a project to better
understand and promote giobal phianthropy

Tides Center, San Francisco, Calformia- $1,800,000 for its project, Givingwell, an
inthatve designed to create a systern for effective, accountable global philanthropy

Tides Center, San Francisco, Califormia $50,000 for use by its praject, the
Leadership Leaming Community, toward the costs of creating a comprehensive
Web-accessibie directory of, and eteciromc learning environment for, leadership
development programs in the United States

[ MEXT GENERATION LEADERSHIP |

Project Grants

Bayou La Batre Rural Health Clinic, Spamish Fort, Alabama $10,000 to create a
no-interest fund for small loans to increase access 1o heaith care for the working poor
in Bayou La Batre, Alabarma,

Ingrid Washinawatok El-Issa Flying Eagle Women Fund for Peace, New York,
New York $10,000 to further its work vath indigenous people asound the world.

Rocky Mountain Youth Corps, Ranchos de Taos, New Mexico $10,000 to develop
a youth leadership program based on the Next Generatton Leadership program
designad to develop a diverse corps of young leaders who will strengthen thar
consbituencies, promote inclusiveness ard further democracy

Year One Participation in Cohort Three of the Program
Karin Aguilar-San Juan, St Paul, Minnesota
Jay Alire, Denver, Coforado

Pablo Alvarado, Pasadena, Calforma

Dale Caldwell, New Brunswick, New Jersey
Gillian Caldwell, Brocklyn, New York

Patricia Campos, Alexandria, Virgima

Joan Hoffman, Jamaica Plain, Massachusetts
Taj James, San Francisco, Califorma

Kenneth Johnson, Milwaukee, Wisconsin
Annie Lanzillotto, Brooklyn, New York

Sarah Ludwig, New York, New York

William MacAdams, New Haven, Connecbicut
Pamela McMichael, Prospect, Kentucky
Rebecca Miller, Poway, Califorma

Kimberty Miyoshi, San Francisco, Califorma
Hez Norton, Jamaica Plain, Massachusetts
Cara Page, Durham, North Carolina

Carmen Ramirez, Longmont, Colorado
Thomas Saenz, Alhambra, Calformia

Ryan Streeter, indianapolis, Inchana

Sarah Van de Wetening, Missoula, Montana
David Van Tassel, Salna, Kansas

Rhea Williams-Bishop, Madison, Mississippt
Francis Wong, San Francisco, California

|__THE PHILANTHROPY WORKSHOP |

Hispanics in Philanthropy, Berkeley, Califorma- $225,000 to develop an education
and networking program for new donors werking transnahionally between Latin
Amenca and the United States

University of San Andres, Victonia, Argentina  $50,000 to develop and launch a
donor training program for Argentina based upon The Philanthropy Workshop

University of San Andres, Victona, Argentina $100,000 to continue support
of a doror education and networking program for Argentina based upon The
Phulanthropy Workshop.
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Other Grants

American University in Cairo, Cairo, Egypt- $94,000 toward the cost of 2 visiting
professorship for Ismail Serageldm, a specialist in the development process

Asia Rice Foundation, Los Banos, Pippines $500,000 m general support of its
programs on nee that are essential for regional nce food secunty and the well-being of
Asian nce farmers

Asia Society, New York, New York $37,500 toward the cost of the U S - India
Roundtable project, undertaken in collaboration with the Council on Foreign Relahions

Comnell University, thaca, New York- $25,000 toward the cost of a symposiurm n
honor of Robert F Chandler r, founding direcicr of the International Rice Research
Institute, o discuss nce research and production in the 21st century

Cornell University, Ithaca, New York $50,000 toward tha cost of 2 chmcat evaluation
to determine whether increased ntakes of food calcium are effectve in preventing
nickets in Bangladesh

Council on Foundations, Washington, D C  $49,600 toward generat operating
axpenses in year 2000

Foundation Center, New York, New York $200,000 toward its general operating
expenses

Foundation-administered project: $11,480 for an exploratory study of global
SECUNRtY 1S5UeS

Foundation-administered project: $300,000 for the planning phase of a project to
launch an independent global commission on human secunty

Foundation-administered project: $79,000 for an exploratory study of global income
Inegqualitres.

Hispanics in Philanthropy, Berkeley, Cabforma $125,000 t
expenses and capaciy-building actwities ($85,000 from Gi

Independent Sector, Washington, D.C.. $10,000 towdrd general o
expenses in 2000

Long 1sland Educational Television Council, Ing., Plainv
toward the cost of distnbuting the BBC World News to pubdjc telev
the United States

Michigan State University, East Lansing, Michigan $50, towat
Partnership to Cut Hunger in Afnca initiative.

National Academy of Sciences, Washington, DC  $50,
participation in an InterAcaderny Council that brings paneis of experts together to
provide (ndependent advice to internaticnal agencies on serentific, lechnological and
pubhc-health issues,

New Renaissance Group, London, United Kingdom $50,000 for a workshop based
on Duncan Peore's book about ermironmental 1ssues, *Where Next? Reflechons on
the Human Future "

New York Regional Association of Grantmakers, New York, New York $10,000
toward general support for the year 2000,

New York University, New York, New York $10,000 toward the cost of a symposium on
food and cubture organized by its Astan/Pacific/Amencan Studies Program and (nshtute

New York University, New York, New York $24,270 for a consultation organized by
the Center for the Study of International Organization on the role of the Usaited
Nations in reaching Millenniurn Sumimit poverty-reduction targets

Rockefeller Foundation Matching Gift Programy: $2,200,000 toward the Rockefeller
Foundation Matching Gift Program

Singamma Sreeniivasan Foundation, Bangalore, India $50,000 to )mprove its
facilities as a conference center

St. Catherine’s College, Oxford, Oxford, United Kingdom: $252,000 for the first
phase of a program of research and pohicy dissemination concerning the causes and
consequences of global income (nequality

United Nations Development Programme, Mew York, New York $60,000 for a
meeting at the Bellagio Study and Conference Center concerning Human Development
Report 2001, which has as its theme, channeling technology for human developrment

United Nations Research Institute for Social Development, Geneva, Switzerand
$72,450 for a meeting at the Bellagio Study and Conference Center for representatives
from a range of U N development agencies to begin a process designed to ensure
that the U.N system will profit from research undertaken by muttilateral nstitutions
and the academic commumty

University of Cambridge, Cambndge, United Kingdom $75,000 toward the cost of
developing and extending its hbrary's rare books and manuscripts reading rooms,
used by scholars from alt over the world

William Greaves Productions, New York, WNew York $100,000 for an educational
outreach program in association with a documentary film entitled, “Ralph Bunche-
An Amencan Odyssey”

© 2003 The Rockefeller Foundation
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The Board of Trustees

rREPDRT 0F IKDEPENMDENT AUDITORS i
The Rockefeller Foundation

e have audited the accompanying statements of
financial position of The Rockefeller Foundation as
of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related
statements of activities and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial staterments are the
responsibility of The Rockefeller Foundation’s man-
agement, Qur responsibility is to express an opinian on these financia!
statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards genarally |
accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
Examining, on a iest basis, evidence supporiing the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the owverall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for

Qur epinion,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of The Rockefeller Foundation
at Decernber 31, 2000 and 1399, and the ¢changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.

Garet ¥ MLLP

New York, New York
February 9, 2001

Photograph Excised Here
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L STATEHENTS OF FINANCIAL PDSITIGNJ

Dacember 31
ASSETS ‘ 2000 1929
{in Thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents, including restrictad bond funds of $692 in 2000 and $705 in 1999 (Nota 5) $ 2,296 % 3,000
Dividends, interest and other receivables 14,484 13,612
Investments (Nofes 1 and 2) 3,525,687 3,751,499
Property, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization (Note 3) 27,260 25,429
Prepaid pension cost and other assets (Note 4 49,301 44,002
Total assets $ 3,619,028 3 3,837,542
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitles $ 16,753 % 11,115
Appropriations by the trustees, approved for specific granteas/purpases but not yet paid (Note £) 97,408 66,054
Bonds payalile, net of unamortized discount (2000: $277; 1999; $289) (Note 5} 26,168 26,766
Deferred Federal excise lax (ivote 7) 2450 11,894
Accrued post-retirement benefits (Vote 4) 18,324 18,165
Total liabilities 161,100 133,024
Commitments (Votes I and 2)
Linrestricted and total net assets (including board-designated amounts of
$227,043 in 2000 and $260,701 in 1939) (Vote & 3,457,928 3,704,518
Total liabilities and net assets $ 3,619,028 % 3837542

See ancompanying noles.
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r STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES —]

|
]
|
‘ Year endfed Decernirer 31
l CHANGES IN NET ASSETS l 2000 1999
(in Thousands)
| Investmeant return:
Net realized and unrealized {loss) gain on invesiments $ {138,553) $ 571,148
Dividend and interest incoime 125,707 107 678
Giher investment income 973 806
{11,878 879,632
Investment expenses (17,537 {1£,546)
Net investment return (29.415) 663,086
Other expenses:
Approved grants and program costs 208,453 166,672
General administrative expenses 13,961 11,438
Provision for Fedzral excise 1ax (Wots 7):
Current 4,205 4,244
Defered {9,444) 4 560
217,175 187,212
(Decrease} increase in unrestricted net assets (246,550) 475874
Unrestricted nel assets, beginning of vear 3,704,518 3,223,644
Unrestricted net assets, end of year $ 3457928 $ 3,704,518
See accompanying nofes.
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| STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended Decamber 31
CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES 2000 1999
fn Thousands)
{Decrease) increase in net assets {246,590 ) 475,874
Adjustments to reconcile {dectease) increase in net assets 1o net cash used In operating activities:
Depraciation and amortization 1,279 985
Net unrealized loss (gain) on investments 478,545 (252,192}
Net realized gain on investments (339,987) {318,956)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Dividends, interest and other receivables {872) 565
FPrepaid pension cost and other assets (5,299} {3,202)
Accounts payable and accrued liabllities 5,638 1,162
Appropriations by the trustees, approved for specific grantees/iurposes ut not yet paid 32,321 11,713
Daterred Federal excise tax {9,444} 4,860
Accrued post-retirement benefits 159 289
162,340 568,212
Net cash used in operating activities B4,250) {92,338)
CASH FLOWS FROM IMVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net sales of investments 87,254 93,394
Property additions (3.008) {1700
MNet cash provided by investing activities 84,156 93,224
CASH FLONS FROM FIMANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of bonds payable {610) {585)
Mzt cash used in financing activities (610) (585}
Met {decreasa) increase in cash and cash equivalents, excluding amounts held in investment portiolio {704) 301
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,000 z,659
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,295 ] 3,000

See accompaitying notes.
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| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. INVESTMENTS

The Foundation's significant investments are caried at fair value or
contractual values which approximate fair value, Fair value is the amount
gt which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
bebwesn willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. The fair
values of financial instruments are estimates based upon rmarket condi-
tions and perceived risks as of the staternent of financial position date and
require varying degrees of management judgment. Quoted market prices,
when available, are used as the measure of fair value, In cases where quoted
market prices are nat avaifable, fair values are based on appraisals, quota-
tions of similarly traded instruments, pricing models or other estimates.

{nvesting activities are reported an a trade date basis. Realized gains and
losses are calculated based on the specific identification method for both
financial statement and tax return purposes.

The Foundatlon's investment portfaiio consists of the following:

As of December 31, 2000, under the terms of various venture capital, real
estate limited partnership and other agreements, the Foundation has com-
mitments to contribute approximately $231.5 million in additional capital
over the naxt 10 years.

2. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives are financial instruments whose value is based upon an under-
lying asset (e.g., treasury bond), index {2.g., S&P 500) or reference rate
te.g., LIBOR), Qver-the-counter ("OTC") derivative products are privately
negotiated contractual agreements that can be tailored to mest individual
client needs and include futures, forwards and options. Exchange-traded
derivative products are standardized contracts transacied through reguiated
exchanges and include futures and certain options contracts listed on an
exchange. Derlvatives are utilized extensively as highly effective toals
that enable users to adjust risk profiles, such as interest rate, currency or
other market risks. Additionally, derivatives provide users with access to

Dagember 31
2000 19499
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Marketzble securlties: {tr Thousands)
Money market funds g 185,380 $ 185,391 k3 178,218 % 178,223
Foraign currency—short-term - {7,635) - 8878
U.5. and other government obligations 430,181 438,202 404,146 393,720
Comporate obligations 544,403 526,063 509,633 484,691
Commen stogk {including REITs 1,938,198 1,992,888 1,801,783 2,325,341
Other investments 19,995 16,586 19,962 19,123
Substatal 3,118,158 3,151.495 2,813,742 3,405,976
Limited partnerships and similar interests:
Real estate 141,139 150,140 143,266 154,276
Private equity 298,609 368,304 213,799 296,819
Subtotal 439,748 518,534 357,065 451035
Pending securities transactions, net (143,918} (144.342) {108,552) {109.572)
Total $ 3,413988 $ 3,525,687 $ 3,161,255 & 3,751 499

Photograph Excised Here
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market risk management tools, which are often unavailable in traditional
cash instruments.

As a result of its investing strategies, the Foundation is & party to varigus
derivative financial instruments. Derivatives are used by the Foundation
primarily to maintain asset mix or to hedge a portion of currency aor interest
rate exposure.

The Foundation invests in imMernational securities and therefore is exposed
to the effects of foreign exchange rate fluctuations predominantly in
Japanese yen, Swiss francs, Australian dollars, British pounds, Swedish
krona and euros, Fareign currency options and forward contracts may be
used to hedge a portion of this currency risk. The Foundation atso employs
derivatives to maintain a desired asset mix. For example, S&P 500 index
futures contracts are used in combination with cash invested in money
market instruments to replicate an investment in an S&P 500 stock
portfolio. This combination yields the same retum, whila often providing
for savings on transaction costs,

The Foundation's fixed income managers set a target for the duration of
their portfolios and Lise duration analysis to estimate the degree of the
portfolio’s sensitivity o interest rate changes. When the duration of a
particular portfolio of securities is different from their target, Eurodollar or
Treasury note futures or options may be used 10 adjust the partfolie’s duration.

Total margin raguirements on deposit for futures contracts were 35.6
million at December 31, 2000 {$13 million at December 31, 1989).

The underlying contract amounts {*Notional Values") and fair values of the
Foundation's derivative financial instruments at December 31. 2000 and
1999, are summarizad below; all are held for other than trading purposes.

The Foundation records its derivative activities on a mark-to-market or
fair value basis. Assets and liabilities included in the table below represent
the derivative contracts purchased and sold by the Foundation. The fair
value of such positions represents the net unrealized gains and losses and,
consequently, the net receivables and payables at December 31, 2000
and 1999, Market or fair value for the Foundations derivative financial

Decamaer 3]
2000 1999
Notional Vaiue Fair Value Motiznal Value Falr Yalue
Equity contracts to manage desired asset mix fin Thowsands)
{contracts primarily based on S&P 500 indexk:
Futures centracts:
Assets $ 51,064 $ (B96) % 13,729 $ 3l
Fixed income contracts to rmanage portfolia duraticn
and interest rate risk-
Futures contracts:
Assets 141,927 140 145,651 {400)
Liabiilities 159,136) (83) {24,508) a8
Put and call options: '
Liabilitles (57,300} (468) (62,950} (B60%)
Foreign currency contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure
in non LS, dellar securities:
Forward contracts:
Assets 195497 9,642 102,705 17133
Liabifities {501,514) {12,277 {460,300 9,591
Put and call options:
Assets 177 4 1.485 82
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instruments 1s generally Jdetermined by either quoted market prices or
third-party pricing models. Pricing models utilize a series of rarket inputs
to determine the present value of future cash flows, with adjustments, as
required, for credit risk, ficuidity risk and ongaing costs.

Off-balance sheet financial instrusments involve elements of market risk and
credit risk. Market risk represants potential loss from the decrease in the
value of off-balance sheet financial instruments. Credit risk represents
potential loss from possible nonperformance by abligors and countarparties
on the terms of their contracts,

At December 31, 2000, there was approximately $26.9 mitlion related to
OTC contracts and approximately $1.4 million related to axchange-traded
contracts. Counterparties to the Foundation's OTC derivative products are
high credit quality institutions, which are primarily banks, securities firms
and investment companies. Management does not anticipate that losses,
if any, resulting from credit or market risk, would materially affect the
Foundation's financial position.

The Foundation's two custodians maintain securities lending programs on
behalf of the Foundation, and maintain collateral at all times in excess of
the value of the securities on loan. Investment of this collateral is in
accordance with specified guidelines. Interest eamed on these transactions
is included with other investment income in the staternents of activities.
The market value of securities on loan at December 31, 2000 and 1999,
was appraximately $283.8 million and $195 million, respectively.

3. PROPERTY

Expenditures for capial iterns currently in use are included in the praperty
account and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lives of the
respective assats, At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the proparty accourt
included the following:

2000 1999

{in Thousanmds)
Condominiumn interest in 420 Fifth Avenug $ 16555 % 16,555
Condominium improvements 13,868 11,408

Less accumulated depreclation and amortization 6,142 4,875

Property—net § 272¢0 28,428

Photograph Excised Here

4, PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Foundation maintains a defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan”} for
regular salaried employees who were at least 21 years old and have
completed ane year of service or had attained the age of 40 prior to July 1,
2000. As of luly 1, 2000, the Plan was closed to new employees and
also ta those employees hired prior to July 1, 2000 who did not meet the
eligibility requirements. The Plan provides retirement benefits based on
years of service and final avarage pay, with benefits after retirement subject
to increase under a cost-of-living augmentation formula. The Foundation
makes annual contributions to the Plan, as needed, based on actuarial
caleulations, in amounts sufficient to meet the minimum funding require-
ments pursuant to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
Plan assets are Invested in a diversified portfolio of equities and fixed
income sacurities,

n 2000, the Foundation enbanced its 401 (k) plan to create the Retirement
Savings Flan (formerly, the Trusteed Savings Plan), Foundation cantribu-
tions are now made to equal 13 percent of compensation plus a doliar-
for-dollar match of up to an additional 2 percenl of compensation
contributed on a pre-tax basis by employees up o the compensation cap
of $170,000. Current members of the Plan had the option of reraining
In the cambined retirement plan consisting of the defined banefit pension
plan and the former 401(k) Trusteed Savings Plan or moving to the new
Retirement Savings Plan, Employess can make additional unmatched
pre-tax contributions which, when combined with employee contributions
that are matched, cannot exceed the maximum pre-tax contribution limit
of $10,500,

All contributions are credited to the participants' accounts. The Foundation’s
cortributions to the plans were $7 76,000 in 2000 and $550.000 in 1995,

The Foundation provides certain health care and life insurance benefits
{"Other Benefits") for retired employess. Employees are eligible for these
henefits when they meset the criteria for retirameant under the Foundation's
pension plan. The plans are noncontributory and there are no cost sharing
features. The Foundation accrues the expected cost of providing post-
retirernent benefits over the years that employees render service and pays
the cost of retirae health care benefits with excess pension plan assets
under the provisions of Section 401{h) of the Internal Revenue Code.
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2000 1999 2000 1959
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
(fn Thousands)
Benefit obligation at vear-end § 48,486 3 43,183 $ 14,287 $ 13,606
. Fair value of plan assets at year-end 98,729 101,353 - -
Furided stabus of the plan (underfunded) 50,243 52,170 (14,287 {13,606
Prapaid (accrued) benefit cost recognized
in the statements of finarcial pasition 45,978 43,908 (18,324) {18,165}
Weighted-average assurmptions as of Decernber 31:
Discount rate 7.50% 7.25% 7.50% 7.25%
Expected retum on plan assets 9.00% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%
For measurement purposes, a 7 percent annual rate of increase in the per
capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for 2001. The rate
was assumed fo decrease gradually to & percent by 2002 and remain at
that level thereafter.
2000 1999 2000 1999
Penslon Benefits Other Benefits
{in Thousands)
Net periodic benelit (credit) cost $ {5,070) $ 4,737) $ 1,164 $ 1,18l
Benefits paid 2,768 2,721 1,005 ae2

5. BONDS PAYAELE

During fiscal 1993, the Foundation issued $20,445,000 in tax-exempt
term honds and $9,815,000 in tax-exempt serial bonds to fund the
acquisition, construction and fumishing of a new ofiice facility {the
“Facility”}. The bond proceeds and related investment income eamed
were held by a trustee (the “Trustee”) and have been disbursed at the
direetion of the Foundation to fund allowable Facility-related costs.

The bonds are rated Aaa by Moody's and AAA by Standard & Poor's and
are backed by the gereral assets of the Foundation, In addition, the bonds
are secured by the Foundation's ownership interest in the Facility, a
leasehold interest in the Facility, insurance proceeds with respect to the
Facility and certain amounts held by the Trustee. The nominal interest
rates on the serial bonds range from 4.5 percent to 5.1 percent, The

0149 = MERECD
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nominal interest ratas aitributable to the term bonds are 5.3 percent
and 5.4 percent.

The setial bonds mature in various amounts, ranging from $635,000 to
$880,000 per year, through 2008. The term bonds are due in 2013
($5,140,000) and 2023 ($15,305,000). Bond matuntes are as follows
(in thousands):

Fiscal year ending December 31:

2001 3 635
2002 655
2003 695
2004 725
2005 TED
Thereafter 22,965

$ 26445

6. APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENDITURES

Appropriations by the trustees are considered to be obligations when grants
are approved {awarded) for specific grantees; appropriations not released
for specific grantees and the appropriation for the budget for the next year
are considered as board-designated net assets. The majority of approved
grants are scheduled for payment within one year. Administrative costs,
including investment expenses and excise taxes, account for approxi-
mately 12 percent {18 percent in 1999} of the Foundation’s tatal expenses
and are charged to operations when incurred.

Appropriations and expenditures for the year are summarized as follows:

7. FEDERAL EXCISE TAX

The Foundation is a philanthropic organization chartered in 1913 “to
promote the well-being of mankind throughout the world.” The Foundation
qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under Section S01{(c}3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and, accordingly, is not subject to Federal income
tax. Because the Foundation is classified as a private foundation, it is
subject to a Federal excise tax of 1 percent or 2 percent on investment
income {its principal source of revenue) less investment expenses, and
on net rzalized taxable gains on securlties transactions. In accordance with
Section 4940(e) of the Intermal Revenue Code, for the years ended
Dacernber 31, 2000 and 1599, the Foundation met the specified
distribution requirements and, therefore, was subject to a Federal excise
tax of 1 percent. Additionally, the Foundation's investments in certain
private equity and rzal estate partnerships give rise to unrelated business
income tax liabilities. Such tax liabilitizs for 2000 and 1999 are not
significant fo the accompanying financial staternents.

Deferred Federal excise tax arises from temporary differences between
financial and tax reporting related to investment income and the difference
between the cost basis and market value of marketable securities.

8. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management
1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Management believes
that the estimates utilized in preparing its financial staterments are
reasonable and prudent. Actual results could differ from those estimates.,

Appropriated Appropriated
for Specific for Allocation and
Grantees/Purposes Nexl Year's Budget Total Appropriated
{in Thousands)
Balance, January 1, 2000 $ 65,084 $ 260,701 3 325,785
Approved grants and program
and administrative costs 230,511 (230,511} - .
Lapses and refunds (1,115 {147} (1,262}
Expenditures for grarits and operations (197,075 - (197,075)
2001 budget - 197,000 197,000
Balance, Decernber 31, 2000 $ 97.405 $ 227,043 3 324,448
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| CONTACTING THE FOUNDATION ABOUT GRANTS |

he Rockefeller Foundation warks to enrich and sustain the lives
and livelihoods of the poor and excluded throughout the world,

The Foundation has identified four themes, or subject areas of

work—Creativity & Culture, Food Security, Health Equity, and

Working Communities. A cross-theme of Global Inclusion

supports, promotes and supplements the work of the four
themes, In addition, the Foundation funds a number of programs that are
new or exploratory in nature, Foundation programming is managed from
the Foundation's New York City headguarters, and from regional officas in
Bangkok, Thailand; Nairobi, Kenya; Harare, Zimbabwe; Mexico City; and
San Francisco. Program goals are included in the strategy section beginning
on page 4 of this report.

The Foundation is a proactive grantmaker—that is, the officers and staff
seek out oppottunities that will advance the Foundation's long-term goals,
rather than reacting to unsolicited proposals. Foundation officers receive more
than 12,000 proposals each year, 75 percent of which cannot be considerad
because their purposes fall outside the Foundation’s program guidelines.

Organizations interasted in Foundation grantmaking should send a lettar of
inquiry addressed to the director of the subject area of interest, Rockefeller
Foundation, 420 Fifth Aveniue, New York, N.Y. 10018, or, inquiries can be
sent online as follows: Creativity & Culture—creativity@rockfound.arg,
Food Security—food@rockfound.org, Health Equity—health@rockfound org,
Working Cormmunities—work@rockfound.org, or Global Inclusion—
global@rockiound.ong. An inguiry should briefly describe the project and its
purpose (no attachments, please).

It is important to note that, as a matter of policy, the Foundation does not
give or lend money for personal aid to individuals, support affempts to
fnfluence jegisiation, or, except in rare ¢asas, provide general institutional
support, fund endowments or contrfbute to building and operating funds.

ner = CARLICTA

PROGRAM GBJECTIVES (in alphabetical orden

CREATIVITY & CULTURE

Resilient and Creative Communitles: Preserving and renewing cultural
heritages te enhance the well-being of societies and aquip the poor and
excluded to relate to, and gain benefits from, the new global community.

Grantrmaking is done through Recovering and Reinventing Cultures
Through Museums, a competitive program supporting exhibitions that
broaden the definition of American art and chart the cultural contributions
of non-Western populzations. Support is 2lso given to ongoing research
initiatives on the cultural indicators of social health.

The PACT program {Partnerships Affirming Community Transformation}—
community partnerships that use the arts and humanities to bridge
difference and effect social change, is under review,

Explorations are under way to preserve and strengthen threatened tradi-
tional art farms in developing countries; to help communities recover and
interpret cultural materials, such asliterary or religious texts and oral histories;
and to examine the role that memory, history and imagination play in help-
ing communities withstand and adapt to the stresses of poverty, exclusion
and violence, These program explorations are not open to direct application.

Knowledge and Freedom in the Public Sphere: Artists and humanists,
through social critique, play 2 key role in creating democratic, inclusive
civil societies. Translating religious ideas into the language of public
discourse and brokering conversations between religious communities
can help defuse tensions that deeply touch people’s lives.

Grantraking is done through initiatives that fortify civil society through
cuftural institutions in Africa and the Muslim world, and mobilize the assets
of religions to build resdlient communities. Supgport for scholarship and
research networks is provided through a competitive program of Resident
Humanities Fellowships hosted by humanities centers in Narth and South
America. Additional ways of bringing humanities perspectives to bear on
the Foundation’s new program themes are under exploration.

Creativity and Innovation in a Global Age: The voices and visions of artists
and humanists can help us envision reality and clarify our understanding
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2 Distnbubions from split-interest trusts T e Eeem e PR et e e R oS B i e e
3 Gmvestmens® 4na temporsy 3, 937 641. 3,937,641. 0. o
l 4 Dmdends and intersst from secunties 120,099,501.]119,887,716. L S ROt Ih
5a Gross rents T e e e
b guetrnta oomecrtosy P St A Rt N e s LR A
n o o nat on A M N e R SR IO ERERT
l -g s: g‘l’;‘slﬂﬂpﬂﬂb’lﬂ 5395687965 33-\.-8'&_“’860 30"‘?‘: '::“.:‘-:.-:;T “x.:"ﬂ :-:: et =‘+°“":.-> T"’.—j:':.k«:fs‘"itmt I 1‘A
§ =330ts on line 6a D N A e T e L F e L e R e T K
21 7 Capital gain net incorma (rom Part IV, line 2) -0 L R 71,402, 858 I R O L T e M
l ©| 8 Netshort-term capttal gam e a e ”**“‘““ﬂ\i a;:;‘,’,;i:; T wf"*“ 3* Tl N/A TR A
9 income moddications o o RS O B e TR e T
10a Gross ssfes less retums Qﬂl?mﬁﬁﬂawhﬂ*"ﬁﬁﬁ ~:k%$“gm‘¢ma ww%&&?ﬁiﬁjﬁeﬁi ﬁwviﬂw
b Less Cost of goods sold B T I R B o i M S Y iy
l ¢ Gross profit or {loss) e L e § ) i
11 Other income STHT 1.6 1,310,662.] <4,766,359.b 113,560 ..F: =i, 5 * %
12 Total Add lins 1 through 11 464,208,012.390,461,856. 113,560 iy s e =,
I 13 Gompeaaton o offows, diciors, tustees, o 6,024,099. 865,743. 0. 5,158,356,
14 Other employee salaries and wages 8,177,351. 1,046,703, 0. 7,130,648.
|15 Pension pians, employes benefits 3,988,831. 310,913. 0. 3,677,918.
I €162 Legal foes STMT1c(a) 1,496,000. 241,106. 0. 1,254,891,
€| b Accounting fees STMT i.c(2 154,925, 68,950, 0. 85,975.
&1 Other professional fees STMT 1= 17,349,125.] 13,835,947. 113,560.] 2,314,189.
l gw-.m' ~ 90 o %'égg’g(—i)g. 25,163. g. 1,134,706.
e Tax TMT 4. ‘ ’ . . . 0.
% $] ﬂrggm l.e(3) 1,267,416. 227,426. 0 cboon TE T L
g% gﬁuq ?ﬁ 2,367,647. 308,287. 0.] 2,059,360.
I ravel, confarences, and mes 3,200,420, 114,102. 0.] 3,086,318.
2| 254 nating and publs 1,057,945, 19,881. 0. 1,038,064.
") TMT 1.C 5,177,321. 527,433, 0.l 4,776,302.
I sapenses Add hnes 13 through 23 55,078,364./ 17,591,660. 113,560.] 31,716,729.
25 Contnbutions, gifts, grants pais 4% 2.4, [161,879,217 .} <<i: "* W T AR s g P P11 63,391,841 .
€ |26 Total expenses and disbursements
l @ Add lines 24 ang 25 216,957,581.] 17,591,660. 113,560.195 108 570.
27 Sublract ne 26 from line 12 TN ,;?M:n,;f R Do "'*';&j,x st ;
a Excess of revenue over axpenses and ;,;:E’w;ﬁ,g:s *ﬂ;’x;s&u EAN ki
l disbursements 247,250,431 [l AP0y
b Net Investment intOMe ¢ nogative, snter -0} Syt Lt AOrf 372 B70, l 9 6.
¢ Adjusted net Income g1 negative, entes ) £47 g AR R Y B “:”s::‘?-.‘n ST e 3 R
mu-aléi For Paperwark Reduction Act Notice, tae the Instructlons 1 Form 999-PF (2000
o1-10-1
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Form 990-PF (2000} THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-1659629 Page 2
. Aftached schecies 2nd amounts kn the descripion Baginning of year End of year
Balance Sheets oohamn shouid b dor enc-of ear smounts oy (a) Book Valus (b) Baok Value (¢} Fair Market Valug
1 Cash - non-interest-bearing 2,999,946. 2,188,503. 2,188,503.
2 Savings and lemporary cash nvestments S TT\T 1. D 68,666,162, 41,461, 368. 33 422 528.
3 Accounts receivable P> 570,538.15¢ ;ﬂ”3°ﬂ‘w":"‘5 s e TN WOt I
Less allowance for doubtul accounts P 631,673. 570,538. 570 538 .
4 Pladges recervable P ne 1R AET L i S ‘“*':Meﬁ 2} LT Do e
Less allowance for doubttul accounts P
5 Grantls recevable
6 Recervables dus from officers, directors, trustees, and other
disqualrfied persons # |.E 4,855, 4,993. 4,893,
7 Ovesooes andars ecchase > DB e e e e R T e e i)
Less allowance for doubtful accounts P
8 Inventones for sale or use
§ 9 Prepald expenses and deferred charges 2,617,063, 2,743,681. 2,743,681,
& {10a Investments - U'S and state govemment obligations STMT [0 | 405,499,385.| 436,905,522.] 445,862,941.
b Investments - corporate stock STMT .0 1819910907.]1 1956251591.] 2007802343.
4 |nvﬂslmeﬂts-comu[atabonds *’{@f STMT _‘OD 495 542 051- 527 781 745- 508 505 129-
1M mesments and butdogs. adepiprentbass. P (816,903 . s ‘:M; ;1”; s *’:f%’ﬁﬁim TR S R
Less: accumuizied deprecizion » 316,713. 1,398,608. 1, 500 190, 1,500,190.
12  Investments - mortgage loans
13 Investments - other STMT |.0 L 358,866,824.] 441,655,792.| 520,170, 533.
14 Land, buldings, and equipment basts P> 1,580,333. f‘:‘:;?:z?;ﬁ 3%5”;;3‘ Saan &ﬂqxiﬁ%ﬁﬁ B e A T T W g e L
Less accumutated cegreciation > 5,820,904, 24,030, 621. 25,759,429.] 39,069, 616.
15 Other assets (describe™ OTHER ASSETS & \.E | 14,423,331. 10,964,285. 10,964,285.
16 _Total assets {to bs completed by ait filers)_ 3194591426.) 3447787637. 3572805280
17 Accounts payable and accrued axpenses 5,502,012, 12,045,478.}" L
18  Granls payabla 65,083,762.] 97,404,976.1 .
2 (19 Defered revenue S
Z |20 Lowns fom officers, dirmcton, trustons, and cther disquaiffied persons REALN
3 [21 Mortgages and other notes payable ;ﬁ‘i 4 :*;“f;;fgiﬁﬁ?f
=t |22 Other habiiies (descnbe P> BONDS PAYABLE #*\.F ) 26 7 765 7 629. 26 t 167 7 943. ij'?":?og:; o :;?:,m«, %
|23 Total llabiitles (add Imes 17 through 22) 97,351,403.] 135,618,397. +¥ e
Organizations that foliow SFAS 117, theck here > [X]
® snd complete lines 24 through 26 and lines 30 and 31 R
8|24 unrestncted 3097240023.] 3312169240.} .
% 25 Temporanly restncted &
m |26 Permanently restncted
S| Organizations that do not foliow SFAS 117, checknere P ()
n and complete lines 27 through H
3 271 Caprtal stock, trust pnncipal, or current funds
§ 2B Paid-n or capttal surplus, or lznd, bidg . and equipment tund
< 29 Retained samings, accumulated Incoma, endowment, or other funds
;_E 30 Total net assets or fund balances 3097240023.] 3312169240.
__|31_Total liabiiitles and nat assets/fund balances 3194591426, 3447787637.

- Analysis of Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances

1 Tofal net assets or fund balances at beginning of year - Part |1, celumn (a), ine 30

{must zgree with end-of-year figure reposted on prior year's ratum)
Enter amount from Part |, line 27a
Other increases not includad in ine 2 {lemze) P

3097240023.

247,250,431.

0.

Add ines 1,2,and 3

Decreases not included in e 2 (lemeze) ™ GRANTS APPROVED IN EXCESS OF PAID

3344490454.

32,321,214,

h N WM

Total net assets or fund balances at end of year (line 4 manus line 5) - Part II, column (b), Iine 30

o |on |8 o [N |=t

3312169240.

023511
011601
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|

Form $90-PF (2000} THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-1659629 Page 3
['Part v ] Capital Gains and Losses for Tax on Investment Income
(2) List and descnibe the king{s) of property sold (e g , real estata, (h!,"fDF‘,":'J fgﬁa‘;‘fd (? Date acquired (d) Date sold
2-story back warehouse or commen stock, 200 shs MLE Co ) 0 - Donation mo , day,yr) (mo, day, yr)

12 SEE ATTACHMENT # 1.A

b

¢

d

[}

1) Depreciation allowed (g} Cost or other basis {h) Gam or (loss)
{e) Gross salés price “ {or allowable) plus expense of sale (e} plus {f) minus (g}

) 271,402,858.

b

t

d

8

Complete only tor assets showing gain i column (h) and owned by the foundation gn 12/31/%69 (1} Gains (Col (h) gain minus
Ad %) Ex t col col (k), but not less than -0-) or
(1FMV as of 12/31/69 “?,5 0{",5%1323'5 ‘,,{,,,,3;75{3, f,c'ang,') Losses (from col (h))
271,402,858.

@ | | (O o0

2 Capital gain net income or {net capital |

055}

if gain, also enter in Part |, line 8, column {c)

if (loss), enter <0-1n Part ), line 8

{ If gain, also enter in Part | line 7 }
If (loss), enter <0-n Part | line 7

3 Net short-term capital gain or (loss} as defined in sections 1222(5) and {6)

271,402,858,

M,

271,402,858.

[ Part ¥ ] Qualification Under Section 4940(a) for Reduced Tax on Net Investment Income

(For optional use by domestic private foundations subject to the section 4940(a) tax on net investment incoms )

if section 4940(d){2) apples, laave this part blank

Was the organization liablg for the section 4942 tax on the distnbutable amount of any year in the base panod?
If “Yes * the organrzation does not quafdy under section 4940(s) Do not complete this part

|:| Yos @ No

1 Enter the appropnate amount in each column for each year, see instructions betore making any entries

(2) ¢ (d)
Calendar yfaa,sfo??;'f 3eyaerat;§glnmnq in} Adjusted quamg:r):g distributions Net valus of nonc(ha)nmbla-use assets {col (%')s E,'}v".%ﬁﬁ“b;“ﬂ.‘,’. (ch
1999 180,042,518. 3,375,268,014. .0533417
1998 146,411,013. 3,136,815,412. .0466750
1997 129,801,741. 2,875,580,600. .0451393
1996 114,528,265, 2,498,454,797. .0458396
1995 128,994,343. 2,227,384,466. .0579129
2 Total ot ine 1, coturnn {d) 2 .2489085
3 Average distribution ratio for the 5-yaar base penod - drvide the total on lne 2 by 5 or by the number of years
the foundation has been tn existence if [ess than 5 years 3 .0497817

4 Enler the nel value of nonchantable-use assets for 2000 from Part X, lne 5

5 Multiply ine 4 by lina 3

6 Enter 1% of net tnvestment tncome (1% of Part [, Lne 27b)

T Addlnas5and 6

8 Enter quatifying distnbutions from Part XII, line 4

H# tine 815 equal to or graater than line 7, check the box In Part VI, bne 1b, and completa that part using a 1% lax rate

Sae the Part VI mstruchions

4 | 3,636,520,887.

5 181,032,192.
] 3,728,702.
7 184,760,894.

8 196,498,5995.

23521
o1-10-01
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Form 990-PF {2000) THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-1659629  Paged
[P_art Vi[ Excise Tax Based on Investment Income (Section 4940(a), 4340(b), 4940(e}, or 4948 - see Instructions)
1a Exempt operating foundabions descnbed in section 4940(d){2), check hare P [:] and enter "N/A® on line 1 SO R Lo .
Date of ruling latter (attach copy of ruling letter If nacessary-sea Instructions) e e
b Domastic organrzations that mest the section 4940(e) requiremants in Part V, check hera P> B] and enter 1% 1 3,728,702,
of Part 1, line 27b EN e T e
¢ All other domestic organlizations enter 2% of ine 27b Exempt toreign organizations enter 4% of Part |, lins 12, col {b} M 1 U e
2 Tax under section 511 (domestic section 4947({a){1) trusts and taxable foundations only Others enter <0-) 2 _ 0.
3 Addlines 1and 2 3 3,728,702.
4 Sublitle A {Incomne} tax {domastic section 4947(a)(1) trusts and taxable foundations only Othars enter -0-) 4 0.
5 Taxbased on investment income Subtract kne 4 fram Line 3 Uf zero or less, enter -0- 9 3 ) 728 r 702.
6 Credts/Payments B . -
a 2000 eshmated tax payments and 1999 overpayment credited to 2000 62 4,440,578.
b Exempl foreign orgamizations - tax withheld at source 6b e
¢ Tax paid with application for extension of time to file (Form 8868) bec e o -
d Backup withhalding erronegusly withhald 6d I R PN
7 Total credits and payments Add lines 6a through 6d 7 4,440,578,
8 Enter any penalty tor underpayment of estimated tax Check here D i Form 2220 ts attached 8
9 Tax due Hthe total of ines 5 and 8 1s mora than line 7, enter amount owad | 9
10 Overpayment If ine 7 15 mora than the total of ines 5 and 8, enter the amount overpaid > |10 711,876.
11 _Ente the amount of ine 10 to ba Cradited to 2001 estimated tax p- 711,876 l Refunded B | 19 0.
[Part VII-A | Statements Regarding Activities
1a Ouning the tax year, did the organizaton atterapt to influgnce any national, state, or local legisiation or did it participata or intervens in Yes| No
any political campaign? 12 X
b Did it spend more than $100 dunng the year (erther directly or indirectly) for political purposes (ssa instructions for defintion)? 1b X
If the answer 1s "Yes" to 1a or 1b, attach a dstaied descnption of the actvities and copires of any matenals published or R an
distributed by the organization in connaction with the activities .1 .
_ & Did the organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? 1t X
d Enter the amount (it any) of tax on political expendrtures {sectton 4955) imposed dunng the year R Rt
(1) On the organization > § 0. (2) Onthe organization managers P § 0. .
e Enter the reimbursement (if any) paid by the orgamzation dunng thae year for political expenditure tax imposed on the organization
managers B> § 0.
2 Has the organization engaged in any acltivities that have not previousty been reported to the IRS? 2 X

i “Yes," attach a detalled description of the activities
3 Has the organization made any changes, not previously reported to the IRS, m its goveming tnstrument, articles of incorporation, or

bylaws, or other similar instruments? If “Yes, " attach a conformed copy of the changes H# |.F (. N 3 X

4a Did the organization have unrelated business gross tncome of $1,000 or more dunng the year? alX

b If*Yes," has it filed a tax return on Form 990-T for this year? a | X
S Was there a iquidation, termination, dissolution, or substantial contractton dunng the year? 5 X

If “Yes," atiach the statement required by General Instruction T - ‘
6 Are the requirements of section 508(e) (relating to sections 4941 through 4945) satisfied eithar

® By language in the goveming instrument, or

® By state legislabion that eftectively amends the governing mstrument so that no mandatory direchions that conflict with the state law

rémain tn the goverming instrument? ] X
7 Dud the organization hava at least $5,000 in assets at any time dunng the year? 7 X
If "Yes,” compiete Part ll, col (c), and Part XV " 1.
8a Enter the states to which the foundation reports or with which i 1s registered {see nstructions) P R
NEW YORK, CALIFORNIA E .
b I the answar 1S “Yes® to lins 7, has the organzation furnished 2 copy of Form 990-PF to tha Attomay General (or destgnats) - b T
of each state as required by General Instruction G? Jf "No," attach explanation |_8b X
9 s the orpanization claiming status as a pnivate operating toundation within the meaning of section 4942(1}(3) or 4942(1}{5) for calendar g e
year 2000 o7 taxable year beginntng in 2000 (see instructions for Part XIV)? {f “Yes,* compiete Part XiV 9 X
10 Did any persons becoms sebstantial contnbutors dunng the tax year? 10 X
If "Yes" attach a schedule isting their names and addresses
11 Did the organization comply with the public inspection requirements for its annual returns and exemption apphcation? 1 X
12 Thebooksaremncareot » THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION Telephone no »212-869-8500
Locatedat » 420 FIFTH AVENUE, NEW YORK, NY ZiIP+4 »10018-2702
13 Section 4947{a)}{1) nonexampt charitable trusts filing Form 990-PF in heu of Form 1041 - Chack here » |:]
and enter the amount of tax-sxempl Interast recervad or accrued dunng the year »| 13| N/A
Form 990-PF poogy
IR 4

-

16171214 353024 13-1659629 2000.04021 THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-16591




Form 930-PF (2000} THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-1659629 Page §

| Part VII-B | Statements Regarding Activities for Which Form 4720 May Be Required

File Form 4720 f any itemn 18 checked in the "Yes® column, unless an exception applies.
1a Dunng the year did the erganization (esther directly or mdirectly)

(1) Engage in the sale or éxchange, or leasing of property with a disqualdied person? l___l ves (X No
{2) Borrow money from, lend money to, of otherwise extend credit to {or accept it from)

a disqualified person? D Yos @ No
(3) Furmish goods, services, or facilities to (or accapt them from) a disqualtfied psrson? sl 3 Yas E] No

{4) Pay compensation to, or pay or reimburse the expenses of, a disqualified person? ST LD X ves I o
{5) Tsansfer any ncoms or assets 1o a disqualfied parson (or make any of eithar available

tor the benefit or use of a disqualified persen)? D Yes IE No
(6) Agres o pay monay or property to a government official? (Exceptlon Check "No"

if the organization agreed Lo make a grant to or lo employ the official tor a panod after

termination of govarnmant service, if tarminating within 80 days ) [ ves [X] o

b It the answer Is "Yes"to 1a(1}-{6), d:d any of the acis fau to qualdy under the exceptions dascnbed in Regulations

section 53 4941(d)-3 or in a current notice regarding disaster assistance (sea page 20 of the instructions)?

Organizations retying on a curren! notice ragarding disaster assistance check hers » I__—|

¢ Oud the organization angage 1n a pnor year In any of the acts descnbed in 1a, other than excepted acts, that were not corrscted

before the first day of the tax year beginning in 20002
2 Taxes on failure to distnbute income (saction 4942) {does not apply for years the organization was a private operating foundatioh

defined in sachion 4942(1)(3) or 4942(j)(5))

a At the end of tax ysar 2000, did tha organfzation have any undistnbuted incoma (lines 6d and 6e, Part X111} for tax year(s) beginning
betors 2000” I ves XD Na
If “Yes." list the years P> . . .

b Are there any years histed in 2a for which the organtzation 1s ngl apphying the provisions of section 4342(a)(2) (relating to incorrect
valuabon of assets) to the year's undistnbuted incoms? (If applying section 4842(a){2) to all years histed, answar "No" and attach

statement - sée INstructions ) N/A
¢ It the provisions of section 4942(a}(2) are bemng apphed to any of the years listed in 2a, Iist the years here
> . . .
3a Ond the organization hotd more than a3 2% direct or indirect intesest in any business enterpnse at any time
durning the year? [ ves (X] o

b M "Yes," did t have excess business holdings In 2000 as a result of (1) any purchase by the organization or disqualified persons after
May 26, 1969, (2) the lapse of the 5-year period (or longer penod approved by the Commissionar under section 4943(c}{7)) to dispose
of holdings acquired by gift or baguest, or (3) the lapse of the 10-, 15-, or 20~year first phase holding penod? (Use Schedule C,
Form 4720, to determine if the organtzation had excess business holdings In 2000 ) N / A
4z Did the organization nvest dunng the year 2ny amount in a2 manner that would jeopardize nts chantable purposes?
b Did the orgamzation make any investment in a prior ysar (but after December 31, 1969} that could jeopardize its chantable purpose that
fhad not been removed from feopardy before the first day of the tax year baginning in 20007 .
5a Dunng the year did the organizalion pay or Incur any amount to

(v} Carry on propaganda, or otherwise attempt to influgnce legisiation (saction 4945(e))? l:] Yes [KI No
{2} Infizence the outcome of any specific public elaction (sees section 4955}, or to carry on, directty or indirectly,

any voter ragistration drve? [ ves LX1 No
(3} Provide a grant to an Indmdual! for trava), study, or other similar purposaes®? IXI Yes L__| No
(4) Prowide a grant to an organzzation, other than a chamtable, etc , grganization descnbed i section

509(a)(1), (2), or (3), or section 4940(d)(2)? X ves [ no
(5} Prowide for any purpose other than religious, charitable, scientific, iterary, or educational purposes, or for

the prevention of cruelty to children or ammals? [:l Yes [E No

b 1 any answer is "Yas" to 5a(1)-(5} did any of the transactions fall to qualify under the exceptions descnbed in Regulations
section 53 4345 orin a current notice regarding disaster assistance (see instructions)?

Organizations relying on a current notice regarding disaster assistance check here > E]

¢ Itthe answar 15 "Yes” to question 5a(4), does the organrzation claim exemption from the tax because it maintained
expenditure rasponsibilty for the grant? See siAY 2, A C‘) X ves (I No
if “Yas, " attach the statement required by Regulations section 53 4945-5(d)
6a Did the organization, durmg the year, recetve any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on
a personal benefit contract? |:1 Yas II] No
b Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? N/A
if you answered "Yas" to 6b, also file Form 8870

: . iYes| No

s z

11 X

¢ X

E)
"

2b

3b )
4a X

4b

-«
P

sb | X

.
-

n

2841
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Form $30-PF {2000) THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-1659629 Page 6
Lnr:grénoarg?: c?grgut Officers, Directors, Trustees, Foundation Managers, Highly Paid Employees,
1 List all officers, directors, trustees, foundation managers and their compensation
Contributions
(@) Name and address hg?.l'r;rm:r' :vr;gi?‘é%?o :d (c) (leorrl‘;?epgfgtmn mﬁw ag:!)En .agl?'laer
0 position antar -0-) compensaton allowances
SEE ATTACHMENT 1. C (1)
2 Compensation of five highest- paid employees (other than those includad on line 1} If none, enter "NONE *
mMbubons o
{a) Name and address of each employae paid more than $50,000 (:eﬁfaaﬁedrp?g:ﬁ:e {c) Compensation ‘ "'E:gf" 2 5&%}’;&?&%
FERNANDO MOLA DAVIS MANAGER
420 FIFTH AVENUE, NEW YORK, NY 10018 {40 HOURS/WEEK 147,790.] 37,569. 0.
JACQUELINE NOVOGRATZ MANAGER
420 FIFTH AVENUE, NEW YORK, NY 10018 40 HOURS/WEEK 126,228.| 44,431. 0.
CHUN LAI SR. PORTFOLIO MANAGER
420 FIFTH AVENUE, NEW YORK, NY 10018 [40 HOURS/WEEK 114,897.] 38,930. 0.
JESSE P. KING MANAGER
420 FIFTH AVENUE, NEW YORK, NY 10018 40 HOURS/WEEK 109,949.| 44,738. 0.
JOHN O’ TOOLE R. SCIENTIST
C/0 ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION THAILAND (40 HOURS/WEEK 109,395.| 29,617.; 16,533.
Total number of other smployess paid over $50,000 > 50
3 _Fwve highest- paid independent contractors for professicnal sennces If none, enter "NONE *
(a) Name and address of each person paid more than $50,000 {b} Type of senice {c) Compensation
STATE STREET BANK
PO BOX 1389, BOSTON MA 02104-1389 CUSTODIAL SERVICES 1710989.
ARK ASSET MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT
CHURCH STREET STATION, PO BOX 6315 NEW YORK MANAGEMENT 1700237.
PATTERSON, BELKNAP,WEBB & TYLER
1133 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, NEW YORK,NY 10036LEGAL SERVICES 1264754.
WHIPPOORWILL ASSOCIATES, INC INVESTMENT
11 MARINE AVENUE, WHITE PLAINS, NY 10606 MANAGEMENT 775,931.
SANFORD C. BERSTEIN & CO., INC INVESTMENT
ONE N. LEXINGTON AVENUE WHITE PLAINS, NY 1060 1MANAGEMENT 775,685,
Total numbar of athers racaving over $50,000 for profassional sarvicas > 59
| Part IX-A] Summary of Direct Chantable Activities
List the foundation's four largest direct chantable activities during tha tax year Includae relevant statistical information such as the
number ot organizations and other benafictanias served, confarences convenad, research papers produced, et Expenses

1 SEE ATTACHED #1.C (4)

023551
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l Form 95G-PF {2000) THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-1659629 Page 7
{Paft 1X-B] Summary of Program-Related Investments
Descnba the two largest program-related investments made by the foundation dunng the tax year on lines 1 and 2 Amount
II 1N/A
i -
l All other prograrmn-related investments See instructions
3
I Minimum Investment Retum (all domestic foundations must complete this part Forelgn foundations, ses instructions )
1 Fair market vatue of assets not used {or held for use) diractly in cariying out chamabls, etc , purposes "
l a Average monthly fair market value of securties 13 3688099083.
b Average of monthly cash balances 1b 2,300,105,
¢ Fair markat valus of all other assets Sec #/.C (3) 1c 1,500,180.
l d Total (2dd lmes 1, b, and c) 1d 3691899378,
e Reduction claimed for blockage or other factors reported on lines 1a and
ic (attach detailed sxplanation) L1s | 0.
2 Acquistion indebtedness applicable to tine 1 assets 2 0.
' 3 Sublract hne 2 from ling 1d 3 3691899378.
& Cash deemed held for chartable actviies Enter 1 1/2% of line 3 {tor greatar arount, see instructions) 4 55,378,491.
5 Net value of nontharitablg-use assets Subtract ling 4 from e 3 Enter here and on Part V, ling 4 i 3636520887.
l 6 Minlmum tnvestment return Enter 5% of ne 5 s | 181,826,044.
Distnbutable Amount isee instructions) (Section 4342(1}(3} and ())(5) private operating foundations and certain
foreign orgamizations check here |:l and do not complete this part )
1 Mimmum mvestment rgturn tram Par X, ine § 1]1181,826,044.
l 22 Tax on investment ncome for 2000 from Part Vi, ling 5 2a 3,728,702.1
b incoms tax for 2000 (This does not include the tax from Part VI ) 2b 270,278.F |
¢ Add lnes 2a and 20 2t 3,998,980.
l 3 Distnbutable amount before adjustments Subtract ling 2c from line 1 s | 177,827,064,
42 Recoveries of amounts treated as qualifying distabutions Sce # 2.A 4a 5,098,084,
b income distnbutions from section 4947(a)(2) trusts 4 0.}~
l ¢ Add hnes 4a and 4b 4c 5,098,08B4.
5 Add lines 3 and 4c 5 | 182,925,148.
6 Deduction from distnbutable amount (see Instructions) 8 0.
l 7  Distributable amount as adjusted Subtract line 6 from lne 5 Enter hera and on Part XII, lina 1 7| 182,925,148,
Qualifying Distributions (see instructions)
1 Amounis pad (including administrative expenses) to accomplish chantable etc , purposes =
l a Expanses, contrbutions, gifts, etc - total from Part |, column {d), ne 26 1: | 195,108,570.
b Program-related investments - total of lines 1-3 of Part IX-B 1b 0.
2 Amounls paid to acquire assets used {or held for use) direclly In carrying out chantable, etc , purposas 4 1.C La) 2 1 I 390 { 029.
I 3 Amounts set aside for specific charitable projects that satisty the -
a Sustability test (prior IRS approval required) Ja
b Cash distnbution test (attach the required schedute} 3
4 Qualitying distributlons Add lnes 1a through 3b Enter here and on Part V, ing 8, and Part XIIl, ine 4 a | 196,498,599,
I 5 Organizations that qualify under section 4940(e) tor the reducad rate of tax on nst investment
incorne Enter 1% ot Part | ling 27 5 3,728,702,
6 AdJusted qualiying distributlons Subtract kne 5 from lne 4 6 | 192,769,897,
I Note The amount on line 6 will be usad in Part V, column (b), in subsequent years when calculating whether the foundation qualifies for the section
4940fe) reduction of tax in those years
Form 990-PF roomy
l it 7
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Form 930-PF (2000) THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-1659629  Pages
Undistributed Income (see Instructions)

(a) (b) (c) (8)
Corpus Years prior to 1999 1999 2000
1 Distributable amount : . I -~ T

for 2000 trom Part X1, ing 7 S . TR N T .71 182,925,148,

2 Undistnbuted incoma H mny 3 of the end of 1999 PR S I y o ate T T 3 ~
& Enter amount tor 1993 enly . » AT ; 0. - ! e
bTowtorpnoryears 19 _ 19 18 _ .- 0.]: i 4 L .

3  Excesy distrivutions camyover, ilany to 2000 = T - . . ' . AR SO SR S . -
2 From 1995 20,243,917 0 e s 4 e
b From 1996 RV R . -
¢ From 1997 . . B
d From 1998 : o : - . : .
@ From 1999 12,506,224.}. . T C . R .

{ Total of ines 3a through e 32,750,141. i : e
4 Qualitying distnbutions tor 2000 from Lot . . ) N N I -

PartXil ine 4 »$196,498,599. . ’ ‘ vt

a Applied to 1999, but not more than tine 2a ’ 0.l ..

b Applied to undistnbuted income of prior . . .

years (Election required - se# instructions) : Y- 0. - - o
t Treatad as distnbutions out of corpus .
(Election required - see instruchions) 0. ... i L -

d Applied to 2000 distributable amount - 182,925,148.

e Remaintng amount distnbuled out of corpus 13,573,45] .} . . - :
§ Excess distribubons carryover apphod to 2000 0 . i : ) - - 0 .

{it an amount lprws in column (d), the same amount . . . s -4 - . -
must be shown In column (&) } - - " . . . -

. ) Ll . s .

6 Enter the nel total of each column as ’ C ‘ ' ¢

Indicated below T L I L LA e

8 Corpus Aaa lines 31, 4c, and 4e. Subtract line 3 46,323,592, X i LI S RS

b Prior years' undistnbuted incoma Subtract LT - e, R CoA T .
line 4b from line 2b : - 0. R o -

¢ Enter the amount of pnor years AT - . : »
undistributed tncome tor which a notice ot ’ :
daficiency has baen i1ssued, or on which N . N
the section 4942(a) tax has been praviously * - ) - - L
assessed 0.

d Subtract line 6c from line 6b Taxadle - T, : L Y
amount - see mstructions 0. T - - "
e Undistnbuted income tor 1939 Subtract line A i . v - -
datromling 2a Taxable amount - see Instr N 0. .
1 Undistnbuted income for 2000 Sublract . sl T e s -
lines 4d and 5 from ling 1 This amount must - s
be distributed m 2001 oo L o 0.
7 Amounts treated as distnbutions out of ’
corpus to satisty raquirements imposed by . - - 7
saction 170(b){1)(E) or 4942{g}(3) 0.
B Excess distnbutions carryover from 1995 . - - A oL
nat applisd on ing 5 or ling 7 20,243,917. . T .
9 Excess distributions carryaver to 2001 Sy, - T T T A
Subtract ines 7 and B trom ting 62 26,079,675. Y. i i .
10 Analysis of ine 9 v v T N T v e .
a Excess from 1996 Lo - ST " o i
b Excess from 1997 PO S A T o S =
¢ Excess from 1998 - : o : . . . )
dExcessfrom1989 [12,506,224.F - . N . L
gExcessfrom2000  113,573,451.

aoLe™

.

Form 990-PF 2000y
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Form 990-PF (2000} THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-1659629 Paga 9
| Part x}v] Privata Opergting Foundatlons {see Instructions and Part VII-A, question 9) N/A
1 a Itthe foundation has recerved a ruling or determination letter that it s a private operating
foundation, and the ruling 1s ettective tor 2000 entar the date of the ruling »
b Check box to indicate whathar the organrzation is a private oparating foundation descnbed in section D 4942(11(3) or ] 4942{}(5)
2 a Enter the Iesser of the adjusted net Tax year Prior 3 years
inceme from Part | or the minimum {a) 2000 {b) 1993 (c) 1998 (d) 1997 (8) Total
mvestmant relumn trom Part X for
sach year listed
b 85% of ine 2a
¢ Qualtying distrbutions trom Part X1,
Iine 4 for each year listed
d Amgunts included in fine 2¢ not
used directly for active conduct of
exampt activities
e Qualitying distnbutions made directly
for actve conduct of exempt activities
Subtract ine 2d from ine 2c
3 Complete 3a,b, orc forthe
altematrve test ralied upon A/ / A
4 “Assels” alternative test - enter
(1) Valua of all assets
(2) Value of assets qualrying
under section 4942(1){3}B)()
b "Endowment’ aftarnative test -
Enter 2/3 ot mntmum investment
retum shown in Part X, line 6 for
sach year listad
t "Support’ aitemative tast - enter

(1) Totat support other than gross
investment mcome (intarest,
dvidends rants, paymants on
secunties toans (section
512{a)(5)) or royaltes}

Support from general public
and 5 or more exemp!
organizations as proviged in
section 4342{))(3)(8)(m}

{3} Largest amount of support trom
an exempt organzation

{4) Gross investment income
l Pant XV j Supptementary Information (Complate this part only il the organlzation had $5,000 or more In assets at any tima during he year-see page 26 of

the Instructlons )
1 Intormation Regarding Foundation Managers

a List any managers of the foundation whe have contnbuted more than 2% of the total contributions recerved by the foundation betore the close of any tax
year {but only it they have contnbutad more than $5,000) (Ses section 507{d)(2) }

NONE

b List any mana?ers of tha foundation who own 10% or more of the stock of a corparation (or an equally large portion of the ownership of a partnership or
other entrty) of which the foundation has a 10% or graater interest

NONE
2 Informatlon Regarding Contribution, Grant, Gifi, Loan, Scholarshlp, etc , Programs

Check here I [:i of the organrzation only makes contrbutions to preselected chantable organizations and doas not accept unsolicried requests for funds if
the organization makes giits, grants, etc , to indviduals or organizations under other condtions, complete tems 2a, b, ¢, and d

(2

e

2 The name address, and telephona number of the person to whom apphcalions should be addressed
SEE ATTACHMENT #4

b The torm in which applications should be submitted and nformation and matenals they should include
SEE ATTACHMENT #4

¢ Any submussion deadlines
SEE ATTACHMENT #4

d Any restrictions or imitations on awards, such as by geographical areas, chantable flalds, kinds of insttutions, or other factors
SEE ATTACHMENT #4

023581/01-10-01 9 Fom 980-PF ooy
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Form 980-PF (2000) THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATIQON 13-1659629 Paget0 I
ma_rt Xy ] Supplemantary Information (continued)
3 Grants and Contrlbutions Patd During the Year or Approved for Futura Paymant
o SRR | e | remogmo | ]
Name and address (home or bustness) :Pguggtgnﬁla?goﬁr?g&%rr fw:fm
i Paid dunng the year I
SEE ATTACHMENT #2.A 163391841.
Total > 32 i163391841.
b Approved for future payment
SEE ATTACHMENT #2.A 97404976. l
Total > a3 | 97404976, l
Farm 990-PF 2000
85501 10 .
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l Form 990-PF (2000} THE ROCKEFELLER FQUNDATION 13-1659629  page 11
m Analysls of Intome-Progucing Activitles
Enter gross amounts untess olherwise indicated Unrelated business income Excluded by section 512, 513, or 514 (e
5 (a) (v) 29, (4) Related or exsmpt
1 Program service revenus ucsslagss Amount Sion Amount tunction income
a PHILANTHROPY WKSHOP. INC 113,560.
b
c
d
e

f
g Fees and contracts from govemment agencies

2 Membarship dues and assessments

3 Interest on savings and tempaorary cash

Investments 14 3,937,641,

4 Dividends and Interest from secunties 14/ 119,980,549,
§ Net rantat income or (loss) from real estate . "

2 Dabt-financed property

b Not debt-financed propery

6 Net rental income or (loss) from personal
property

7 Other investment income

8 Gan or {loss) from sales of assats other

than inventory 900000 5,867,886.] 18 333,111,274, 0.

9 Net income or {loss) from special events

10 Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory

11 Other revenue

a SEE ATT 1.B{SEC.LENDING) 14 726,531.

b SEE ATT 1.B(PRI INTEREST 14 470,571.

[

d

]
12 Subtotal Add cotumns (b}, (d), and (e) 5,867,886. ‘| 458,226,566, 113,560.
13 Total Add ne 12, cotumns (b}, (d), and {8} »13 464,208,012.

{See worksheet in ine 13 instructions to verdy calculations )

Part XVI-B Relationship of Activities to the Accamplishment af Exempt Purposes

Ling No Explain betow how each activity for which income 1s reported in column (8} of Par{ XVI-A contnbuted importantly to the accomplishment ot
\ 4 the organization’s exempt purposes {other than by providing funds tor such purposes)

1A THE PHILANTHROPY WORKSHOP’'S MISSION IS TO CREATE A CORE OF COMMITTED

PHILANTHROPISTS AND PROVIDE THEM WITH THE SKILLS, FRAMEWORK AND

EXPERIENCE TO CONFRONT SIGNIFICANT SOCIAL ISSUES OF OUR TIME.

THEREFORE, THESE WORKSHOPS ARE A MEANS BY WHICH THE FOUNDATION

CONTRIBUTED TO THE ACCOMPLISHMENT OF OUR EXEMPT PURPOSE OF ADVANCING

THE WELL BEING OF PEOPLE THROUGHOUT THE WORLD.

01 4001 11 Form 990-PF 2000y
6171214 353024 13-1659629 2000.04021 THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-16591
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Form 990-PF (2000) THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13-1659629  page12

Part XVIl | intarmatlon Regarding Transfers To and Transactions and Relationships With Noncharltable

Exempt Organizations

1

Did the organtzation directly or indirectly engage t any of the following with any other organization descnbed in section 501(c) of _{Yas| No
the Coda (other than saction 501{c}(3) organizations) or In section 527, relating to polihical organtzations? N I
2 Transfers from the reparting organization to a nonchartable exempt crganization of . v e
(1) Cash 1aiy| X
{2} Other assels 1a(2) X
b Cther Transactions ~ e m: -
(1) Sales of assets to a nonchantabls exempt organization 1b{1) X
{2) Purchases of assets from a nonchamtable exempt arganization 18{2) X
(3) Rentat of facilities, equipment or other assets 10{3) X
(4) Reimbursement arrangemants 1b{4) X
(5) Loans or ioan guarantees 10(5) X
(6) Parlormance ot services or membership or fundraising solicitations 1b{§) X
¢ Shanng of facilities, equipment, matling lists, other assats, of paid emptoyees 1¢ X

d M the answer to any of the above I1s "Yes,” complete the following schadule Column (b} should always show the fair market value of tha goods, ather assats,
or sarvices given by the reporting organization If the organization recerved less than fair market valus In any transaction or shanng arrangement, show in

column (d) the value of the goods, other assets, or services recerved
{a) Ling no {b) Amount involved {c) Nams of nonchartable exempt organization {1) Descnption of transters, transactions, and shanng arrangements

22 Is the organization directly or indirectly affitiated with, or related to, one or more tax-exempt organizations descnbed

in section 501(c) of the Coda (other than section 501(¢c}{3)) or in section 5277 LTL] Yes |:I No
b_tf "Yes,"completa the following schedula
(a} Name of organmzation {b} Type of organization {c) Descnption of relatignship
PVHC 501 C (2) SOLE SHAREHOLDER

Under penaities of perury, ] deciane thsl | have axamined this retum including accompanying schedules and siatemants and to the beat of my knowiedge and bellet 1t 13 true comect,

and complate D /'-, P [other than or fiductary) 13 based on &li information ofwhu reparer has any knowledge
ﬂ %Z;% A | /A;y'v 2 COMPTROLLER
/

H Signature of officer or tru fate/ Title
i o | Preparer's } Dats Epﬁ_ck ] Proparers SSN or PTIN
b4 ‘Ef signaturs employed » [
K ao., Fum s name (of yours EIN P
&“3” if seit-employed)
1doress. ang ZIP code Phone no P
Form 990-PF [#ve e ]
ST 12
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fem 3308 Application for Extension of Time To File an

(December 2000} Exempt Organization Return OMB No 1545-1709

Department of the Treasury

bnternal Revenue Senice > File a separate apphcation for each return

e {f you are filing for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Part land check this box >
# If you are filing for anAdditional (pot automatic) 3-Month Extension, complete only Part 1{on page 2 of tms form)
Note Do not complete Part If uniess you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previousk filed
Form 8868

Automatic 3-Month Extension of Time—Only submi onginal (no copies needed)
Note Form 990-T corporations requesting an automatic 6-month extension—check this box and complete Part | onfy  _ » O

All other corporations {including Form 990-C filers} must use Form 7004 to request an extension of tune to file income tax
returns Partnerships REMICs and lrusts must use Form 8736 to request an extension of time o file Form 1065, 1066, or 1047

Type or Name of Exempt Orgaruzauon Employer identificabon number
prmt THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13: 1659629

File by the Number sueel, and room or sule no H a PO box see instrucuons

e o™ | 420 FIFTH AVENUE

:ﬁ;‘;&lm Cuty town or posi ofiice stale and ZIP code For a foreign address see mslructions

NEW YORK, NY 10018-2702

Check type of return to be filed(file a separate application for each returny”

0 Form 990 [J Form 990-T (corporation) (] Form 4720

0 Form 990-BL [ Form 990-T (sec 401(a} or 408(a) trust) [J Form 5227

£ Form 990-EZ ] Form 890-T {trust other than above) [J Form 6069

¥ _Form 990 PF 0 Form 1041-A (] Form 8870

¢ |f the orgamization does not have an office or place of business 1 the United States check this box » I
& If this i1s for a Group Return, enter the organization s four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN)____ Ifthis 1S

for the whole group, check this box ® [] I it 1s for part of the group, check this box®™ [] and attach a hst with the
names_and EINs of all members the extension will cover
1 | request an automatic 3-menth (6-month, for 990-T corporationy extension of ume untl ., AUGUST 15 2091_
to file the exempt organmzation return for the organtzation named above The extension 1s for the orgamization s return for
» [ calendar year 20 %9 or
» [ tax year beginrang ..__..__.....__.. e eeee .- 200 andending L. o eeeeees ... . 20...

2 If this tax year 15 for less than 12 months, check reason [ tmual return [J  Final retur ] Change m accounting penod

3a If this apphcation 1s for Form 990-BL. 990-PF, 990-T 4720, or 6069, enter the lentative tax, less any
nonrefundable credits See instructions . -
b If this apphication 1s for Form 990-PF or 990-T emer any refundable credits and esumated tax payments
made ‘nclude any prior year overpayment allowed as a credhit . 8
¢ Balance Due Subtract ine 3b from line 3a include your payment with this form, or, If required, deposit
with FTD coupon or, i required, by using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System) See
nstruclions N -

Signature and Verification

Under penafuies of pefury | declare that | have exarnined thes form including accomparying schedules and stalements and 101 he best of my knowledge and beliel
i s wue correct and gomplele and that | am authorzed to prepare thes form

Signalure B _/ﬂ Q’ (%(ﬁ Tile » COMPTROLLER Date » %ﬂ/ﬂ/

For Paperwork Reduction Act Mlce. see Ins Cuon Cat No 27916D Fo’rm 5368 (12 20000

4,440,578

4,440,578




Form B868 (12 2000) Page 2

® |f you are fiing for an Additional {not automatic} 3-Month Extension, complete only Part Il and check this box » O
Note Only complete Part il if you have already been granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868
® It you are liling for an Automatic 3-Month Extension, complete only Part | (on page 1)

Pa Addwtional (notl automatic) 3-Month Extension of Time Must File Oniginal and One Copy
Type or Name of Exempt Organization Employer identification number
print THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION 13 1659629
File by the Number suweet and room or suile no If a PO box see instruclions For IRS use only
extended 420 FIFTH AVENUE
due dawe lor
r“"tﬂg;hesﬂ Cy town of post office state and ZIP code For a foreign address see nstiucLions
i NEW YORK, NY 10018-2702

Check type of return to be filed (File a separate application for each return)

] Form 990 O Form990-2 [ Form 990 T (sec 407(a) or 408(a) rustt (3 Form 1041-A [ Form 5227 [J Form 8870
[ form990-BL b Form990-PF [J Form990 71 (EUSI other than above) O Form 4720 [J Form 6069

STOP Do not compiete Part Il ff you were not already granted an automatic 3-month extension on a previously filed Form 8868

o If the organizaton does not have an office or place of business in the United States check this box » O
# If this 1s for a Group Return, enter the arganization s four digit Group Exempuon Number (GEN) ___ W thisis
for the whole group check this box P If 1015 for part of the group check this box ® [ and attach a Iist with the
names and EINs of all members the extension s lor

4 | request an addiional 3 month extension of tme unul NOVEMBER 15 . 2091

For calendar year 2000 o giher tax year beginning . 20 anCI‘E‘I'I'UTn'g'_/ .20

5
6 If this tax year 15 for less than 12 months check reason [J Inmal return [ Fmnal return [J Change in accounting period
7 State in detal why you need the extension The Foundation has yet to receive tax information from several of

our large partnership investments due to their filing extensions Therefore, the Foundation needs additional
time to compile information for the return

8a If this apphcation 1s for Form 990 BL 990-PF 990 T 4720 or 6069 enter the lentative tax, less any
nonrefundable credits See instructions 3 ‘Ff 5’&5718

b tf this apphcauon is for Form 980 PF 990-T 4720 or 6069 enter any refundable credits and estimated

tax paymerits made Include any prior year overpavment allowed, gs a credit and any amount pad
previously with Form B868 K%"—%' ‘ $ ft Mg\f‘?g

c Balance Due Sublract ine Bb from line 8a Include your payment with thus form or if required deposit

with FTD coupon or W required by using EFTPS (Electromc Federal Tax Paymem System) See
Instructions $

Signature and Verification

Under penaltes of penury | declare thal | have exarmuned this form ncluding accomparntying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief
115 rue coriect and complete and that 1 am authonzed to prepare Ihis form

Sigpatune > %é% (7‘54.&5’ e s CORPTROLLLEIC e 9’%4 /o/

Nouce to Kppllcant To Be Completed by the IRS
We have approved this apphication Please attach this form to the orgamzation s return

We have not approved Lhis apphcalion However we have granled a 10-day grace period from the later of Lhe dale shown beiow or the due
date of lhe organization s return (including any pnior extensions} This grace penod 1s considered to be a vald extension of ime (or etections
otherwise required to be made on a umely return  Please attach this form 10 the organization s return

We have not approved Lhis apphcauon After considenng the reasons slated in tem 7 we cannol grant your request lor an extension of tme
lo file We are not granting a 10-day grace penod

We cannot consider this application because t was filed after the due date of the return for which an extension was requested
Other

oo 4

ExTENg,
ON

Alternate Mailing Address  Enter the address if you want the copy of this applicaton for an achEPl 2 gogtﬁ- extension
returned to an address different than the one entered above 01
Name

SlaEIsKoRe e
Type or Number and sireet {include suile, room, or apt no) Or a P O box number ON PRO'C LD DIRECTOR
prnt ESSING_ OGDEN

City or town, province or state, and country (including postal or ZIiP code)

Form 8868 12 2000



#1.4
#1.B
#1.C
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THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION
Employer ID No. 13-1659629

Form 990-PF - 2000

TABLE OF ATTACHMENTS

Capital Gains & Losses

Other Income

Analysis of Operating and Administrative Expenses
Compensation of Officers, Directors and Trustees
Professional fees

Depreciable Assets and Depreciation Expense
Summary of Direct Charitable Activities
Marketable Securities

Receivables due from officers, etc./Other Assets
Bonds Payable

Bylaws of the Foundation

Grants & Expenditures

Expenditure Responsibility Grants

Grants to Individuals

General Fellowships

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Furnishing of Goods,
Services & Facilities

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION regarding grant requests



THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION
EMPLOYER ID NO, 13-1659629

SUMMARY FOR CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES FOR TAX ON INVESTMENT INCOME

DESC] 0

EQUITY

COMMON STOCK
PREFERRED STOCK
DEPOSITORY RECEIPTS
MUTUAL FUNDS

TOTAL EQUITY

FIXED INCOME

US GOVERNMENT AND AGENCY
MORTGAGES NOTES AND CONTRACTS
MUNICIPAL OBLIGATION

CORPORATE OBLIGATION

ZERO COUPON

CONVERTIBLE BOND

SHORT TERM

TOTAL FIXED INCOME

MISCELLANEQUS
SUNDRY ASSETS
OTHER {(COMMISSIONS)

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS

SUBTOTAL

Partnership Gains/{Losses)

NET CAPITAL GAIN/(LOSS)

FORM 990PF 2000, PART IV

PROCEEDS

COST

GAIN/ALOSS)

2,342,680,838 31
5,727,646 20
32,591,494 90
869,710 96

2,158,826,170 98
5,330,460 49
26,511,303 38
1,017,875 26

183,854,667 33
397,185 7M1
6,080,191 52
(148,164 30)

2,381,869,690.37

2,568,831,005 29
99,146,356 06
186,432,924 92
27,097,260 50
9,566,235 00
67,419,890 04

2,191,685,810.11

2,563,961,559 60
101,146,322 83
193,614,236 73

25,179,637 70
9,040,750 64
67,250,242 52

190,183,880 26

4,869,445 69
(1,999,966 77)
(7,181,311 81)
1,917,622 80
525,484 36
169,647 52

2,958,493,671.81

1,943,472 82

2,960,192,750 02

1,917,228 72

(1,699,078 21)

26,244 10

1,943,472.82

1,917,228.72

26,244 10

5,342,306,835.00

5,153,795,788.85

188,511,046.15

82,891,812 33

271,402,858.48




CAPGAIN XLS

THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION

EIN 13-1659629 FORM 990PF 2000
RECONCILIATION OF NET GAIN FROM SALE OF ASSETS TO CAPITAL GAIN NET INCOME

Net gain from sale of assets - Part 1, hine 6, column (a)

ADJUSTMENTS TO BOOK AMOUNT OF GAINS

Reclassification of partnership ordinary income to Other Income, Att 1B
Partnership book to tax differences reflected on K-1s

Exclusion of non-taxable items *

Exclusion of Unrelated Business Income

Reclassification of deductions relating to portfolio income
from partnership gains/losses to Other Income, Att #1 B

$338,860,208

(1,526,749)
($15,280,489)
($52,272,436)

($5,867,886)

$7,490,210

Capital GainfLoss Partl, Line 7

$271,402,858

* See Pages 118-120 of Non-Taxable ltems Detail Schedule which follows
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§6 7116 40
A Y58 20
48 )58 20
197 394 A0
47 914 30
198 296 06
85034 37
42 51T 18
121 477 &0
22054
280 308 25
OB 08T 50
S5 303
1IN
o8 BO7 23
505936 04
33610 44
541882 04
187 810 79
43500 17
S1 0319
TAk A2 56
AGT 860 5T
TAZ 07385
5447217
118300 00
212855 54
18 584 04
A2 7T 47
1972831 8%
461 M &
8212000
0 009 &2
Ih s
550 T28 03
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4380 00
BT T42 29
238 305 00
739304 00
e 197 80
538 Y43 07
12841 80
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"Iy
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12180
115820
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57 85 40
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189 587 50
101 12500
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711319
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34327065
1109 B14 431
7178109
137 89: 711
(191 Q27 #1)
1138 512 48)
13797 )
(10 55 451
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13 040 304
(756750 4
(a7 BAY 8"
[FIY LR
14341 €7
1188 6%
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17 902 49
74355k
"M
807 560 ad
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1W0I34Y
27651529
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s
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messae
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P
3 000 0
4700 DO
3900 00
8 000 00
400 0g
300 oo
280000
F 800 0O
2800 00
15 000 00
9 800 00
700 00
7100 00
140000
000 00
24 000 00
30 400 00
12 300 00
00 00
1400 00
13 400 D0
7 200 D0
700 DO
7 800 DO
1 200 00
4100 00
200 00
24 700 0D
400 00
3 200 Oat
700 D0
1700 00
70000
120000
3 B00 00
1720 00
100 00
21 200 0
2800 00
710000
130000
7 R0 00
? 700 00
2500 00
11X
10 800 00
4500 03
29 300 00
4300 00
2300C0
4 700 00
10000
10 S0 0O
=00 00
19 500 00
2100 00
500 00
1 800 00
1900 09
220000
100 09
310000
T 400 0O
35 700 00
4 8OC DG
2800 DO
140000
1700 00
2 200 00
100 0O
500 00
o0 Do
#00 o0
900 DO
700 0O
400 00
600 00
aa 500 00
55 900 0
4900 00
30 0o
S 400 OO
100 00
00 00
500 00
00 00
400 00
100 00
500 00
Too o
800 DO
1300 00
1 400 0O
270000
400 90
10000
1 700 0%
400 DG
500 00
00 00
# DOO 00
5 0t 0
34 o
1 KO0 D0
300 0O
4100 00
16 800 0O
T14m 00
110000
3000 00
LY )

Sacurity Name

DELL COMPUTER CORP

DELL COMPUTER CORP

OELL COMPUTER CORP

DELL COMPUTER CORP

DU, CORP HEw

QuaL CORP NEW

Dual, CORP NEW

LML CORP NEW

Dl CORP NEW

DIENEY WALT CD

DOMIMION RES INC VA NEW
DOW CHEM CO

DOy CHEM CO

DOW CHEM CO

COW CHEM CO

COW CHEM CO

DOV CHEM CO

DU PONT £ | OE NEMORRS CO
OURE ENERGY CO

OUE ENERGY CO

OUXE ENERGY CO

E M C CORP MASS

£ M C CORP MASS

E M C CORP MASS

E M C CORP MASS

EASTMAN CHEM CO

EORSON INTL

ECHSON INTL

ECSON INTL

EDIBON IHTL

ECRSON INTL

ED3ON INTL

EDISOMN T

EDISON WNTE

EDISON INTL

EOWARDS LIFESC'ENCE S COAP
EL PASO ENERGY CORF DEL

EL PASO ENERGY CORP OEL
ELECTRONIC DAL S¥5 CORP NEW
ELECTROWIC DATA §YS CORP NEW
ELECTROMIC DATA SYE CORP MEW
ELECTROMIC DATA S¥5 CORP heEww
ELECTRONIC DATA Sv5 CORP NEW
ELECTRONIC DATA §¥8 CORP NEW
ELECTROMIC DATA 575 CORP NEW
EXELON CORP

EXXOM MOBIL CORP

ExxOM MOBR CORF

FPL GROWP LHG

FPL GROUP INC

FEDERAL NATL MTQ ASSN
FEDERAL HATL MTG ASSH
FEDERAL HATL MTG ASSN
FEDERAL HATL MTG ABSN
FEDERAL HATL MTQ ASSN
FEDERATED DEPT STORES mC DEL
FEDERATED DEPT STORES INC DEL
FEDERATED DEPT STORES INC DEL
FEDERATED DEPT STORES WC DEL
FUF TH THIAD BANCORP

FIFTH THIRD BANCORP

FIFTH THIRD BANCORP

FIFTH THIRD BANCORP

FIRST DATA CORP

FIRBTAR CORP WIS

FIRSTAR CORP W13

FIRSTAA CORP W13

FIRSTAR CORP w1y

FIRSTAR CORP WIS

FIRSTAR COAP w13

FIRETAR CORP w3

FIRSTAR CORP Wi§

FIRSTAR CORP WIS

FIR3TAM CORF WIS

FIRATAR CORP Wi

FIRATAR CORP VWS

FIRSTAR CORP WIS

FIRSTAR CORP WIS
FLEETBOSTON FINL CORP
FLORIDA PROGRESS CORP
FLORIDA PROGRESS CORP
FLORIOA FROGHE S3 CORP
FLORIDA PROGRESS CORP
FLORIDA PROGRESS CORF
FLORIDA PROGRESS CORP
FLORIOA PROCRESS CORP
FLORIDA PROGRESS CORP
FLORIGA PROGRESS CORP
FLOAIDA PROGRESS CORP
FLORMA PROGRE SS CORP
FLORIDA PROGRESS CORP
FLORIOA PROGREES CORP
FLORIDA PROGRESS CORP
FLORMIDA PROGRESS COAP
FLORMA PROGRE §3 CORP
FLORIOA PAOGRE 35 CORP
FLORIDA PROGRE 33 CORP
FLORIOA PROGAESS CORP
FLORIOA PROCRESS CORP
FLORIQA PROGRESS CORP
FORD uTR CO DEL

FORD TR CO DEL

FORD WMTR CODEL

FORD WMTR CO DEL

FORD MTR CQODEL

FORD MTR CO OEL

FORD MTR CO DEL

FORD WTR CO DEL

GTE Cconre

GTE CoRP

GTE CORP

THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION

EMPLOYEE 1D NO 123 165629

GAIN AND LOSSES FOR TAX ON INVESTMENT INCOME

Secusity Description
COon

COM
COM
COM
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COM
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O
OISNEY COM
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COM
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COM
CoM
COom
Com
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COM
COM
COM
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COM
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COM
COM
CoM
COu
coM
<ou
oM
oM
couM
CoM
COm
COM
COM
COM
Com
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CoM
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CoM
Com
COM
com
cou
COat
COn
COM
com
COM

COM STK
COM STK

COM STK
COM §TK
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S 300 OO
THO00M
5 800 00
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8 700 00
17 000 0o
13500 00
20000
J80000
710000
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A 8000
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12800 00
[LE- -1 1)
75 000 00
1200 00
t 300 00
100 00
1100 00
00 00
230000
2200 20
& 300 00
2 000 o0
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3 400 00
5480009
3 400 00
11900 0C
#7000
12 300 00
1809 00
29007 00
8 300 00
8 500 0¢
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THE ROCKEFELLER FOUNDATION
EMPLOYEE ID NO 1) 165629
GAIN AND LOSSES FOR TAX ON INVESTMENT INCOME
FORM 990 PF 2000 PART IV

Security Name Sacuriry Owacripuon Oxie Bought Dme Bokd

GTE CORP coM 200N 41172000
GAP INC cou 12010012 112172000
GAP INC cou 22D 17872000
GAP NG cOoM 200D 72000
GAP INC COM 1231001201 1472000
GAP NC coM MANIIN-00N TN 82000
GAP INC coM 201201001231 11142000
GEMNENTECH INC COM W00 TN 2000
GENERAL DYNAMICS CORP TOM 1273100271 112152000
GEMERAL OYNAMICS CORP coM BTN 2672000
GENERAL OYMNAMICS CORP COM 120310061 2731 W212000
GEMERAL DYNAMICS CORP cou 51271001 2 282000
GENERAL DYMAMICS CORP coM "=1231.004 23 VI 2000
GENERAL ELEC CO COm 12001000 £ 231 000
GENERAL ELEC CO coM 12031000t 7731 W222000
GENERAL ELEC €O CoOm BB 1221000t 231 M1 472000
GENERAL EAEC SO COM BEI121-00:1 273 42000
GENERAL MTRS CORP COm W21 00 2N Srw2000
GEMNERAL MTRS CORP Cout 61271 ORI 2000
GENERAL MTRS CORP com 20100 N 552000
GENERAL MTRS CORP COu 1273100012731 W00
GEMNERAL MTRS CORP COa 12703003 2000
GENIYME CQRP COM 61203400120 122000
GENZYME CORP coM BA2DTIN 172000
GDODRICH B F €O COW BE 127300001201 2 rcoe
GDODRI-H BF CO couM BWAVIDONTN UI200G
GODODRICH B F CO CoM BE1271-00112701 21272000
GRACE W R = CO DEL NEW cou 12734000 M 2000
GRACE W R + CO DEL NEW cOM 2127310012 Y2000
GRAZE W R = CO DEL NEW cOM [ hF/adB--abIa]] 2172000
GRACE WR CO DEL HEW COu BE112730-01 201 1002772000
HARTFQRD FLLANCLAL SVCS GRP cOM MIZ2M-DU 1271 21772000
HARTFORD FINANCLAL SVCS GRP COM [LTRF 2R Fla ] ¥2T2000
HARTF ORD FINANCIAL SVCS GRF coud 131 BN 11014;2000
HEALTHEDUTH CORF COm 123000 112172000
HEWLE 1T PACRARD CO coM 08¢ 121310071231 41772000
HEWLE IT PACKARD CO Lo 05 2310001 N 41172000
HEWLETT PACKRARD CO COM W20 WM262000
HEWLE IT PACRARD €O com 127310012 Y142000
HEWLE IT PACKARD CO coud 127311001121 w2000
HOME DEPOT waC cou 1271000 21 V2000
HOME DEPOT wC COom 120010001 W2lz000
HOME DEPOT MG coa 12010001 10 21727000
HOME DEPOT NG CoOm 120100120 W00
HOME DEPOT INC cOM SI2IDEI 23 VI @200
HOME DEPOT miC oM 1201004123 1141472000
HONEYWELL INTL iNC coM 12100020y 12072000
HONE YWELL INTL INC cou 127100/ 213 3272000
HONE YWELL WNTL tNC COM 1271001201 Ly htr ]
HOME YWELL NTL INC comd 201002 10412000
HOMLYWELL BNTL INC cou 8127310001231 106 L2000
HONEYWELL WNTL thC COom W2 D123 131472000
LLINOIS TOOL WKS 1NC comM S12001 D01 231 WT12000
ALINGIS TOOH VWS 1NC COM W20 -QEH21 Wi2000
RLLINCIS TOOL WRS INC. cou WA201.00N1 U 1142000
INFINITY BROADCASTENG CORP NEW cLA 12731001201 1117000
INGERSOLL RAND CO Com OS2 D0 1231 W1r2gne
INGERSOLL RAND CQ COM L AF/a3R - RF/ D) 67000
NGERSOLL RAND CO COm A2 LDO I V27000
WGERSOLL RAND CO COM 1273 D12 V202000
INGERSOLL RAND CO COM 1270000201 111 42000
WTEL CORP oM 123001270 262000
INTEL CORP COM 123000012101 ¥27r2000
WNTEL CORP cou 8812731 ban2a 2112000
INTEL CORP COm K631 002 111472000
INTERNATIONAL HUSINESS MACHS coM W2 D0N2 112872000
TERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHS coM 1211082 ¥212000
INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHS cou WD 121 r2tr2000
NTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHS COM 26122100/ 112000
MNTERNATIONAL BUSINES$ MACHS coM 121000 TN 1971472000
INTERNATIONAL PAPER CO coM W1231.001 271 2172000
WTERPUBLIC GROUP CO3 INC COM W00 N 2172000
INTERPUBLIC GROUP COS INC COm 1200 T DT 1141477000
Wil 4+ 1] 12730 00030 2172000
WTLT COwe MBI 1-001 2 152000
wTUT com #1273 OO 0287000
WTUIT cOou 1273100012 1111472000
205 UNPHASE CORP cou 612731000231 102772000
105 UNPHASE CORP com [ _TaFiaRE- . 4t p ] 13 Tr2000
JOS UNPMASE CORP COM #8/12721-0001 271 1141472000
1ABR CIRCUIT INC coum W 1002 2112000
JABI CLRCUIT INC. COM 1210001201 W1Tr2000
JABIL CIRCWIT INC com W03 W282000
ABIL CIRCULT NC coud ® 1001271 111 472000
JOHNSON + JOHNSON cou |0 11712000
FANSAS CITY SOUTHN INDS INC COM 8/13731-0011271 2172000
KANSAS CITY SOUTHN IND3 NG coOm 12100101 1262000
FAHSAS CITY BOUTHN HMDS INC <o ®11-00130 272000
KANSAS CITY SOUTHN INDR INC CoOM W121-0001 234 &2172000
KAHSAS CITY SOUTHN IND3 WG COM HEW 2N 001 HATZ000
FELLDGA CO cosd W20 ¥21000
KELLOGO L0 con L ar /218, s ] V000
WELLDGA CO COn 100021 W2172000
KELLOGG CO com -0 T2 1072772000
KERR MCGEE CORP COm MY 12210001201 1F202000
KERN MCGEE CORP com B21-00121 212000
KERR MCGEE CORP COM 1D WIO2000
KERR MCGEE CORP COM 1201001 11147000
KEYCORP NEW COM 120100012101 1272000
REYCORP NEW [=a"] 1210021 W12r2000
KEYCORP NEW [olal”) 200N 1272000
KEYCORP NEW Com W20 02 V1272000
KEYCORP NEW cou 20U 117000
MREYCORP NEW COM 121001 V17000
KEYCORP NEW COoM BEN2 D012 142000
KMBERLY CLARK CORP COM B/ UILO012730 1142000
FING PHARMACEUTICALS INC CoM AN D02 101272000
KING PHARMACEUTICALY INC COM ME2IDWI2 11272000
KING PHARMACEUTICALS INC COM 2000012 A 122000
KING PHARMACEUTICAL S INC COM BENIN-O1I 1001 772000
LSILDGIKC CORP COu W2 10001 21 1272000
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Sacurity Mame

LSILOGIC CORP

LS5I LOGIC CORP

LSI LOGIC COmP

LS LOGIC CORP

LSI LOGIC CORP

LEAR CORP

LEAR CORP

LEAR CORP

LEGGETT PLATTING
LEGGETT PLATT INC
LEGGETT PLATT NC
LEGGETT PLATT INC
LEGGETT PLATT wiC
LEGGETT PLATT NC
LEGGETT + PLATT INC
LEGGETT PLATT INC
LEGGETT FPLATT G

LAY EL €O

LALY ELI = CO

LRLY ELI= CO

LRLY ELr CO

LilLy ELr~ CO

LILLY €LY = CO

LILLY EL) = CO

LALY ELI = CO

LIMITED 18C

LINCARE HLDGS INC.

LINCOUN NATL CORM® 1IN
LINGOLN NATL CORP IN
LINCOLN RAZL CORP IN
LINCOLN NATL CORP IN

LINEAR TECHMOLOGY CORP
LOWES COS INC

LOWES COS INC

LOWES CO3 INC

LOWE S COS ING

LOWES COS NG

LUCENT TECHNOLQGIES WG
LUCENT TECHMOLOGIES INC
LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES INC
LUCENT TECHNCLOGIE S 1M
LUCENT TECHNOLDGIES LG
LUCENT TECHMOLOGIES LNC
LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES INC
MBMNA CORP

MEBNA CORP

WBNA CORP

MCI WORLOCOM INC

MCI wORLDCOM INC

MCI WORLDCOM INC

BC| WORLDCOM vC

MAHSH WCLENMAN COS NC
MARSH  WCLENRAN COS INC
MARSH  MCLENRAN COS NG
MARSH + MCLENMAN COS INC
MAXIM INTEGRATED PRODS INC
MAZIM INTEGRATED PRODS INC
WAZIM INTEGRATED PROODS INC
MAZIM INTEGRATED PRODS INC.
MAKIM INTEGRATED PRODS INC
MEDTRONC WC

MEDIROMIC INC

WEDIROMC INC

MELLON FINL CORP

MELLON FINL CORP

MERCK €O INC

MERCK » CO INC

MERACK + CO NG

WERCK = CO NG

MERRIL LYNCH » £O1NC
MERRLL LYNCH « £O NG
MERRILL LYNCH + €O INC
MERRML LYNCH « CO NG
MICRDSOFT CORP

MICROSOF T CORP

MICROSOFT CORP

WICROSOFT CORP

MICRQSOFT CORP

MICROSOFT CORP

WICROSOFT CORP

WICROSOF T CORP

W ROSOFT CORP

WICROSOF T CORP

BUNNESOTA MNG  WFG CO
WONSANTO CO

MONSANTS CO

WORGAN JP = CO NG

MORGAN JP  COWC

HORGAN STAMLEY DEAN WITTER-CC
MORCAN STAMLEY DEAN WITTER CC
MORCAN STAMLEY DEAN WITTER CQ
MCAGAN STAMLEY DEAN WATTER+CO
HORGAN STAMLEY DEAN WITTERSCD
MORGAN STAMLEY DEAN WITTER-CO
MORGAN STAHLEY DEAN WITTER-CO

MO TOROLA NG

MNE TWORK APPLIANCE INC
HETWORK APPLIANCE INC
NETWORK APPLIAMCE
HETWORN APPLLANCE DG
NETWORN APPLLANCE INC
NORTEL ME TWORXS CORP
NORTEL KETWORYS CORP
NOVELLUS §Y5 INC
NOVELLLS SYB INC
NOVELLUS $78 INC
CMMICOM GROUP
OMHICOM GROUP
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Sacurity Name

OMNIC Okl GROUP

ORAZLE CORP

ORACLE CORP

ORALLE CORP

ORACLE CORP

ORACLE CORP

ORACLE CORP

ORAZLE CORP

QRACLE CORP

CUTBALK STEANHOUSE NG
OUTBACK STEARHOUSE INC
OUTBACK STEAXHOUSE ING
DUTBACK STEAAHOUSE IHC
OUTRALK SIEAKMOUSE INC
DUTRACK STEARHDUSE INC
OUTBACK STEANHOUSE INC
PECO ENERGY CO

PECQ ENERGY CO

PARKER HANNIFIN CORP
PERBICO INC

PFRIZER INC

PFIZER INC

PFIZER LNC

PFUER WC

PrARMACIA CORP
PHARMACIA CORP
PHARMACIA CORP

PHILIP MORRIS COS INC
PHLIP MORAIS COS INC
PHELIP WORALS COS WNC
PHLIP MORAIS COS NC
PHILIP LDRRAIS COS INC
PHILIP MORRIS COS INC
PHILIP MORRIS COS INC
PHILIP MORAIS COS ING
PINNACLE WEST CAP CORP
PRANAIR INC

PROCTER GAMBLE CO
QUARER QAT CO

OUARLR CATS COQ

QUAKER CATS CO

DUAKER CATS CO

QUAFER QATS CO

OUARER CATS CO

OWEST COMMUMICATIONS INTL MNC
RF MICRO DEVICES INC

RF WICRO DEVICES INC

RF MICRC DEVICES INC

RF WICRC DEVICES INC

RF MICRD DEVKES INC
RAQIQSHAL A CORP
RADIOSHALH CORP
RELLANT EMERGY INC
REYNOLDS RETHOLODS CO
REYNOLDS REYNOLDS CO
REYNOLDS REYNOLOS CO
REYNOLDS REYNOLDS CO
AEYNOLDS REYNORODS CO
RYERSON TULL tNC HEW
RYERSON TULL INC HEW
BBC COMMUNICATIONS WG
SAC COMMUNICATIONS 1NC
SBC COMMUMICATIONS INC
SCI $¥YSINC

SCI5Y5 INC

SCISYSINC

SCHEYS ING

ST PAUL COS ING

EARA LEE CORP

SARA LEE CORP

SCHERNG PLOUGH CORP
SCHERWNG PLOUGH CORP
SCHERING PLOUGH CORP
SCHERING PLOUGH CORP
SCHERWG PLOUGH CORP
SCHE RING PLOUGH CORP
SCHERING PLOUGH CCORP
SCH¥YAS CHARLES CORP
SCHWAB CHARLES CORP
SCHWAD CHARLES CORP
SCHWAR CHARLES CORP
SCHWABR CHARLE S CORP
SCrAQ CHARLES CORP
SEARS ROEBUCK CO
SEMPRA ENERGY

SEMPRA ENERGY

SEMPRA ENERGY

SEMPRA ENERGY

BIEBEL SYS INC.

SMURFIT STONE CONTAINER COStP
SMURFIT §TONE CONTAINER CORP
SMURFIT STONE CONTAINER CORP
SMURFIT STONE CONTAINER CORP
SWURFIT STOMNE CONTAINER CORP
SMURFIT STOME CONTAINER CORP
EMURFIT STOME CONTAINER CORP
SMURFIT BTONE CONTAINER CORP
SMURFIT STONE CONTAINER CORP
SMURFIT STONE CONTAINER CORP
SOLECTRON CORP
SOLECTRON CORP
SOLECTRON CORP
SOLECTRON CORM
SOLECTRON CORP
SOLECTRON CORP
SOLECTRON CORP
SOLECTRON CORP
SOUTHERN CO

SOUTHERN CO

SOUTHERN LOQ

SPRINT COR®
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Securlty Name

SPRINT CORP

SPRINT CORP

BPRINT CORP

STILWELL FLNARCIAL IHC
STRWELL FINANCLAL INC
SUN MICROSYSTEMS INC
SUN MICROSYSTEMS INC
SUNTRUST PR3 WiC
SUNTRUST BKI INC
BUNTRUST BKS INC
SUNTRUST BKS INC

TIa COS INC NEW

TN COS INC NEW

TIX COS INC NEW

TIN COS (NC NEW

TIn COS5 INC HEW

TJX COB NG HEWY

TANDY CORP

TARGET CORP

TARGET CORP

TARGET CORP

TELLABS MC

TELLABS INC.

TELLABS INC

TELLABS INC

TELLAGS INC

TELLARS NG

TELLABS INnC

TERADYNE INC

TERADYNE INC

TERADYHE INC

TERADYHNE ING

TEXAS INSTRS rHC

TEXAS INSTRS INC

TEXAS INSTRS NG

TEXAS INSTRS NG

TEXAS INSTRS INC

TEXAS INSTRS C
TEXTRON ING

TIME WARNER INC

TIME WARNER INC

TIME WARNER INC

TIME WARNER ING

TIME WARNER INC

TiME WAANER ING

TIME WARNER INC

TIME WARNER NC

TIME WARNER INC

TIME WARNER INC
TOACHMARK NG
TRAYELERS PPTY CAS CORP
TRAVELERS PPTY CAS CORP
TRAVELERS PPTY CAS CORP
TRAVELERS PPTY CAS CORP
TYCQ INTL LTD NEW

TYCO INTL LTD NEW

TYCO WNTL LTD NEW
TYCOINTL LTD NEW

UAL CORP

VAL CORP

UAL CORP

UAL CORP

UAL CORP

UaL CORP

UAL CORP

UAL CORP

USK MARATHON GROUP
USK MARATHON GROUP
USX MARATHON GROULP
UST INC

UST INC

UNICHN PAC CORP

UNION PAC CORP

UNION PAC CORP

UKION PAC CORP

UNIFED TECHNCLOGIES CORP
UNIFED TECHNOLOGIES CORP
UNITED TECHNCLOGIES CORP
UNITED TECHNCLOGIES CORP
UNITED TECHMNCLOGIES CORP
UNTED TECHNOLOKES CORP
YERITAS SOFTWARE CORP
WERITAS SOFTWARE CORP
VERITAS SOFTWARE CORP
VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS
VLA Ol LG,

VIAZ O INC

VIALOM NG

VIALCM NG

VISTEQN CORP

VISTEOM CORP

VISTEON CORP

WAL MART STORES INC
WAL MART STORES wC
WAL MART STORES INC
WAl MART STORES INC
WAL MART STORE S INC
VWAL MART STORES wNC
Wal WART SI0RES NC
WAL MART STORES INC
VWAL WART BTORES INC
WARNER LAMBERT CQ
WATERS CORF

WATERS CORP

WATERS CORP

WATERS CORP

WATERS CORP

wEBS DEL CORP

WELLS FARGD + CO NIW
WELLS FARGO £O NEW
WELLS FARGD CO MEW
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5400 00
1800 00
8800 00
4 800 00
12 500 00
2 000 D0
3300 80
200 g
00 0o
300 pg
00 0o
300 bo
10¢ 00
1000 00
80c 00
100G 00
1000 0O
50C 00
400 00
40¢ 00
400 g0
12 800 0
12 400 00
340080
4190 00
4200 00
4200 50
1000 00
& 600 00
200 80
200 00
2100 00
200 00
4Co 00
5100 00
6 T0G 00
3 80000
2 400 QO
11 400 00
160000
800 060
5 100 00
G 700 00
1600 00
1 000 00
1 000 0
1 800 0O
2200 02
3 504 oo
304 oo
1600 00
00 00
90C 00
190009
500 00
110000
400 00
$0C 0
1000 00
5 300 00
500 00
T00 DO
300 00
2200 00
800 00
200 0o
500 00
2400 00
1800 0
2100 00
+ 600 oo
400 00
500 0o
5700 00
£ 500 00
1900 00
2 800 00
170000
2 000 00
80 o
400 00
500 00
404 00
400 00
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3800 00
00 A
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130000
100 00
1300 0
BO0 00
10 800 20
200 00
70000
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3300 00
4 506 00
100 00
2400 00
2,200 00
100 00
1300 00
2 200 00
830 00
800 00
400 00
2200 00
100 00
200 00
2 400 00

Sscurny Numa

WELLS FARGO + CO NEW
WE(LS FARGC CO NEW
WELLS FARGG CO NEW
WELLS FARGO ~ CO NEW
WELLS FARGO « CO NEW
WILLAME TTE INDS INC
WILLAMETTE IMDS INC
WILLAME TTE INDS INC
WILLAME TTE DS TNC
WILLAME TTE INDS INC
WILLAME TTE 'NDS INC
WILLAME TTE INDS INC
WILLAME TTE INDS INC
WILLAME TTE INDS INC
WILLAMETTE INDS INC
WILLAME TIE INDS INC
WILLAME TTE INDS INC
WILLAME TTE INDS NG
WILLAMETTE INDS INC
WILLAMETTE IND5 ING
WILLAME FTE IND5 INC
WORLDCOM ING

WORLDCOM INC

WORLDCOM INC

AILINX INC

KILINX INC

ALK INC

AILINX INC

MILINX INC

TAHOO INC

TAHOO ING

TAHOO INC

TAHOO INC

YAROO ING

TANOO INC

TOMMY HILFIGER CORP
TOMMY HILFIGER CORP
TOMMY HILFIGER CORP
TOMMY PILFIGER CORP
TOMMY HILFIGER CORP
TOMMY HILFIGER CORP
TOMUY HILFIGER CORP
TOMMY HILFIGER CORP
TOMMY HILFIGER CORP
TOMMY HILFIGER CORP

AL CAPITAL LTD

XL CAPITALLTD

AL CAPITALLTD

AL CAPITAL LTD

ABGEMNIA INC

ABGENIX INC

ABGENIX INC

ABGENIX INC

ABGEMNX NG

ABGEMLY INC

ABGENIX INC

ABGENIX INC

ABGEMIX NG

ABGENIX WINC

ABQUT COM thC

ABQUT COM INC

AROUT COM NG

ABOUT COM iNC

ABOUT COM INC

ABOUT COM INC

ACXICH CORP

ACXICH CORP

AL XOM CORP

AS XM CORP

ADAPTWE BROADBAND CORP
ADAP TIVE BROADEAND CORP
ADAPTIVE BROADBAND CORP
ADAPTIVE BROADBAND CORP
ADAPTIVE BROADBAMD CORP
ADAPTIVE BROADBAND CORP
ADAPTIVE BRQADBAMD CORP
ACAPTIVE BROADEAND CORP
ADAPTIVE BRQADBAND CORP
ADAPTI¥VE BROADEAND CORP
ADAPTIWE BROADBAND CORP
ADAP THE BROADBAND CORP
ADAPTIVE BRCADBAND CORP
ADAPTIVE BROADBAND CORP
ADAPTIVE BROADBAND CORP
ADVANCE PARADIAM 4HC
ADVANCED FIBRE COMMUNICATIONS
AOVANCE D FIBRE COMMUNICATIONS
ADNVANCED FIBRE COMMUNICATIONS
ADVANCED FIGRE COMMUMICATIONS
ADVANCED FIBRE COMMUMICATIONS
ADVANCED FIBRE COLIMUMICATIONS
ADVANCED FIBRE COMMUNICATIONS
ADYANCED ENERGY INDS NG
AETHER 5YSTEMS INC
AETHER SYSTEMS INC
AETHER SYETEMS INC
AETHER BYSTEMS INC
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
ARBORMNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
ARBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORME FGHMT CORP
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Security Home

AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORME FGHT CORP
AIRBORMNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHI CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHY CORP
AIABORNE £GHT CORP
AIABORNE FGHT CORP
AIABOANE FGHI CORP
AIRBORKE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORP
AIRBORNE FGHT CORFP
AIRBORHE FGHT CORP
AIRNET COMM CORP
AIRMNET COMM CORP
AIRNET COMM COAP
AIRNET COMM CORP
AIRNET COMM CORP
AIRNET COMM CORP
AIRNET COMM CORP
AIRNET COMM CORP
ALLAIRE CORP

ALLAIRE CORP

ALLAIRE CORP

ALLAIRE CORP
ALLSCRIPTS INC
ALLSCRIPTS INC
ALLSCRIPTS INC

ALPHA INDS INC

ALPHA INDS INC

ALPHA [NDS INC

ALPHA INDS INC

ALPHA [ND3 INC

ALPHA [NDS WINC

ALPHA IND5 INC.

ALPHA INDS INC

ALPHA INDS INC
ALPHARMA, INC
ALPHARMA, INC
AMERICAN S50F TWARE INC
AMERICAN S0F TWARE INC
AMERIC AN SDF TWARE INC
AMERIC AN SOF TWARE INC
AMERICAN SOF TWARE INC.
AMERICAN SOF TWARE INC
AMERICAN SOF TWARE INC
AMERICAN SOF TWARE INC
AMERICAN SOF TWARE INC
AMERICAN SOFTWARE 1NC
AMERICAN SOF TWARE /NC
AMERICAN SOF TWARE INC
AMERICAN SOF T'wARE iNC
AMERICAN SOF DWARE INC
AMERICAN SOF TWARE iNC
AMERICAN SOF P'WARE INC
AMES DEPT STORES INC
AMES DEPT 5TORES INC
AMES DEPT STORES INC
AME 5 DEPT STORES INC
ANADIGICS INC

ANADIGH S INC

ANADIGICS INC

ANADIGICS INC

ANADIGICS INC

ANADIGICS INC

ANADNGICS NG

ANDOYER MET INC
ANDOVER NET INC
ANDOYER NET iNC
ANNTAYLOR STORES CORP
ANMTAYLOR STORE 5 CORP
ANNTAYLOR STORES CORP
AMNTAYLOR STORES CORP
ANNTAYLOR STORES CORP
ANNTATLOR STORES CORP
ANTEC CORP

APPLIED PWR INC

ASPECT DEV INC

ASPECT DEV INC

ASPECT DEY INC

ASPECT DEY MC

ABPECT DEV INC

ASPECT DEY INC

ASPECT COMMUMCATIONS INC
ASPECT COMMUNCATIONS INC
ASPECT COMMUICATIONS INC
ASPECT COMMUNICATIONS LC
ASPECT COMMUNICATIONS 1NC
ASPECT COMMUNIC ATHONS INC
ASPECT COMMUNICATIONS INC

AVICI SYS INC
AVIROMN

AVIRON

AVIRON
BISVCsCO

BJ SVCS CO
BJSVC5 L0
BIsvCs Lo

B 8VCs CO
BJSVCS CO

B SVCS CO

BJ SvCs cO
BARAE IT RES CORP
BARRE 1T RES CORP

BEH JERRY G MOME MADE INC
BEN  JERAYS HOMEMADE INC

BLUESTONE SOF TWARE INC
BLUESTONE SOF TWARE 1
BLUESTOME SOF TWARE INC
BLUESTONE SOFTWARE MG
BLUESTOME SOF TWARE INC
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Swcurity Namg

BLUESTONE SOF TWARE INC
BLUESTONE SOFTWARE INC
BLUESTONE SOF TWARE INC
BLUESTONE SOFTYWARE INC
BLUESTONE SOF TWARE WNC
BLUESTONE SOF TWARE INC
BLUESTOME SOF TWARE INC
BLUESTONE SOFTWARE INC
BLUESTONE SOF TWARE IMC
BLUESTONE SOFTWARE INC
BREAMAWAY SOLUTIONS INC
GREAMAWAY SOLUTIONS mC
BREAKAWAY SOLUTHONS INC
BREAKAWAY SOLUTIONS INC
BREAKAWAY SOLUTIONS NG
BREAKAWAY SOLUTHONS INC
BREAKAWAY SOLUTIONS INC
BREAKAWAY SOLUTIONS INC
BREAMAWAY SONUTIONS [NC
BREAMAWAY SOLUTIONS INC
BROADEASE SOFTWARE INC
BROADARASE SOFTWARE INC
BROADBASE SOFTWARE INC
BROADBASE SOFTWARE INC
BROADBASE SOFTWARE INC
BROADBASE SOF TWARE INC
BROADBASE SOFTWARE INC
BROADBASE SOFTWARE INC
BROADVISION ING
BROADVISION INC
BROADYISION INC
BROADVISION (HC
BROADVISION INC
BROADVISION NG
BROADYISION INC
BROADVISION ING

BURR BROWN

BURK BROWH

BURR BRCWM

BURR BROWN

BURR BRCA

BURR BROWN

HURR BROWN

BURR BROWN

BURR BROWYN

C CuBE MICROSYSTEMS INC
CTC COMMUNICATIONS GROUP INC
CTC COMMUNIC ATIONS GROUP INC
CALIPER TECHNOLOGIE S CORP
CAREMARK R INC

CAREMARN BX INC

CAREMARF RX INC

CHIREX INC

CHIREX ING.

CHIREX INC

CHIREX ING

LHIREX INC

CHIREX ING

COMPUCREDIT CORP
COMPUCREDIT CORP
COMPUCREDIT CORP
COMPUCREDIT CORP
COMPUCREDST CORP
COMPUCREDT CORP
COMCENTRIC NETWORMK CORP OEL
COMCENTRIC NETWORK CORP DEL
CONCENTRIC NETWORK CORP [X1
CONCEMNTRIC NETWORK CORP EL
COMCENTRIC NETWORK CORP DEL
CONCORD COMMUNICATIONS INC.
CONCORD COMMBUNICATIONS
CONCORD COMMUNICATIONS INC
COOQPER CAMERON CORP
COOPER CAMERON CORP
COOPER CAMERON CORP
COOPER CAMERON CORP
CORSAIR COMMUNICATIONS INC
CORSAIR COMMUNICATIONS INC.
COSINE COMMUNICATIONS INC
CURMUL S ME [HA INC

CLAMULLIS MEDLA INC

CUMULUS MEDLA INC

CUMULUS MEDIA INC

CUMULUS MEDA INC

CUNCAUS MEDIA INC

CUNULUS MEDIA INC

CUMULUS MEDA INC

CUMULUS MEDLA INC

CUMLAUS MEDLA INC

CUMULUS ME DLA INC

CUMLA LS WIE DU INC

CUMULLS MEDIA ihC

CUMULUS MEDIA INC

CUMULUS MEDLA INC

CUMULUS MEDLA INC

CUMULUS MEDIA INC

CUMLALUS ME DI /NG

CUMULUS MEDLA INC

CUMULUS MEDLA INC

CYMER INC

CYSIVE INC

CYSIVE INC

CYSIVE INC

CYSEVE WINC

CYSIVE INC

DALEEN TECHNOLOGIES INC
DECODE GENETICS INC

DEVRY INC DEL

DEVRY INC DEL

DEVRY INC DEL

DEVRY INC DEL
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